
November 23, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 1 of 5 

 

 

City of Guadalupe 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of the Guadalupe City Council 
 

Tuesday, November 23, 2021, at 6:00 pm 
City Hall, 918 Obispo Street, Council Chambers 

 
 

The City Council meeting will broadcast live on Charter Spectrum Cable Channel 20. 
 

All persons attending the City Council meeting are required to wear nose and face masks regardless of 
vaccination status when indoors in public setting, with limited exceptions pursuant to County of Santa 
Barbara Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6. 
 

If you choose not to attend the City Council meeting but wish to make a comment during oral 
communications or on a specific agenda item, please submit via email to juana@ci.guadalupe.ca.us no 
later than 1:00 pm on Tuesday, November 23, 2021. 

 

Please be advised that, pursuant to State Law, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item on the Agenda, before or during Council consideration of that item.  If you wish to speak on any item on the agenda, 
including any item on the Consent Calendar or the Ceremonial Calendar, please submit a speaker request form for that 
item. If you wish to speak on a matter that is not on the agenda, please do so during the Community Participation Forum. 
 
The Agenda and related Staff reports are available on the City’s website: www.ci.guadalupe.ca.us Friday before Council 
meeting. 
 
Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available the Friday before Council meetings at the Administration Office at City Hall 918 Obispo Street, 
Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 4:30 pm, and also posted 72 hours prior to the meeting.  The City may 
charge customary photocopying charges for copies of such documents. Any documents distributed to a majority of the 
City Council regarding any item on this agenda less than 72 hours before the meeting will be made available for inspection 
at the meeting and will be posted on the City’s website and made available for inspection the day after the meeting at 
the Administrator Office at City Hall 918 Obispo Street, Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 4:30 pm. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
including review of the Agenda and related documents, please contact the Administration Office at (805) 356.3891 at 
least 72 hours prior to the meeting.  This will allow time for the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to the meeting. 

 

1. ROLL CALL:  
 

  Council Member Liliana Cardenas 
  Council Member Gilbert Robles 
  Council Member Eugene Costa Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tempore Tony Ramirez 
  Mayor Ariston Julian 

 

mailto:juana@ci.guadalupe.ca.us
http://www.ci.guadalupe.ca.us/


November 23, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 5 

 

 
2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4. AGENDA REVIEW 

At this time the City Council will review the order of business to be conducted and receive requests 
for, or make announcements regarding, any change(s) in the order of business.  

 
5. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION FORUM 

Each person will be limited to a discussion of three (3) minutes or as directed by the Mayor.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on these matters unless they are 
listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future City Council 
meeting. 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR  

The following items are presented for City Council approval without discussion as a single agenda 
items in order to expedite the meeting.  Should a Council Member wish to discuss or disapprove an 
item, it must be dropped from the blanket motion of approval and considered as a separate item. 

 
A. Waive the reading in full of all Ordinances and Resolutions. Ordinances on the Consent 

Calendar will be adopted by the same vote cast as the first meeting, unless City Council 
indicates otherwise. 
 

B. Approve payment of warrants for the period ending November 18, 2021. 
 

C. Approve the Minutes of the City Council special meeting of November 2, 2021, to be ordered 
filed. 

 
D. Approve the Minutes of the City Council regular meeting of November 9, 2021, to be ordered 

filed. 
 
E. Accept the October 2021 Financial Report. 
 
F. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-90 authorizing staff to apply for the CalFire Urban and 

Community Forestry grant program for funding to create an urban forest management plan, 
plant trees, and accept and execute the grant.  

 
G. MONTHLY REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 

1. Public Safety Department: 
a. Police Department report for October 2021 
b. Fire Department report for October 2021 
c. Code Compliance report for October 2021 

2. City Treasurer’s report for October 2021 
3. Human Resources report for October 2021 



November 23, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 3 of 5 

 

 

7. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: (Information Only) 
 

8. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT: (Information Only) 
 

9. MAYOR’S REPORT- UPDATES: 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 

10. Broadband Strategic Plan.  
 
Written Report: Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Recommendation: That the City Council: 
a. Receive a presentation from Marjie Kirn, Executive Director from the Santa Barbara County 

Association of Governments on a regional broadband strategic plan for Santa Barbara County. 
b. Approve and authorize the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of Understanding with Santa 

Barbara County Association of Governments (SBCAG), County of Santa Barbara, and the cities 
of Santa Barbara, Santa Maria, Lompoc, Goleta, Carpinteria, Guadalupe, Solvang, and Buellton 
to prepare a regional broadband strategic plan and financially contribute $5,422.63 toward this 
effort from a portion of the City’s American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds. 

  
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
11. Crandall 12th Street Apartments – Design Review Permit (2021-049-DR). 

 
Written Report: Bill Scott, City Planner 
Recommendation: That the City Council: 
a. Receive a presentation from staff; 
b. Conduct a public hearing, including 1) an opportunity for the applicant to present the proposed 

project, and b) receive any comments from the public; and 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-88 approving the major Design Review Permit 2021-049-DR, for the 

Crandall 12th Street apartment project.  
 

12. Edwards Olivera Street Apartments – Design Review Permit (2021-078-DR). 
 
Written Report: Bill Scott, City Planner 
Recommendation: That the City Council: 
a. Receive a presentation from staff; 
b. Conduct a public hearing, including: 1) an opportunity for the applicant to present the proposed 

project, and b) receive any comments from the public; and 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-89 approving the Design Review Permit 2021-078-DR, for the 

Edwards Olivera Street 5-unit multi-family complex.  
 

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

14. ANNOUNCEMENTS – COUNCIL ACTIVITY/COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 



November 23, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 4 of 5 

 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
amended agenda was posted on the City Hall display case and website not less than 72 hours prior to the 
meeting. Dated this 19th day of November 2021. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Todd Bodem 



November 23, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 5 of 5 

 

 
PROPOSED FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 

Council Meeting:  Date and Subject Department Agenda Category 
Tuesday, December 14, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 
Recognizing “Community Changers” for their yearlong 
cleanup the City efforts 

 Ceremonial Calendar 

Recognizing Food Distribution Volunteers  Ceremonial Calendar 
Little House by the Park (Annual Cleanup Update) 
Presentation 

 Presentation  

Cancellation of the December 28th CC Meeting City Administrator Consent Calendar 
November 2021 Financial Report  Finance Director Consent Calendar 
Master Fee Schedule CPI Update  Finance Director Consent Calendar  
Caltrans Recommendation – Guadalupe St. ADA Project Public Works Dept Consent Calendar 
Short Term Rental -Continuation of Public Hearing City Attorney Public Hearing 
Royal Theater Expansion – Public Hearing Planning Department Public Hearing 
   
   
Tuesday, January 11, 2022, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 
Public Hearing Proposed Water & Sewer Rates (First 
Reading Ordinance) 

Public Works Dept. Public Hearing 

National School Choice Week  Ceremonial Calendar 
   
   
   
Tuesday, January 25, 2022, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 
Second Reading – Ordinance Proposed Water & Sewer 
Rates 

Public Works Dept. Consent Calendar 

   
   

Other Unscheduled Items Proposed 
Date of 

Item 

Department Agenda Category 

Tree Ordinance  Public Works New Business 
Sidewalk Vending Ordinance  Planning Department New Business 
Vacant Property Ordinance  Administration Dept New Business 
Sign Ordinance  Planning Dept New Business 
Pasadera Public Infrastructure Dedication  Public Works Dept New Business 
Food Truck and Special Event Ordinance  Planning Dept New Business 
Gift Policy  City Attorney New Business 
Master Fee Schedule Update  Finance Department Workshop 
Pasquini Lease Agreement  Public Works Dept. Consent Calendar 
Planning Software Agreement   Consent Calendar 
Terry Bauer – Proclamation   Ceremonial Calendar 
Goal Setting FY 21-22 Approval  Administration Regular Business 



Prepared by: 

Agenda Item No. 6B 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of November 23, 2021 

Approved by: 
Veronica Fabian 
Finance Account Clerk 

Reviewed by 
Lorena Zarate 
Finance Director 

Todd Bodem 
City Administrator 

SUBJECT: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Payment of warrants for the period ending November 18, 2021 to be Approved for 

payment by the City Council. Subject to having been certified as being in 

conformity with the budget by the Finance Department staff. 

That the City Council review and approve the listing of hand checks and warrants to be paid on 

November 24, 2021. 

BACKGROUND: 

Submittal of the listing of warrants issued by the City to vendors for the period and explanations for 

disbursement of these warrants. An exception, such as an emergency hand check may be required to be 

issued and paid prior to submittal of the warrant listing, however, this warrant will be identified as 

"Ratify" on the warrant listing. 

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



November 2, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 1 of 7 

MINUTES 

City of Guadalupe 

Special Meeting of the Guadalupe City Council 

Tuesday, November 2, 2021 

6:00 pm 

City Hall, 918 Obispo Street, Council Chambers 

1. ROLL CALL:

Council Member Liliana Cardenas 

Council Member Gilbert Robles 

Council Member Eugene Costa Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tempore Tony Ramirez 

Mayor Ariston Julian 

All were present. (The abbreviation “CM” is being used for Council Member in these minutes.) 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION FORUM

Each person will be limited to a discussion of three (3) minutes or as directed by the Mayor.  Pursuant
to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on these matters unless they are listed on the
agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  City Council may direct staff to
investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future City Council meeting.

There were no requests to speak.

REGULAR BUSINESS 

5. Consideration of City of Guadalupe Firefighter’s Association, International Association of Fire

Fighters, Local 4403 Memorandum of Understanding Tentative Agreement.

Written Report: Emiko Gerber, Human Resources Manager

Recommendation: That the City Council approve the tentative agreement for a Memorandum of

Understanding with the International Association of Fire Fighters, Local 4403 for a three-year period

retroactive to 07/01/2021 through 06/30/2024.

Emiko Gerber, Human Resources Manager, briefly explained the tentative MOU with the International

Association of Fire Fighters, Local 4403 (hereinafter referred to as the “Association”). She then turned

things over the Ché Johnson, attorney with the law firm, Liebert, Cassidy & Whitmore, who is

representing the City in negotiations. Mr. Johnson explained that the City has been in negotiations

Agenda Item No. 6C



November 2, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 2 of 7 

 

with IAFF for over two (2) months now. He said, “The last round of proposals offered that Association 

included the City’s ‘Last, Best, and Final Offer’ (LBFO). We thought that the Association wouldn’t 

accept the LBFO and we then declared impasse in the negotiations.  We were prepared to go through 

impasse procedures including potentially fact finding. But before the timeframe for fact finding 

occurred, the attorney representing the Association sent an email saying the Association was willing 

to accept the City’s LBFO.” 

 

Mr. Johnson went on to explain that the Council has before them the LBFO that was accepted and 

contained the following provisions:  1) 3-year term; 2) change from the current 14-day FLSA pay period 

to a 28-day FLSA pay period. An important part from the City’s perspective is that the evaluation period 

to determine if the fire fighter has worked overtime is doubled = less of a chance for fluctuation within 

a 28-day period where we can normalize the schedule and better control overtime; there’s also the 

reopener clause if overtime continues beyond the approved budget, the parties can reopen the 

agreement and consider other cost-saving measures, and 3) shift trades, allowing employees, with 

prior approval of the City, to trade shifts that will not impact overtime. 

 

He further said, “In exchange for the change from the 14-day FLSA pay period to a 28-day FLSA pay 

period, there were wage increases as follows: 1) Year 1 = Status Quo; 2) Year 2 (FY 22/23) = 2.0%, and 

3) Year 3 (FY 23/24) = 2.5%. There are significant costs the department has seen in overtime.  This will 

start to correct that overtime.”  The discussion was turned back to the Council. 

 

CM Ramirez said, “I have a couple questions, not on the actual MOU but on the health of our finances. 

Currently, with the current MOU, we’re at 30% overage. We be should at 25% now. Looking at the 

LBFO, there are a lot of things that are currently in place that will make an impact. But will it be a 

significant impact to make sure that at the end of the fiscal year, we’re not going to be over the budget, 

specifically with overtime? And it’s also not touching incentives.”  

 

Ms. Lorena Zarate, Finance Director, responded, “There will be savings from the FLSA change in the 

28-day period. Also, there will be $113,000 reimbursed from the mutual aid agreement. Estimating 

what the year would be with the changes in the tentative agreement, we still would be over budget in 

overtime at the end of this fiscal year.” 

 

CM Ramirez said, “Given that things are unpredictable, particularly with things in the fire world, 

looking at being pulled away for mutual aid, someone gets hurt or sick, etc. We’re dealing with that 

on the police side when someone gets pulled away for a time, having to cover staff. MOU doesn’t 

necessarily address all that we have on there. Also, another part of this is that when this was 

negotiated, in good faith, we didn’t have all the answers on the American Cares Act either. One of the 

things I’m trying to see the larger picture where I can give the okay is on the Battalion Chief. This leaves 

no room for anything like that. To add anything for sustainability down the line.” 

 

Ms. Anna Marie Michaud, City Treasurer, asked, for clarification on the shift trade language in the 

tentative agreement. Mr. Johnson said, “The shift trade language we adopted is pursuant to the Fair 

Labor Standards Act (FLSA). The general rule, according to FLSA, when someone is eligible for overtime, 

all hours worked should be paid. But in Section 207, there is an exception to that general rule. Fire 

fighters look at hours “scheduled to work” that are traded to determine overtime, not “hours worked”. 



November 2, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 3 of 7 

 

That would be another mechanism to help reduce overtime under the FLSA.  That language was not in 

the current MOU.” 

 

CM Cardenas, “Going back to how the information on the estimated year-end line item for overtime, 

it says it doesn’t include step increases and additional incentives. Why would that be under the 

overtime line item?” 

 

Ms. Zarate said, “Receiving additional incentives equates to an increase in the hourly rate. If the 

employee worked overtime, the overtime rate would include incentives. Step increases are not 

automatic but are based on performance. They may or may not receive a step increase which are 

normally 5.0%. Not knowing if they would receive step increases, that could be more in the next years. 

So, those are the factors.” 

 

Mayor Julian asked, “Do we have definitions for what’s applicable for incentives?”  Ms. Gerber said, 

“Yes, in the current MOU, there are twelve defined certifications or a potential of up to 18% of incentive 

pay.”  CM Ramirez then said, “The tentative agreement we have here doesn’t address incentive pay. 

Ms. Gerber added, “No, it doesn’t address incentive pay. There are two categories, education and 

certificate.”  CM Ramirez continued commenting, “So, it’s 18% above what a base salary is. Potentially 

compounded. Right?”  Ms. Gerber said, “Correct. Compounded with the potential of 23% on top of 

base rate with educational incentives.” 

 

The mayor asked if we had information on where the Fire staff was in terms of incentives. Ms. Gerber 

said, “Some employees are in the middle.  12% is the highest now paid in incentives.” 

 

CM Cardenas referenced the staff report saying, “It says that the City will likely reopen negotiations if 

overtime is exceeding the budget. Is this because we’re already exceeding the overtime budget? Why 

is that?” Ms. Gerber said, “Based upon our YTD for the 1st Quarter, there was $110,000 approved in 

overtime but $90,000 has been budgeted for the full year. We will receive a reimbursement which is 

an estimate based on calculated base wage with benefits, I believe. The $113,000, even though we 

paid out $110,000 in overtime, also includes benefits, as well. We applied that to the entire year for 

the projection and Lorena was conservative with those figures. That’s some of the data we wanted to 

review with the Association before we moved forward with this tentative agreement. However, they 

didn’t accept our invitation to meet and review those figures.” 

 

Mayor Julian then said, “So, it’s an unknown.”  Mr. Johnson added, “Correct. This agreement would 

allow us to come back to the table and reopen this agreement to try and achieve more cost savings. 

One of the council members brought up the issue of incentives, specialty pay. That was something in 

our original proposal and were talking to the Association about, having a future discussion on 

curtailing and reducing costs of some of those proposals. But the Union was very much against that 

and was part of the LFBO. We did strike that provision. But the reopener would allow us to come back 

and reopen any economic part of the Agreement if the overtime continues to be above the budgeted 

amount.” 

 



November 2, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 4 of 7 

 

CM Costa, Jr. said, “On the OES mutual aid when they go out on a strike team, they only reimburse for 

strike team hours while out in the field and not for the overtime here to cover. Is that right?”  Ms. 

Gerber said, “That is correct. There is no reimbursement for coverage at the local station.” 

 

CM Ramirez then asked, “The reopener is part of the agreement. If the Council denies this tentative 

agreement, then what happens?”  Mr. Johnson responded, “Staff is recommending the proposal. If the 

Council rejects this tentative agreement, it sets the parties back to the table to continue negotiations. 

The status quo or current system would be in place. There would be no negotiated protections in place 

for curtailing overtime, such as shift trades. I would anticipate that the negotiations would be very 

difficult. It would be very foreseeable that we would probably reach another impasse. But we would 

essentially be sent back to the negotiations table to try and negotiate terms that the City Council would 

find agreeable.” 

 

CM Cardenas also asked, “If staff believes going back to negotiations will be tough, we already know 

that. Is that still anticipated?”  Mr. Johnson said “I think negotiations will be difficult because these 

negotiations have been hard. Employees don’t like to take pay cuts, and they don’t like to see the 

amount of their overtime going down. If the Council rejects this agreement, that will even be harder 

than if we used the reopener of the agreement to come back to the table.”  

 

CM Costa, Jr. asked, “Fire doesn’t want to do a different schedule on their shifts?” Mr. Johnson said, 

“Correct, we originally proposed an entirely different schedule. We had looked at a schedule that we 

thought would be the most efficient way to control overtime. The Union was completely against that 

schedule. They didn’t want that proposed schedule. This idea of the FLSA pay period change was during 

the back-and-forth process of negotiations and was the most acceptable term that the Union was 

willing to accept.” 

 

Mayor Julian said, “On page 2 of 3 on the staff report, ‘Fiscal Impact’, there’s a lot of unknowns that I 

see. We already know that we’re over in overtime. There’s a 10%+ increase with different health 

benefits, and everything else. It’s a little spooky not to have a handle on finances as we look forward. 

There’s an alternative that’s noted here in terms of not approving the tentative agreement. What 

triggers, in terms of time, then coming back to the table to negotiate?” 

 

Mr. Johnson said, “If it was the Council’s direction to reject the proposal, then we would send out a 

notice to the Union immediately. I would anticipate that they would be reluctant to come back to the 

table. They may even threaten an unfair labor practice charge. But consistent with the City Council’s 

direction, staff will do exactly what the Council wants us to do. We’d be very vigilant in moving forward 

in starting negotiations and try reaching an agreement the Council will accept. In terms of a 

timeframe, we would at least need to assume about a period of three-to-four months of additional 

negotiations. I’m being a little conservative there by overestimating but I think that’s a fair estimation. 

An additional three-to-four months.” 

 

The mayor then asked, “What triggers an unfair labor practice?”  Mr. Johnson answered, “I’m not 

saying there’d be any merit to it but I think It would be naïve to assume that the Association wouldn’t 

try to defend their position as strongly as possible.  I don’t know what the basis of that would be, but 

I do believe that we have been negotiating in good faith and have tried to reach an agreement in good 



November 2, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 5 of 7 

 

faith. It’s the Council’s discretion to either accept or reject the proposal. As the staff report indicates, 

the City Council has the ability give us direction and send us back to the table if that’s the desire of the 

Council. However, during the period while we’re still in negotiations, the overtime costs will continue.” 

 

Mayor Julian said, “Staff has looked at the alternatives and has given us this format in terms of 

approving with an alternative. Do we have enough information that we would benefit financially if we 

denied or rejected the tentative agreement?”  Ms. Gerber, “Staff has outlined some additional 

contributing factors that we’d like to bring to the table. We’ve talked about incentives, including 

education pay, and restructuring that program. There’s Article 13D regarding overtime. Currently, 

overtime includes vacation, sick leave, compensatory time off, etc. Those are some contributing factors 

we’d like to address with the Association. Also, minimum staffing. At the current time, the MOU says 

that if an employee is out for vacation or sick leave purposes, another employee needs to fill in. A 1-

to-1 ratio. There are other areas we can look at that can be contributing factors to the overtime we’re 

currently seeing.” 

 

City Attorney Sinco questioned whether the mayor’s question was answered and asked the mayor if 

he wanted to rephrase it. Mayor Julian asked again, “Where would we be financially if we went with 

this versus if we stayed at the current rate?” Ms. Zarate said, “If the Council denies or rejects the 

agreement, we’d look at the estimated costs for this fiscal year, including COLA projections. There may 

be step increases and additional certifications that would increase the costs, in addition to additional 

attorney costs for the negotiations.”  Mayor Julian said, “You need a crystal ball.” 

 

CM Cardenas asked, “The $113,000 reimbursement for mutual aid. Does that cover a large portion of 

the overtime? Ms. Zarate said, “I think so. Chief said most of the salary is covered for the employee(s) 

out in the field, dollar-for-dollar all related benefits, but only regular salary for the employee(s) 

backfilling at the station here.”  

 

CM Cardenas continued asking, “Is the overtime mostly for mutual aid?”  Ms. Zarate said, “Yes, for the 

first three (3) months of the current fiscal year, it is mostly mutual aid.”  CM Robles asked, “Can you 

define mutual aid?” 

 

Chief Cash added, “Let me answer the first question. Yes, in this situation, most of the overtime is 

mutual aid. But because of the way it’s structured, there’s a continuing wave of overtime. They’re paid 

automatic overtime. That’s the issue.” Ms. Gerber explained the current 2/4 schedule with the built-in 

overtime. Two (2) days on/four (4) days off schedule as well as anticipated overtime with the current 

schedule versus actual overtime. She said, “We were slightly over budget at the start of the quarter, 

and it accelerated which was due to mutual aid fighting the wildfires.” The mayor then said, “So, the 

projection is $87,000 difference over the budget.” Ms. Gerber said, “Yes, at this time.” 

 

Chief Cash then said, “A correction I want to make is when we say, ‘mutual aid’. I look at this in two 

different ways. There’s actual mutual aid we have for Santa Barbara County to where we go and help 

our neighbors. That’s the one we have to adhere to.  As for wildfires, that’s a ‘if we can’. I have the 

option not to send a team to go to fight those wildfires. We can control that aspect of it, but it’s the 

automatic overtime that I have no control over that exacerbates the budget.” 

 



November 2, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 6 of 7 

 

Mayor Julian asked, “Given that scenario, if we look at the alternative to go to back to the table, again 

looking at the crystal ball, would it result in reduction in overtime?”  Ms. Gerber answered, “I don’t 

know if Lorena could answer that question effectively. We anticipated overtime for sick leave and 

vacation coverage. We itemized mutual aid separately as it’s a variable that could or could not affect 

us. But we should factor in coverage for sick leave and vacation coverage. The numbers we came up 

with are reasonable. I think that’s a realistic approach because we have one Fire Captain and one Fire 

Engineer per 48-hour shift. The number of hours used to project this number is a little bit lower than 

the number of actual hours used for sick and vacation coverage for last year. One of the drivers here 

is incentive pay.” 

 

The mayor then said, “So, we have a choice. To me, it seems there are more questions than there are 

answers. More problems if we accept it, that’s my opinion, if we don’t go back and start to look at the 

other elements within this as we proceed. Of course, Fire is important. All of public safety is important. 

We’ve made great strides bringing up their pay accordingly. Just seems there’s an excessive amount 

of resources going…we receive Measure N monies and others, but it seems there’s a leak in terms of 

where those monies are going. We have to anticipate that money isn’t going to be here all the time. If 

we see that it’s being jeopardized based on what we’re seeing here, it brings up the question if we 

should go back and make this more finite so there’s a better financial outcome for the City.” 

 

CM Cardenas said, “My concern is if we need to go back to negotiations, the Association already said, 

it says here, that they’re not willing to reopen negotiations. Right?” The mayor commented, “Which 

means we go back to impasse.”  Mr. Johnson said, “To be clear about that point, the Association 

wanted this agreement in place first before they had any other discussions. We would be very 

aggressive getting the Union back to the table. If we need to, we might even have the City look at an 

unfair labor practice if they were refusing to bargain. But as I said earlier, it will be very difficult 

discussions.” 

 

CM Ramirez added, “This is not to single out any group. I’m falling closely what the mayor’s saying. 

The Council must be stewards of the entire treasury. Looking at one aspect of it, there’s more that 

could be done. We’re all-important parts of the mechanism to make it work. When one area’s not 

working, it affects the others. No matter what the other agreements were that would before us, we’d 

have to take the same critical look, regardless.” The mayor then said, “And I think we have. We’re 

looking at our funds pretty tightly. So, the recommendation is approving the tentative agreement or 

not.”  

 

Mayor Julian asked, “Is there a motion to approve the tentative agreement as specified?”  There was 

no response.  

 

The mayor then asked, “Is there a motion to not approve the agreement as specified?”  Motion made 

by Council Member Costa, Jr. and seconded by Council Member Ramirez to not approve the 

tentative agreement between the City of Guadalupe and the International Association of Fire 

Fighters, Local 4403. Ayes:  Julian, Ramirez, Cardenas, Costa, Jr. Robles Noes: 0 5-0 Passed. 

 

Mr. Johnson said, “Thank you, Council. We’ll be updating you on the status of negotiations in the 

future.” 



November 2, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 7 of 7 

 

 

Mayor Julian added, “These are tough decisions for both City staff and the Fire staff. We work with 

the community and Fire and public safety knows that. It’s never our position to negate anybody’s 

pocketbook in terms of their livelihood. But as Antonio mentioned, we must look at the overall picture 

where we are as a city. We’re coming out of some doom and gloom over the last six (6) years. I think 

we need to keep the shoulder to the wheel to make sure that everything that comes up, expenses, are 

brought up to us by the staff. Brought to us for decision-making. It’s not an easy decision.” 

 

CM Cardenas said, “I want to say thank you to the staff, both sides. Negotiations are difficult. I know 

you reached an agreement, but we do need to oversee everything. So, thank you to all our staff. I know 

you’ve met for quite some time, but this is just something we need to make sure. We’re continuing to 

progress and continuing making that progress we’ve been doing with our finances.” 

 

Mayor Julian asked if there was any further discussion from Council or staff. CM Costa Jr. said, “We’re 

five (5) council members up here. And the staff has to do what they have to do. We appreciate it. But 

the five (5) of us up here. We’re in a position where the citizens voted us in to make the right decision 

for our City. Not to take away anything that a prior council member said but it’s time to make the best 

impact for the City to continue to improve financially, not waste more money in certain aspects.  And 

we can use money to upgrade our City and not in just one particular area. It’s not our intention to say 

that we don’t believe in what anybody’s doing. We don’t feel that way. We have to do this for the City. 

That’s the role of the Council. What’s in the best interest for the City. A decision like this is a difficult 

one but one that needs to be made.”  Mayor Julian responded. “Thank you. Well said.” 

 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Motion was made by Council Member Costa, Jr. and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to 

adjourn the meeting. 5-0 Passed.  Meeting adjourned at 6:42pm. 

 

 Prepared by:      Approved by: 
 
 
 ______________________________   ______________________________________ 
             Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk    Ariston Julian, Mayor 

 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES Page 1 of 10 

 MINUTES 

City of Guadalupe 
Regular Meeting of the Guadalupe City Council 

 Tuesday, November 9, 2021, at 6:00 pm 

City Hall, 918 Obispo Street, Council Chambers 

1. ROLL CALL:

Council Member Liliana Cardenas 

Council Member Gilbert Robles 

Council Member Eugene Costa Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tempore Tony Ramirez 

Mayor Ariston Julian 

CM Costa, Jr was absent.  All other members were present.  (Note:  The abbreviation “CM” is being 

used for “Council Member” in these minutes.)  

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. AGENDA REVIEW

At this time the City Council will review the order of business to be conducted and receive requests
for, or make announcements regarding, any change(s) in the order of business.

CM Ramirez requested to pull Item #7F, “Adopt Resolution No. 2021-87 adopting a classification and
salary range for Fire Battalion Chief” from the agenda.  Per CM Ramirez, “It’s being pulled for staff
to have more time to work on it.  Staff concurs with that.”

5. PRESENTATION

• Karen Twibell, 1st District Representative – Redistricting

Ms. Twibell began by saying, “I was talking with Tony (Ramirez), and he said that the Council is 
already in the process of reviewing maps.”  She then said that she was going to go through some of 
the slides but felt that the last few slides were informational showing the process of viewing maps 
and could just be viewed on the website.  

She began by saying, “Every 10 years census data are used to redraw election district lines.  2020 
was a difficult year for census gathering.  It was hard getting people to help with the census, and 
then there was the pandemic.  The Citizens Independent Redistricting Commission (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘Commission’) was to get information in April, but it just went up on the website.  This 
has caused a delay in giving people time to review the maps and give input.  However, the 
Commission is still looking for public information to ensure diverse communities are fairly 

Agenda Item No. 6D



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 2 of 10 

 

represented. If you didn’t want to draw a map, you still could give your input on your community of 
interest.  You could give information on your current district and how you might want to see it.” 
 
She spoke about various rules for drawing district lines but focused on several rules: The California 
Voting Rights Act, undivided neighborhoods and communities of interest and easily identifiable 
boundaries.  Ms. Twibell said, “Look at how Santa Barbara County is made up.  Santa Maria, with its 
huge population, there’s no way not to divide it.  It’s difficult.  You’d try to find a boundary that’s 
easily identifiable.  You want to make sure the districts are compact.  In the County, there are large 
areas of land with no population.  One of the districts then will look really large in comparison to the 
other districts.” 
 
Ms. Twibell then focused on “Demographic Summary of Existing Districts”.  The data presented 
showed the breakout of 2020 census, total population by ethnic division and citizen voting age 
population by ethnic division for the County’s current plan.  The percentage of deviation for the 2020 
census is 11.17% which is over what we’re shooting for which is under 10%.  Total population for the 
County is shown at 446,704.  When divided by the five (5) districts, the targeted population is 
approximately 89,341.” 
 
She highlighted November 12th as the upcoming deadline date for all drawn maps for the 
Commission to consider.  Ms. Twibell then walked through how to view submitted drawn maps.  Go 
to ‘drawsantabarbaracounty.org’ and pull up the ‘View Draft Maps’ tab.  All drawn maps submitted 
as a specific date will be displayed by map number and link.  She did say that drawn maps submitted 
prior to the updated census data being available, those maps needed to be redrawn.  She then said 
that the remainder of her presentation could be found on the website.  
 
Mayor Julian asked, “Maps can be accepted until Friday, November 12th.  Is that still correct?”  Ms. 
Twibell said, “Yes, the 12th until noon.” Ms. Twibell then walked through some examples of drawn 
maps on the website with specific information on each drawn map. 
 
CM Cardenas asked, “The percentage of deviation.  The deviation is for the targeted population?”  
Ms. Twibell explained that that percentage is the difference between the most populated area and 
the least populated area, divided by 89,300, the targeted population.  
 
Ms. Twibell went back to show how you can see each submitted drawn map on the website.  She 
said, “Each map comes with specific information.  On ‘Santa Barbara Interactive Map’, you can 
enlarge to see actual streets, and what is shown on the map, what was drawn as divisions or 
boundaries.  She said, “On November 12th, we will be reviewing maps in Santa Barbara on zoom.  
We’re still looking for input from the public.  If you go to the home page, you can write a narrative 
or make comments on a specific map.” She then asked if there were any questions. 

 
 

6. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION FORUM 

Each person will be limited to a discussion of three (3) minutes or as directed by the Mayor.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on these matters unless they are 
listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future City Council 
meeting. 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 3 of 10 

 

 
The first speaker was Frances Romero who said, “I’m here to voice my opinion that the Redistricting 
Commission should be careful not to confuse the position of an advocacy group with the desires of 
our community.  I’ve been a resident for almost 25 years.  My husband is a former police officer, Post 
Commander of the American Legion, and I’ve held positions ranging from interim City Clerk to 
Recreation & Planning Commissioner to Mayor.  Together we’ve worked on several local events to 
benefit our community.  I’ve also been involved with the Dunes Center since 2002.  Our perspective 
about our community is far different than that of CAUSE.  I’ve talked to several community members, 
including Shirley Boydstun and John Velasquez.  Shirley is not able to be here tonight, but she asked 
me to convey that my comments are the same as hers. 
 
We’ve lived in three (3) districts without ever moving, all of us here tonight who have been in 
Guadalupe.  And now it’s time to move again.  This time we should be put back in District #4.  Our 
kids go to Righetti High School and during that time, they make lifelong relationships.  Guadalupe 
should aspire to be more like Orcutt from the standpoint of a healthy downtown core.  That’s what 
this community needs.  After all, we’re the only coastal community not flourishing.  I realize that 
Covid has been a terrible hit to every community in the country, but we can do more with our 
downtown area.  We need good examples and good partners with representation that can help us 
lift us up and do better.  We have so many positives, and we have more in common with District #4 
than District #5.  We’re more than just our ethnic demographics.  Being lumped in with District #5 
will only dilute Guadalupe’s voice.  District #5 will be fine as a majority district without us. 

 
I’d really like the Commission to understand that the people who live here, who work here, who have 
put down roots here, who have purchased homes, who have lived here for multi-generations are not 
necessarily the people that CAUSE is representing.  So, I think it’s very important that you listen to 
the people who live here and have invested their time and civic engagement.  Thank you.” 

 
Reina Chavez then spoke.  She said, “I’m here as a mother, a resident of Guadalupe and a member 
of the Guadalupe Community Changers, a parent organization made up of individuals who have 
been historically disenfranchised and are dedicated to voicing community concerns.  We advocate 
for civic participation, education and social justice to live in a more inclusive and just environment 
where we can all have the same opportunities.  With that said, our group supports the redistricting 
map that CAUSE has put together.  Guadalupe and Santa Maria have similar demographics and 
comprehension with other communities in the County that impact our political representation.  
Therefore, we should be merged as one district.  It is important to remember that all regions should 
and must be equally represented to uplift all communities that are encompassed by our county 
borders.”   Note:  Veronica Tran translated Ms. Chavez’s comments into Spanish. 
 
Mayor Julian asked if the staff or Council had any questions.  He then asked, “The bottom line is that 
this information from the Redistricting Commission will then go to the Board of Supervisors to draw 
the lines or what’s the process?”  Ms. Twibell said, “The Commission draws the final map.  This is the 
first time the Board of Supervisors are not drawing the maps.  So, we really want community input.  
During Covid and all, it’s been a difficult time.  We’ve tried to get the word out.  We do want people 
to come to the meetings or even zoom in and give their comments.  For example, I can say that 
CAUSE was at the last meeting and had at least twenty speakers.  That’s why we’re encouraging 
people to give their comments.  You can do it online now to say why you’re supporting a specific 
map.  That’s the information we go over and that we need.  The Commission itself…we do not draw 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 4 of 10 

 

the lines, so we’re looking for public input.  The maps will be narrowed down to between 3-5 maps 
based on similarities and by population.  Let us know what the people want.” 
 
CM Ramirez said, “Thank you, Ms. Twibell.  From our short time that you’ve been here, you might 
have noticed that we’re a pretty vocal group of a Council. Prior councils might have been somewhat 
isolated and focused on Guadalupe issues which is important.  But we’re also advocates for larger 
issues.  You’ll see a strong statement from at least a few of the council members here and 
representatives for the community.  It’s important to listen to everyone.  It’s not just people who 
have roots here.  Everyone has a voice and an opinion.  Everyone’s a community member whether 
you’ve lived here one year or 30 years.  It’s important to know that this is a community and there 
shouldn’t be a weight.  For me, that’s something I hold true.  As a Council, we may have our strong 
opinions on where people might fit.  Hopefully, we can come to a consensus to be able to provide 
the Commission with direction the City is looking for as far as a specific district.” 
 
Ms. Twibell emphasized, “You can do that as a City Council and as individuals.  Also, you can take 
into consideration population growth.  If you’re looking at one district having a lower population, 
you’re thinking about the potential growth.  We know that Guadalupe, Santa Maria and Orcutt are 
all growing.  We don’t see that much growth in the South County.  Remember the districts will last 
10 years.” 
 
Mayor Julian added, “Santa Maria passed a resolution where they wanted to be and broadcasted it 
all over Santa Barbara County.  By this coming Friday, November 12th, you need input, a decision 
from, Council’s decision.” At this point, City Attorney Sinco interjected, “This topic can’t be discussed.  
It’s not been agendized.  It needs to be noticed and agendized.” 
 
The mayor then said, “We should have been way ahead of the game here when this process all came 
forward.  It’s been almost a year now that it’s been moving forward.  Sometimes I feel like the tail of 
the dog.  Instead of the dog wagging the tail, we get the tail wagging us.  But I’m glad that we had 
people speak up with their opinions and what they consider.  From Council’s perspective, one of the 
things I was looking at was consensus but that doesn’t hold a lot of weight when it comes to the full 
Council taking a stand on it.  Does the Council want a special meeting to state formally what our 
desires are?  Maybe there are no desires.  Maybe you want to stay with Isla Vista.  I’m just polling 
the Council.”  City Attorney Sinco said, “There’s no problem to put this on at a special meeting.  You 
just can’t take the action now.” The mayor asked if there was a need to do that, to take a position.  
City Attorney Sinco said, “There’s another option.  Is it possible for the council members to submit 
individual map as an individual and then as a member of the City Council submit individually or would 
they only count as one map?” 
 
Ms. Twibell said, “You can submit multiple maps as an individual.  I want to clarify that the 
submission of a map is by 12noon, Friday, November 12th.  But support for maps can be given during 
the next seven (7) meetings.” CM Cardenas asked, “If we want to make a map ourselves, we can do 
that individually and then can support later.”  Mayor Julian said, “There’s more weight taking action 
as the whole City Council for the City rather than individual maps.” 
 
City Attorney Sinco then said, “Looks like there are three (3) options: 1) schedule a special meeting 
and create your own map at the meeting and submit that from the City Council; 2) each individual 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 5 of 10 

 

council member can draw a map, and 3) support a map as a body which can be put on regular 
agenda.  Vote to support a map at the November 23rd council meeting.” 
 
CM Ramirez said, “I have reviewed some of the maps and there are some maps I’d already support.  
So, I wouldn’t need to draw any myself.”  Mayor Julian asked, “What’s the wish of the Council?  
Which way do you want to go?” CM Cardenas said, “So, Tuesday, November 23rd …we already have 
a special meeting coming up.” Mayor said, “I just want to make sure that our influence as 
representatives of our community is brought before the Commission.  We can do it individually, but 
it holds more weight to do it as the Council.  Or we may all disagree, too.”  
 
City Attorney Sinco said, “Consensus then is that the Council will consider supporting a previously 
submitted map and the Council will not submit its own.  Correct?” Mayor Julian said, “Yes, correct.  
We don’t have to reinvent the wheel.” City Attorney Sinco then said, “That makes sense.  But then 
to remind you, everyone can support other maps, too.” 
 
Ms. Twibell said, “Remember, we’re going to be reviewing maps so the sooner your comments are 
submitted, the better.  The November 23rd meeting would seem to be late.” 
 
City Attorney Sinco then said, “The Council has a joint meeting with the School District on 
Wednesday, November 17th, at 6:00 p.m.  I recommend a special meeting before or after that one 
for the Council to vote as one body.  If you meet on the 17th, the Commission will have that input for 
the four (4) remaining Commission meetings.  If you waited until the 23rd regular Council meeting, 
there are two Commission meetings on the 18th and 22nd where the Commission wouldn’t have your 
vote.” 
 
CM Ramirez said, “November 17th wouldn’t be bad because we’d be able to review the maps that 
would have submitted up to the deadline on that Friday, November 12th.  If we did the 17th, we could 
do it before the joint meeting with the School District.” City Attorney Sinco said, “You already have 
the meeting with the School District.  You can meet at 5:00 p.m. in the Council chambers and 
afterwards, meet with the School District at 6:00 p.m. at the District’s Media Center.  The special 
notice would show the meeting would be here in the City Council chambers.”  Ms. Twibell said, “As 
a reminder, there is a meeting in Santa Maria on Monday, November 15th.” 

 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR  

The following items are presented for City Council approval without discussion as a single agenda 
item in order to expedite the meeting.  Should a Council Member wish to discuss or disapprove an 
item, it must be dropped from the blanket motion of approval and considered as a separate item. 

 
A. Waive the reading in full of all Ordinances and Resolutions. Ordinances on the Consent 

Calendar will be adopted by the same vote cast as the first meeting, unless City Council 
indicates otherwise. 
 

B. Approve payment of warrants for the period ending November 3, 2021. 
 

C. Approve the Minutes of the City Council regular meeting of October 26, 2021, to be ordered 

filed. 
 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 6 of 10 

 

D. Accept the June 2021 Financial Report. 
 

E. Accept the First Quarter FY 2022 Financial Report. 
 

F. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-87 adopting a classification and salary range for Fire Battalion 

Chief.  
 

G. MONTHLY REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 

1. Planning Department report for October 2021 

2. Building Department report for October 2021 

3. Public Works Department report for October 2021 

4. Recreation and Parks report for October 2021 
 

Aside from Item #7F previously pulled from the agenda, there were no other items pulled. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Council Member Robles to 
approve the Consent Calendar, absent Item #7F. 4-0 Passed Absent: Costa, Jr. 

 
 

 

8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: (Information Only) 

 

Mr. Bodem gave a brief update on Pasadera development.  He said, “Every now and then, I check in 

with Craig Smith, developer, to see how things are going.  There is an expected 80-90 units to be 

built each year.  That doesn’t include the time it will take next year to build the bridge.  Sales are 

good.  350 homes gave already been built.  Things sound very positive.” Mayor Julian then said, “It’ll 

take another 4-5 years for full completion.”  Mr. Bodem said, “Yes, considering there’s about a 480-

home build out at 80-90 per year.  The only issue so far has been the PG&E delays.  As for moving 

towards the south end, permits are into the railroad.  We should hear of approvals, hopefully, in the 

next couple of months or so.”  The mayor then added, “Hopefully, we can get that shopping center 

in before long.” 

 

9. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT: (Information Only) 

 

There was no report from Chief Cash. 

 

10. MAYOR’S REPORT- UPDATES: 

 

Mayor Julian briefly spoke about redistricting being very important.  He also talked about cannabis 
with the deadline for applications being Monday, November 15, 2021.  He also said, “The Recreation 
Commission.  Interviews for the Recreation Services Managers are scheduled for Monday, November 
15th.”  The mayor thanked Mr. Bodem for including all the items in the report as he said, “There’s 
really a lot going on.” He then referred to the full Mayor’s Report for more details on the various City 
projects which can be viewed on the City’s website. 

 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 7 of 10 

 

 
11. Appointment of a Council Member to the Loan Advisory Committee (LAC) of the City of Guadalupe 

Microenterprise Assistance Program.  
 

Written Report: Tom Brandeberry, CEO Los Amigos de Guadalupe  
Recommendation: That the Mayor assign one Council Member to the Loan Advisory Committee 
(LAC) and one alternate.  
 
In Mr. Tom Brandeberry’s absence, Mr. Bodem spoke on this item.  He said, “Lorena Zarate, as 
Finance Director, you’re already on the committee as a staff member.  It’s recommended that the 
mayor assign one council member to this committee and assign one council member as an alternate 
to this committee that will evaluate the applicants for loans for the Microenterprise Assistance 
Program.”  At this point, City Attorney Sinco interjected, “Just to clarify, the mayor should assign a 
council member and the Council would ratify your assignment.”   
 
Mayor Julian then said, “I spoke to Tom Brandeberry several months ago.  There are a lot of financial 
details involved here.  I appoint Council Member Liliana Cardenas for this committee with Council 
Member Gilbert Robles as the alternate. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Mayor Julian to confirm the 
appointment of Council Member Liliana Cardenas to the Loan Advisory Committee of the City of 
Guadalupe Microenterprise Assistance Program with Council Member Robles as the alternate.  
4-0 Passed Absent: Costa, Jr.   
 
Mayor Julian thanked both council members for stepping up and accepting these assignments.                                                     

 

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

Mr. Bodem: move ‘Planning Software’ from ‘Nov. 23rd meeting’ to Dec. 14th.  City Attorney Sinco 

said, “In the Mayor’s report, it says that Dude Systems didn’t disclose some important information 

about a continuing contract which the City didn’t have a say in.  But they did, in fact, disclose that 

information.  However, it wasn’t necessarily straightforward.  Staff is considering another software.  

That’s why we’re pulling it.” Mr. Bodem said that the other software would be on the platform with 

Tyler and of a comparable price.  City Attorney Sinco suggested that the item be moved to “Other 

Unscheduled Items” as the report might not be ready by Dec. 14th. 

 

Special Council meeting scheduled for Wednesday, Nov. 17th, at 5:00pm to discuss redistricting 

maps. 

 

CM Ramirez requested that City goals that were set in the summertime be reviewed after the new 

year. 

 

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS - COUNCIL ACTIVITY/COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 8 of 10 

 

CM Ramirez said he was interested in what the new infrastructure federal bill will bring to the City, 

like broadband.  Mayor Julian said, “Speaking of broadband, SBCAG was asking for us…” Mr. Bodem 

interjected, “It’s on the next agenda on Nov. 23rd.” 

 

CM Robles mentioned, “There was nice media coverage for McKenzie Middle School where we had 

a vaccine clinic for children.  I think we might have been the first school in the County to provide 

vaccinations for children.  There was a decent turnout of children.  And I believe they were giving 

booster shots to adults, as well.  Also, Stephanie Krouse painted the murals on Flower & Birch Street 

bus stop.  We’re probably going to get rid of that stop soon, but Stephanie wanted to put her artistic 

talent on it and has received some good feedback on how nice it looks from the neighbors.” Ms. 

Sweeney then commented, “Stephanie has been a delight to work with.  She asked if she could 

practice on those bus stops that are scheduled to be torn down.  She expressed interest in decorating 

other bus stops.  This was her practice round to see things like did the paint take, did it run in the 

rain, etc.  So, I’ll continue to work with her to see how we can paint other bus stops.” CM Robles said, 

“For the future, we’re looking at doing something similar with the electrical utility boxes.” Ms. 

Sweeney said that she is doing some research on that. 

 

CM Cardenas said that she hoped to get a meeting going for the playground equipment for O’Connell 

Park.” Mayor Julian suggested checking with Head Start as there is similar equipment there as would 

be used at O’Connell Park.  Ms. Sweeney said that she’s waiting to hear back from Recreation 

Commissioner Robert Salinas to schedule a meeting. 

 

CM Robles said that there’s a meeting for the Auditorium Ad Hoc Committee scheduled with Shannon 

on Monday, 11/15, at 1:30pm. 

 

Mayor Julian reported that at the recent Foodbank distribution, there were 260 people.  He said, 

“There’s a bump in foot traffic, but not necessarily in car traffic.  It was a bit of a zoo out here with 

all the sidewalk construction going on.  But somebody moved the big equipment out of the way, so 

it was pretty smooth then.” 

 

The mayor also talked about COVID guidelines for use of the City auditorium/gym.  He said, “We’re 

probably waiting for the Recreation Services Manager.  The reason I brought that up is that I saw 

kids at McKenzie practicing volleyball.  So, we’re going to run into that season.  I know the County 

and everybody else is coming up with different guidelines for use.  I know that Emily with Vandenberg 

has a strict policy that they use.  Masks are not required when playing.  Only two (2) people are 

allowed per individual.  There’s temperature checking.”  

 

Mr. Bodem said, “Emily did draft the guidelines for us.  We have those guidelines and can get it to 

you.”  Mayor Julian said, “Getting it to us and adopting it are two (2) different things.  Because 

they’re going to be asking, what do we do.  And I know there was a quincinera this weekend.  How 

was that handled?” Amelia Villegas, who is temporarily handling city facility rentals, responded, “It 

was a 25th silver wedding anniversary.  We didn’t put any special provisions on them in terms of 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 9 of 10 

 

masks or things like that.” The mayor then said, “Well, the County is saying that we need to do that.  

I just don’t want to get in trouble with anybody getting sick or things like that.” 

 

CM Cardenas reported that at McKenzie, they hosted financial aid workshops.  She said, “A lot of our 

students at Righetti that are from Guadalupe aren’t able to attend workshops that are held after 

school or after hours.  So, we wanted to have one here in our City so that our families didn’t have 

trouble attending them. This is the first time we branched out from another one and it went well.”  

Mayor Julian said, “We need that.  It’s just like sports.  People aren’t going to go out there.  They 

need to come here.” 

 

Mayor Julian said, “I was in La Pasadita restaurant and saw a poster of the Community Changers 

about the clean-ups.  They have a schedule of clean-ups that’s great.  I don’t know if that’s on our 

website.  I might have mentioned before but there’s a group of college students from San Diego who 

come here and work with them.  That’s their effort to clean things up.” 

 

CM Robles said, “Touch of Style will have their annual car show for Toys-4-Tots drive on Saturday, 

11/13, at O’Connell Park.  There will be raffles, car awards and food vendors.”  Mayor Julian added 

that he heard that there were to be around 100 vehicles. 

 

CM Robles gave an update on the Guadalupe Bulldogs Football teams.  He said, “Our Intermediate 

team will be moving forward.  We had four (4) teams that went to the playoffs.  We’re in the third 

round right now.  We’ll be playing at Pioneer against an unidentified Santa Maria team this Saturday 

at 6:00 p.m.  If they win, they’ll be in the Super Bowl held in Arroyo Grande High School the following 

week.  In their history since 2005, we’ve had five (5) appearances and two (2) titles.”  Mayor Julian 

asked if this was the only team that’s going forward?  CM Robles said, “Yes, out of our four divisions.  

We have the Bantams, Juniors, Intermediates and Seniors.  The Intermediates are the only ones 

going forward.” 

 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION MEETING 

 

The meeting is being adjourned to closed session.  Item to be discussed: Public Employee 

Performance Evaluation (Subdivision (b) of Government Code Section 54957) Title: City 

Administrator 

 

Motion was made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to 

adjourn to closed session.  4-0 Passed.  Absent: Costa, Jr. Meeting adjourned at 7:02 p.m. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

15. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

(Subdivision (b) of Government Code Section 54957) 

Title: City Administrator 

 



November 9, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting MINUTES  Page 10 of 10 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT TO OPEN SESSION MEETING 

  

Motion was made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to 

adjourn to open session.  4-0 Passed.  Absent: Costa, Jr. 
 

17. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

No reportable action. 
 

18. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Motion was made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to 

adjourn.  4-0 Passed.  Absent: Costa, Jr. 

 

Prepared by:      Approved by: 

 

__________________________________  __________________________________ 

Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk    Ariston Julian, Mayor 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Item No. 6E 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of November 23, 2021 

  
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Lorena Zarate, Finance Director Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: October 2021 Financial Report 

RECOMMENDATION:   

That the City Council accept the October 2021 Financial Report 

DISCUSSION: 

The Finance Department has prepared a Financial Report for the fiscal year 2021-2022 through October 
2021 for the Council’s and the public’s information. Attached hereto as Attachment No. 1 is the Report. 
Staff requests that the City Council accept this report for its information.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. October 2021 Financial Report

Lorena Zarate 



Page 1 of 5 

City of Guadalupe 
Financial Report 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 through October 2021 

Overview 
The fiscal year 2021-22 financial report concentrates on the General Fund and 
Water/Wastewater Enterprise Funds through October 31, 2021, or 33 percent of the year 
expended.  The purpose of the report is to provide a status of cash, fund balance and budgeted 
Revenue and Expenditures versus actual at 33 percent of the fiscal year expended.  

General Fund Cash 
Total cash as of October 31st, 2021, was $207,286.02. For comparison, the cash balance for 
October 2020 was $769,102.77. 

General Fund Revenue 
Budgeted revenues versus actual revenue received through October 31, 2021, shows the General 
Fund below target 20.8 percent of expected revenues.  

The table and graph below show General Fund revenue by category. Highlighted in yellow are 
specific revenue categories that have fallen short as compared to the budget through October 
2021. In regard to sales tax revenue and property tax revenue, which are several of the City’s top 
revenue categories, timing delays in payments cause the shortage. Most all revenue in these 
categories received in July and August were accrued back to June 2021, as they were attributable 
to the prior fiscal year. The City should expect property tax revenue to be received later in the 
calendar for the current fiscal year. 

ATTACHMENT 1



 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

                               
                                

                         

 
 

 
General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures are currently under budget at 31 percent expended. The Table and Chart below 
shows all General Fund Departments and spending trends as of October 31, 2021. Several 
departments are shown to be over budget, including the attorney and fire departments. The 
overage in the attorney department is related to amounts paid for labor union negotiations. The 
overage in the fire department is related to overtime. $90,000 was budgeted for overtime, but 
actual expense currently shows at 143%. This is related to the mutual aid contract for which the 
City is expecting reimbursement for. Overall, expenditures for the General Fund are higher than 
revenues so far related to the timing of receipt of funds for Sales and Property taxes. 
 

Category Budget Actual %
Property Tax 1,575,000         5,329                       0.3%
Transfers from other funds 850,400            276,233                   32.5%
Sales Tax 1,311,345         94,999                     7.2%
Utility Users Tax 450,000            142,278                   31.6%
Building Permit & Planning 537,930            252,860                   47.0%
Business License 272,000            252,980                   93.0%
Franchise Fees 260,000            43,672                     16.8%
COPS Grant 166,000            67,443                     40.6%
Rental of Property 100,000            37,954                     38.0%
Administrative Overhead 30,000              10,947                     36.5%
Other 489,892            75,104                     15.3%
Total Revenue 6,042,567         1,259,799                20.8%

Gen. Fund Revenue by Category



 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

                      
                    

                  
 
General Fund Balance 
The term fund balance is used to describe the net position of governmental funds calculated in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). It is intended to serve as a 
measure of the financial resources available to the fund. Fund balance represents the total 
amount accumulated in the fund from prior years at a point in time. The fund balance in the 
General Fund as of October 31, 2021 is a negative ($35,955.23). As a disclosure, the FY2021 is 
currently under audit and may change the fund balance. The graph below shows the upward 
trend through the past several years. As shown in the visual below, the fund balance at the end 
of October 2020 was $197,734.28 for comparison. A priority for City is to continue to increase 
the fund balance enough to establish a reserve of a minimum of 15% of the General Fund 
operating budget, which is $871,722.  
 

DEPARTMENT NAME
Adopted Budget

Actual Spent as of 
10/31/2021 33%

City Council 15,070                        4,302                             29%
Administration 485,330                      145,303                        30%
City Attorney 90,000                        36,892                           41%
Finance 548,475                      132,427                        24%
Non Departmental 453,506                      109,455                        24%
Building Maintenance 164,720                      54,258                           33%
Police 2,437,300                   758,572                        31%
Fire 1,145,700                   449,019                        39%
Parks & Rec 212,530                      51,336                           24%
Building and Safety 258,850                      70,267                           27%
Cannabis -                               2,300                             0%
TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS: 5,811,481                   1,814,131                     31%

2020-21 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 



 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

                    
 
 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS – WATER AND WASTEWATER 
The Statement of Revenues and Expenditures through October of fiscal year 2021-22 is shown 
in the Table below.  

                                       
 
The following charts compare budget to actual Revenue and Expense: 

Water Wastewater

REVENUES
Charges for Services 872,890                        617,883                        
Interest 1,935                            1,541                            
Other 11,381                          57,141                          
Connection Fees -                                -                                
Developer Fees -                                -                                
Total 886,206                        676,566                        

EXPENSES
Operating 406,942                        354,958                        
Capital -                                85,936                          
Depreciation -                                -                                
State Water 268,118                        -                                
Debt Service 93,260                          -                                
Total 768,320                        440,894                        

Actuals Through Oct 
31, 2021



 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 

The Enterprise funds experienced revenue at 32 percent of budget for Water. Wastewater was 
slightly below budget at 24 percent of revenue expected for the period.  
 

 
 

Operating expenses for Water and Wastewater are below budget at 23 percent and 8 percent, 
respectively. 
 
                          
CONCLUSION 
The funds analyzed in this report are generally in line with budget through October, except for 
General Fund revenue as mentioned above because of timing delays as these are common early 
in the fiscal year. The City needs to continue to find other revenue sources and economic 
development to sustain current operations. In addition, the City needs to continue with cost 
cutting measures in order to build reserves for the General Fund. Enterprise funds and other 
funds are general in line with budget and City Staff does not expect any further significant 
fluctuations in these funds. City Staff will continue to monitor closely and continue to provide a 
financial report to Council monthly. 
 
Information in this report is unaudited. 



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item No. 6F 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of November 23, 2021 

________________________________     __________________________________ 
 Prepared by:          Approved by: 
 Shannon Sweeney, Public Works Director   Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: 

Adopting a resolution authorizing City staff to apply for the CalFire’s Urban and Community Forestry 
grant program for funding to create an urban forest management plan, plant trees, and accept and 
execute the grant.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 2021-90 to authorize city staff to submit 
an application to CalFire for their Urban and Community Forestry grant program through the 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund, which will support the development of an urban forest management 
plan, plant trees and accept and execute the grant is awarded, if awarded. 

BACKGROUND: 

The city submitted a concept proposal to the Urban and Community Forestry grant program on June 24, 
2021. On October 4, 2021, the City was notified (attached) that they had been chosen to submit an 
application by December 10, 2021.  

The primary objective is to create a Master Plan for Urban Forest management for the city. This would 
include completing a tree inventory, canopy assessment that include mapping future tree sites, city 
ordinance for trees, and list of allowable trees all of which would be part of the 40-year plan for the city's 
urban forest future.  

The Secondary objective, with the support of Los Amigos de Guadalupe, is to educate the community on 
the importance of having an urban forest and getting them involved in the planning process and create 
a volunteer group for future tree planting and management. This will be done by developing a curriculum 
which will be taken into the intermediate school in Guadalupe. In educating the students we are 
educating the future of Guadalupe. The program will also be holding bilingual stakeholder meetings and 
advertise them widely to make sure all residents' opinions are a part of the urban forest management 
plan. We will also hold community events to update the residents of Guadalupe and get them involved 
in the planting of trees.  

Lastly the grant will fund tree planting. In the concept proposal we identified Le Roy Park as the location 
for all trees to be planted. Since then, Los Amigos de Guadalupe was awarded a grant from the ReLeaf 

Shannon Sweeney 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Program to do the same tree planting in Le Roy Park. City staff will be working on a list of alternative 
locations within the city.  CalFire has indicated we can substitute locations.  
 
DISCUSSION: 

The City of Guadalupe identified the need to create an urban forest management plan. This will help the 
city develop and maintain an urban forest.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

The total grant is for $292,627.45 but is paid on a reimbursement process that is completed quarterly. 
The City would be required to certify that it has sufficient funds to operate and maintain the project on 
a reimbursement basis.  As part of the final Plan the City would need to consider how it would be able 
to fund the long-term management and maintenance of its urban forest.  
 
The program requires a match, but it can be met with volunteer hours. Additionally, the application and 
the CalFire representative indicted that the match can be waived in the community is a disadvantage 
community or a low-income community, which Guadalupe is. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 2021-90 
2. CalFire Invitation Letter 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-90 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE FOR FUNDING FROM THE URBAN 
AND COMMUNITY FORESTRY GRANT PROGRAM OF THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY 

AND FIRE PROTECTION AS PROVIDED THROUGH THE GREENHOUSE GAS REDUCTION FUND 

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of California in cooperation with the California State Legislature 
has enacted State of California Greenhouse Gas Reduction Funding, which provides funds to the State 
of California and its political subdivisions for urban forestry programs; and 

WHEREAS, the State Department of Forestry and Fire Protection has been delegated the responsibility 
for the administration of the program within the State, setting up necessary procedures governing 
application by local agencies and non-profit organizations under the program, and 

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection require the 
applicant to certify by resolution the approval of application before submission of said application to the 
State; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant will enter an agreement with the State of California to carry out an urban 
forestry project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Guadalupe as follows:  

1. Approved the filing of an application for “State Greenhouse Gas Reduction Funding” Urban and
Community Forestry grant program funds; and

2. Certifies that said applicant has or will have sufficient funds to operate and maintain the project;
and,

3. Certifies that funds under the jurisdiction of City of Guadalupe are available to begin the project.

4. Certifies that said applicant will expend grant funds prior to March 30, 2026.

5. Appoints MAYOR, or a designee, as agent of the City Council to conduct negotiations, execute
and submit all documents including, but not limited to applications, agreements, amendments,
payment requests and so on, which may be necessary for the completion of the afore mentioned
project.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the following vote: 

MOTION:  

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT:   

ATTACHMENT 1



Page 2 of 2 

ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-90, has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by the City 
Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held November 23, 2021, and that same was approved 
and adopted.  

ATTEST: 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  Ariston Julian, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________  
Philip Sinco, City Attorney 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA    NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY Gavin Newsom, Governor 

“The Department of Forestry and Fire Protection serves and safeguards the people and protects the property and resources of California.” 

RR DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND FIRE PROTECTION 
Urban and Community Forestry Program 
P.O. Box 944246 
SACRAMENTO, CA  94244-2460 
(916) 657-2289
Website:  www.fire.ca.gov 

October 4, 2021 

Sonia Rios-Ventura 
City of Guadalupe 
918 Obispo St 
Guadalupe, California 93434 

RE: Concept Proposal for the CAL FIRE Urban and Community Forestry Grant 

Dear Concept Proposal Applicant, 

We are pleased to inform you that your organization is invited to submit an Urban 
Forestry Grant Application for your project titled Guadalupe Urban Forest 
Management Plan in the Urban Forest Management Activities category.  Your 
Project Tracking Number is 21-UF-MGMT-024. 

You will need to obtain the Project Application from your Regional Urban Forester 
(RUF) listed on our web page or Appendix G of the Grant Guidelines. The Guidelines 
contain information necessary to complete your application, and we recommend reading 
the document before contacting your RUF.   

You will receive an invitation to a SharePoint folder for you to submit your application and 
supporting documents. Each document must reference your Project Tracking Number.  
Note that we send the invitation from an automated email system, which could end up in 
your ‘Spam’ folder.  

The deadline to upload the required documents to your folder is 3:00 PM PST on 
December 10, 2021.   

With anticipated administrative delays for the holidays, we expect to award projects in 
January or February 2022. 

Sincerely, 

Walter Passmore 
State Urban Forester

ATTACHMENT 2

http://www.fire.ca.gov/
https://www.fire.ca.gov/programs/resource-management/resource-protection-improvement/urban-community-forestry/
https://www.fire.ca.gov/media/ffbh0vax/cal-fire-ucf-2020-21_grant-guidelines_v_5_17_21.pdf


Agenda Item No. 6G 1a.





Rev: 06/17/2021

TO: PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR, MICHAEL CASH 

FROM: CAPTAIN PATRICK SCHMITZ 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY SUMMARY OF CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES 
October 1, 2021 – October 31, 2021 

DATE: 11/01/2021 

CALLS FOR SERVICE OCTOBER  2021 

INCIDENT TYPE 
This 

Month 
Last 

Month 
Year to Date 
(2021-2022) 

Year to date 
(2020-2021) 

Medical 32 40 145 138 

Structure Fire 0 0 0 1 

Cooking Fire 0 0 1 1 

Trash or Rubbish Fire 1 0 2 2 

Vehicle Fire 0 0 1 0 

Grass/Vegetation Fire 0 0 1 5 

Other Fire 0 0 0 1 

Motor Vehicle Accidents with Injuries 1 5 9 5 

Motor Vehicle Accidents No Injuries 3 2 6 3 

Motor Vehicle/Pedestrian Accident 0 0 0 2 

Hazardous Materials Spill/Release 0 0 0 2 

Hazardous Condition Other 2 1 4 2 

Water Problem/Leak 2 0 2 1 

Animal Problem 0 0 0 0 

Search / Rescue 0 0 0 0 

Public Assistance 3 4 9 6 

Police Matter/Assistance 2 1 4 1 

Illegal Burn 0 0 0 0 

Smoke Detector Activation 1 0 1 8 

Dispatch and Canceled En-route 8 3 18 17 

False Alarm 1 3 7 3 

TOTAL 56 59 210 198 

Additional Information 
STAFFING:  1 Public Safety Director (Police/Fire Chief) 

3 Fire Captains  
3 Fire Engineers 
3 Paid Call Firefighters  3 Position Vacant 

Agenda Item No. 6G 1b.

GUADALUPE FIRE DEPARTMENT 



  Rev: 06/17/2021 

 

GUADALUPE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 
Special Assignments / Coverage:  

- Food Distribution Senior Center 10/07/21 
- School Drills 10/21/21 
- Youth (Bulldog) Games 

 
 
 
  
CODE COMPLIANCE CASES    OCTOBER 2021 
 

INCIDENT TYPE 
This 

Month 
Last 

Month 
Year to Date 
(2021-2022) 

Year to date 
(2020-2021) 

Business License (GMC 5.04.040) 0 0 0 0 

Litter Accumulation (GMC 8.12.020) 0 0 0 7 

Abatement of Weeds and Rubbish (GMC 8.16.010) 0 0 0 1 

Working Without Permits (GMC15.04.020) 0 0 0 1 

Address Number (GMC 15.08.020 (505.1)) 0 0 0 3 

Complaints (No Violation Found) 0 0 2 2 

Apartment Inspections 0 0 0 0 

Yearly Business Inspections 5 0 8 2 

Other 0 3 8 4 

TOTAL 5 3 21 20 

Complaints Received  0 0 4 4 

 

Miscellaneous 
This 

Month 
Last 

Month 
Year to Date 
(2021-2022) 

Year to date 
(2020-2021) 

Visitors  19 22 96 109 

Public Relations (Food Handout, Bulldog Game, School Drills)  5 2 9 0 

School Visits  0 0 0 0 

 



TO: PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR, MICHAEL CASH 

FROM: CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICER, JOSUE MERAZ 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY SUMMARY OF CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES 
OCTOBER 1, 2021 – OCTOBER 30, 2021 

DATE: 11/02/2021 

CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES 

INCIDENT TYPE 
This 

Month 
Last 

Month 
Year to Date 
(2020-2021) 

Prohibition of illicit discharge (GMC 13.24.050) 0 0 4 

Animal Nuisance (Odor, Noise) (GMC 6.04.100 (A,E)) 0 2 3 

Fowl, Livestock and Wild Animals (GMC 6.04.210) 0 1 5 

Litter Accumulation (GMC 8.12.020) 1 7 49 

Abatement of Weeds and Rubbish (GMC 8.16.010) 0 1 18 

Burning Garbage Prohibited (GMC 8.12.150) 2 0 2 

Unlawful Property Nuisance (GMC 8.50.070) 0 0 19 

Graffiti Abatement (GMC 9.07.060) 2 1 5 

Abandoned Vehicles/ Vehicle Covers (GMC 10.36.010) 2 8 83 

Portable/fixed basketball goals (GMC 10.48.050) 0 0 2 

Parking of large vehicles/trailers (GMC 10.24.190) 1 1 2 

Wall,Fence,or Hedge Requirements (GMC 18.52.121) 2 0 2 

Working Without Permits (GMC15.04.020) 1 3 16 

Address Number (GMC 15.08.020 (505.1)) 0 0 43 

Illegal Garage Conversion (GMC 18.08.120, 18.08.160) 0 0 0 

Damage Fence (GMC 18.52.125) 0 0 1 

Parking on Front Yard Setback (GMC 18.60.035) 0 2 13 

Trailers/Mobile homes as living space (GMC 18.56.030) 1 1 3 

Residential Solid Waste Collection (GMC 8.08.070) 0 0 10 

Landscape Maintenance Required (GMC 18.64.120) 0 3 12 

Discharge of illegal fireworks (GMC 8.24.020) 1 1 13 

72hr Parking 8 6 54 

Code 60 Citations 2 1 43 

TOTAL 23 38 402 

Complaints Received 6 8 77 

Miscellaneous 
This 

Month 
Last 

Month 
Year to Date 
(2020-2021) 

Visitors 0 0 0 

Public Relations (Food distribution, Covid Vaccination) 1 0 20 

School Visits () 0 0 0 

Agenda Item No. 6G 1c. 

GUADALUPE CODE COMPLIANCE



Agenda Item No. 6G 2.





1 | P a g e

                  

HUMAN RESOURCES MONTHLY REPORT – October 2021 

DEPARTMENT REPORT – PUBLIC SAFETY 

Police Department 

The Police Department is remains understaffed.  An Officer involved in a shooting 
has been on administrative leave effective August 22, 2021.  An Officer Trainee has 
on medical leave of absence effective September 10, 2021, and is not expected 
back for the remainder of the year.    

A background check on a potential Reserve Police Officer is underway. Background 
interviews are scheduled for the week of November 15.     

Fire Department 

The Public Safety Paid Volunteer Program has been structured into a 24-week 
internship program, allowing for two (2) nine (9) hour shifts or 18 hours per week. 
The pilot program will begin under the training and guidance of the Fire 
Department on November 7, 2021 and run until April 22, 2022.   

Intern 
A Start Date End Date 

Duration 
of Program 

Hours Per 
Week 

Hourly 
Rate 

Program 
Expenditure 

11/7/2021 4/22/2022 24 weeks 18  $    15.00  $       6,480.00 

Intern 
B Start Date End Date 

Duration 
of Program 

Hours Per 
Week 

Hourly 
Rate 

Program 
Expenditure 

11/7/2021 4/22/2022 24 weeks 18  $    15.00  $       6,480.00 

Pilot Program 
Expenditure  $    12,960.00 

ARPA Approved 
Monies  $    10,000.00 

Public Safety 
Balance   $       2,960.00 

Human Resources 
918 Obispo Street 

P.O. Box 908 
Guadalupe, CA  93434 

Ph: 805.356.3893 
Fax: 805.343.5512 

Email: egerber@ci.guadalupe.ca.us 

Agenda Item No. 6G 3.

mailto:egerber@ci.guadalupe.ca.us


2 | P a g e  
 

 
 

COVID-19 FACE COVERINGS 
 
The Santa Barbara County Public Health Department is extending an order requiring 
people to wear masks indoors for another month. 
 
The order requires everyone, regardless of vaccination status, to wear face coverings 
when indoors in public settings, with limited exceptions. 
 
The current mask mandate was put into place in August and was originally set to expire in 
September. At that time, it was extended until October 5 and extended again until 
November 4. 
 
The order will now remain in place until December 4, but could be extended again. 
 
County health officials say in order for the indoor mask mandate to be rescinded, the 
county's case rate should be 6 cases per 100,000 or lower for two straight weeks. 
 
On the latest reporting date, October 30, the county's case rate was 7.7. 
 
 

HEALTH OFFICER ORDER NO. 2021-10.6 COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA FOR THE CONTROL 
OF COVID-19 FACE COVERINGS WITHIN SANTA BARBARA COUNTY 

Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6 Supersedes and Replaces Health Officer Order No. 
2021-10.5 

 
Effective Date: November 4, 2021, 5:00pm PT 
1. This Order 2021-10.6 is effective 5:00 p.m. (PT) November 4, 2021 and continuing until 
5:00 p.m. (PT), on December 4, 2021 or until it is extended, rescinded, superseded, or 
amended in writing by the County of Santa Barbara Health Officer (“Health Officer”). This 
Order applies in the incorporated and unincorporated areas of Santa Barbara County 
(“County”). 

 
2. This Order orders that in the County Face Coverings must be worn over the mouth and 
nose – regardless of vaccination status – in all Indoor Public Settings, and while inside any 
Business, as defined below, including but not limited to: offices, retail stores, restaurants 
and bars, theaters, family entertainment centers, conference and event centers, and State 
and local government offices serving the public. 

  
3. Individuals, Businesses, venue operators, hosts, and others responsible for the 
operation of Indoor Public Settings must: 
    a. Require all individuals to wear Face Coverings regardless of vaccination status while 

indoors; and 
    b. Post clearly visible and easy-to-read signage at all entry points to communicate the 

Face Covering requirements. 
 
  



3 | P a g e  
 

4. Exemptions. Individuals are not required to wear Face Coverings in the following 
circumstances: 

    a. While working alone in a closed office or room; 
    b. While actively eating and/or drinking; 
    c. While swimming or showering; 
   d. While obtaining a medical or cosmetic service involving the head or face for which 

temporary removal of the Face Covering is necessary to perform the service; 
   e. Performers at indoor live events such as theater, opera, symphony, religious choirs, 

and professional sports may remove Face Coverings while actively performing or 
practicing, though such individuals should maximize physical distancing as much as 
practicable; 

    f. Individuals in indoor religious or cultural gatherings may remove Face Coverings when 
necessary to participate in religious or cultural rituals; 

   g. Individuals actively engaged in water-based sports (e.g., swimming, swim lessons, 
diving, water polo) and other sports where masks create imminent risk to health 
(e.g., wrestling, judo). All other indoor recreational sports, gyms, and yoga studios 
shall comply with this Order; 

    h. Persons younger than two years old must not wear a Face Covering because of the 
risk of suffocation; 

    i. Persons with a medical condition, mental health condition, or disability that prevents 
wearing a Face Covering. This includes persons with a medical condition for whom 
wearing a Face Covering could obstruct breathing or who are unconscious, 
incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove a Face Covering without assistance; 

    j. Persons who are hearing impaired, or communicating with a person who is hearing 
impaired, when the ability to see the mouth is essential for communication; 

     k. Persons for whom wearing a Face Covering would create a risk to the person related 
to their work, as determined by local, state, or federal regulators or workplace 
safety guidelines. 

  
5. Persons exempted from wearing a Face Covering due to a medical condition, mental 
health condition, or disability must wear a non-restrictive alternative, such as a face shield 
with a drape on the bottom edge. 

  
6. Workplaces subject to the Cal/OSHA COVID-19 Emergency Temporary Standards (ETS) 
and/or the Cal/OSHA Aerosol Transmissible Diseases Standards should consult the 
applicable regulations for additional requirements. The ETS allows local health 
jurisdictions to mandate more protective measures. (8 CCR § 3205(a)(2).) This Order, 
which requires Face Coverings for all individuals in Indoor Public Settings, and while inside 
any Business, regardless of vaccination status, takes precedence over the more permissive 
ETS regarding employee face coverings. 

  
7. “Business” or “Businesses” for the purpose of this Health Officer Order is defined to 
mean any institution, establishment, public or private agency, for-profit, non-profit, or 
educational entity, whether an organization, corporate entity, partnership, or sole 
proprietorship. Business does not include a place when used exclusively by one or more 
individuals for a private gathering or other personal purpose. 

  



4 | P a g e  
 

8. “Face Covering” means a covering made of a variety of materials such as cloth, fabric, 
cotton, silk, linen, or other permeable materials, that fully covers the tip of a person’s 
nose and mouth, without holes, including cloth face masks, surgical masks, towels, 
scarves, and/or bandanas. This Order does not require the public to wear medicalgrade 
masks, including masks rated N95, KN95, and their equivalent or better. A face covering 
with a one-way valve (typically a raised plastic cylinder about the size of a quarter on the 
front or side of the mask) that provides a preferential path of escape for exhaled breath 
shall not be used as a face covering under this Order because the valve permits 
respiratory droplets to easily escape which places others at risk. 

  
9. “Indoor Public Setting” or “Indoor Public Settings” for the purpose of this Health Officer 
Order is defined to mean an enclosed area whether privately or publicly owned, to which 
the public have access by right or by invitation, expressed or implied, whether by payment 
of money or not, but not a place when used exclusively by one or more individuals for a 
private gathering or other personal purpose. 

  
10. Except as otherwise set forth herein, the June 28, 2021 Guidance for the Use of Face 
Coverings issued by the CDPH 
(https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-
facecoverings.aspx) as may be amended from time to time, continues to apply throughout 
the County of Santa Barbara. 

  
11. The Health Officer strongly encourages that individuals, Businesses, venue operators, 
hosts, and others responsible for the operation of Indoor Public Settings to provide Face 
Coverings at no cost to individuals required to wear them. 12.If you cannot afford a face 
covering one will be provided to you free-of-charge at the following locations: 
a. Santa Barbara County Administration building lobby, 105 E Anapamu St, Santa Barbara 
b. Santa Barbara Health Care Center, 345 Camino del Remedio, Santa Barbara 
c. Santa Maria Health Care Center, 2115 Centerpointe Parkway, Santa Maria 
d. The Health Officer requests cities within the County of Santa Barbara provide face 

coverings free-of-charge to those cannot afford them. 
  

This Order is issued as a result of the worldwide pandemic of COVID-19 which has infected 
at least 235,850,589 individuals worldwide, in 221 countries and territories, including 
42,408 cases, and 504 deaths in the County, and is implicated in over 4,818,386 
worldwide deaths. 

  
This Order is issued based on evidence of increasing transmission of COVID-19 both within 
the County and worldwide, scientific evidence regarding the most effective approach to 
slow transmission of communicable diseases generally and COVID-19 specifically, as well 
as best practices as currently known and available to protect the public from the risk of 
spread of or exposure to COVID-19. 

  
You can find the complete Health Officer Order HERE. 
Specific guidance on appropriate masking in schools settings HERE. 
Santa Barbara County Masking Guidance HERE.  
 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-facecoverings.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/guidance-for-facecoverings.aspx
https://publichealthsbc.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/Health-Officer-Order-No.-2021-10.6-Signed.pdf
https://publichealthsbc.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Santa-Barbara-County-PHD-Appropriate-Masking-in-School-Settings-AUG-19-2021-ENG.pdf
https://publichealthsbc.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/PHD-New-Mask-Doc-REVISED.pdf


5 | P a g e  
 

 
COVID-19 STATISTICS 

 
 
 
 

Hospitalizations of confirmed COVID-19 patients in California 
 
The number of confirmed patients in ICU and non-ICU settings began to climb in 
mid-June after California began to ease more of its shutdown restrictions. Here's 
the trend since the California Department of Public Health began releasing the 
data on April 1, 2020. As of October 31, there are 959 patients in ICUs, and 2,887 
non-ICU patients.  
 

 
 
So far, 1 out of every 10 people in the county has tested positive, 46,242 in total.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 
 

Enclosed is the monthly summary report, Activity Period 10/1/2021-10/31/2021.   



City of Guadalupe - GU

Claims Medical Activity Indemnity ActivityExpense Activity Total Activity Future Total Reserve

Fiscal Year Open Closed Total Medical Paid Indemnity Paid Expense Paid Total Paid Medical Indemnity Expense Total Incurred

2007 - 2008 0 4 4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2,405.80 47.89 10.00 2,463.69 2,463.69

Recovery: 0.00

2008 - 2009 0 5 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

985.98 560.05 0.00 1,546.03 1,546.03

Recovery: 0.00

2009 - 2010 0 8 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

28,026.56 100,092.22 7,353.30 135,472.08 135,472.08

Recovery: 0.00

2010 - 2011 0 6 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

30,763.90 256,554.59 10,832.32 298,150.81 298,150.81

Recovery: 328.60

2011 - 2012 0 1 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3,090.05 299.80 15.56 3,405.41 3,405.41

Recovery: 0.00

2012 - 2013 0 6 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

131,267.83 180,981.33 82,271.87 394,521.03 394,521.03

Recovery: 0.00

2013 - 2014 0 4 4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1,519.98 4,125.50 299.92 5,945.40 5,945.40

Recovery: 0.00

2014 - 2015 0 6 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

41,837.95 35,446.10 3,770.60 81,054.65 81,054.65

Recovery: 0.00

2015 - 2016 0 21 21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12,964.62 26,560.49 2,073.71 41,598.82 41,598.82

Recovery: 0.00

2016 - 2017 0 10 10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

82,289.72 32,499.34 8,401.45 123,190.51 123,190.51

Recovery: 14,008.43

California JPIA
Workers' Compensation Summary Report
Activity Paid: 10/1/21 - 10/31/21     As Of 10/31/2021

Sedgwick Copyright © 2021 All rights reserved. This document is provided for informational purposes only.



City of Guadalupe - GU

Claims Medical Activity Indemnity ActivityExpense Activity Total Activity Future Total Reserve

Fiscal Year Open Closed Total Medical Paid Indemnity Paid Expense Paid Total Paid Medical Indemnity Expense Total Incurred

2017 - 2018 1 7 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,160.00 14,236.58 2,859.40 2,691.26 19,787.24

77,330.66 213,041.30 13,585.71 303,957.67 323,744.91

Recovery: 0.00

2018 - 2019 2 6 8 0.00 0.00 768.50 1,928.50 114,266.51 534,583.03 20,019.75 668,869.29

98,406.12 240,825.69 92,906.29 432,138.10 1,101,007.39

Recovery: 0.00

2019 - 2020 0 6 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3,088.72 4,409.73 597.70 8,096.15 8,096.15

Recovery: 0.00

2020 - 2021 1 5 6 142.59 0.00 45.76 188.35 1,707.41 0.00 754.24 2,461.65

303.02 4,891.92 447.06 5,642.00 8,103.65

Recovery: 0.00

Report Totals: 4 95 99 142.59 2,320.00 814.26 3,276.85 130,210.5 537,442.43 23,465.25 691,118.18

514,280.91 1,100,335.95 222,565.49 1,837,182.35 2,528,300.53

Indemnity Claims 50 Open Indemnity 3

Medical Claims 49 Open Medical 1

Total Claims 99 Open Claims 4

California JPIA
Workers' Compensation Summary Report
Activity Paid: 10/1/21 - 10/31/21     As Of 10/31/2021

Sedgwick Copyright © 2021 All rights reserved. This document is provided for informational purposes only.



November 23, 2021 

Updates below: 

1. Guadalupe Vaccine Clinic

The Fire Department will hold a Guadalupe Vaccine Animal Clinic on November 21st from 10

a.m. to 1 p.m.   The Clinic Services Coordinator from C.A.R.E.4PAWS reached out to the City

Fire Department to once again to see what the possibility of us being able to hold another

Low-Cost Vaccination Clinic in front of the fire house. Every vaccine clinic we have held in our

city has been successful and we are proud to be able to bring this service to pet owners to

Guadalupe City.  Two mobile units will be arriving at 9 a.m. to prep for our surgery check that

begins at 9:30 a.m.

2. Guadalupe Commercial Cannabis Applications – Immediate Next Steps

On Monday, November 15th the Administration office received five (5) retail cannabis

applications (see below). City staff uploaded the data/sent them to HdL for them to review

the completeness of the application material submitted. Contract City Planner Bill Scott was

able to complete all the Zoning Verifications Letters (ZVL) which recommended approval for

all of the; HdL/City will proceed with the next steps which is applicant background. The

applications will be reviewed by reviewers to score.  Scoring should be done before Christmas,

possibly complete interviews of all 5 applicants in a special city council meeting sometime

during the week of January 17th.

3. Public Safety Budget Meeting

After our managers meeting, the Chief for both the Fire and Police Department’s stated to his

personnel that they need to get financially healthier, leaner, and more sustainable operating

Agenda Item No. 9



budget, he will be implementing a “Line-Item Review” of both departments budget.  Each 

month Finance provides him with a Departmental Expenditure Report with percentages of 

where our spending should be for that month.  These line items fluctuate from below the 

expected expenditure percentage to above the budgeted monthly amount.   

 

He will be addressing this issue by aiming for a monthly expenditure of 5% below expected 

line-item expenditures.  This will mean that some maintenance, administrative items, and 

operational supplies will be delayed or not ordered.  We will need to better forecast our 

overall spending plans, habits, and order only out of necessity.  This is not how First 

Responders normally operate since their duties are fluid and unpredictable.  He will try to 

account for unexpected expenditures and request as much as possible and will always have 

SAFETY as the number one priority for our personnel and the community.  ALL spending 

requests will need PRIOR APPROVAL.  We will hold the line on cost and defer most items 

except for emergency situations that he will make the call on. 

 

He will periodically advise where they can spend and how much and advise where we will 

stop for the Fiscal Year.  The Chief expressed his appreciation and respect everyone’s work 

ethic and determination to always, “Do the best with the Least”.  He will be open and 

straightforward with questions / input you may have as we all go through this.  This affects 

EVERY CITY DEPARTMENT not just public safety!    

 

The City Administrator and Public Safety Director believe it is important for both to meet soon 

with Council to review the roles of the Public Safety Director and City Administrator as it 

relates to departmental finances and other matters. 

 

4. EPA Grant – Mayor Support Letter 

Mayor Julian submitted a Support Letter for an EPA Recreation Economy for Rural 

Communities (RERC) Program grant for submission from Los Amigos dee Guadalupe. Its focus 

is technical support for revitalizing downtown rural areas by developing outdoor recreation 

like trails.   The application is due November 21, 2021, so it is needed reasonably soon. There 

is not enough time for a city resolution and the strong letter from the mayor will do. 

 

5. Central Coast Community Energy 

The Central Coast Community Energy received their first kWs of test energy from our Slate RE 

PPA on 11/9. This is the first of their many upcoming long physical asset agreements to deliver 

power! The quantity of energy is presently very small, but as the facility completes its testing 

milestones more inverters will be turned on and more power will be delivered in the coming 

month. It is a big step on their way to full COD by December 21, 2021. 

 

Also, 

 

Funding available for Electric Vehicles, EV Chargers and EV Readiness! 

CCCE Electrify Your Ride program formally launched November 9th and offers $2.8 million 

dollars in rebates when you:  

• Purchase or lease a new or used electric vehicle for your fleet  

• Install Electric Vehicle Supply Equipment (EVSE) chargers  



• Electric Vehicle Readiness projects  

 

Electric vehicles can save our city money on fuel and maintenance.  Charging stations 

encourage staff to transition to electric vehicles.    

 

CCCE Member Agencies enrolled in CCCE electricity service are eligible for increased 

incentives.  

• $3000 rebate for NEW or USED EV (purchase or Lease) with no limit on the # of 

vehicles  

• $1000 rebate for Electric Motorcycles with no limit  

• Up to $10,000 for Level II EV charger and no limit  

• Up to $10,000 for EV readiness and no limit    

 

Purchases made on or after October 1st, 2021, are eligible.  These rebates are designed to be 

stackable with other programs and funding sources.  Rebates, are available on a first come, 

first served basis until funds are fully reserved. There is no limit on the number of EVSE and 

EV Readiness projects undertaken.  

 

CCC3 highly encourage us to work with our department heads to evaluate how to take 

advantage of these increase rebates and opportunities to electrify our transportation 

operations.     

 

To learn more about this program, please visit:   

 

https://3cenergy.org/electrify-your-ride-program/ 

  

6. Le Roy Park Community Center Update   

The Mayor has been very patient and is working hard to find the right time to work with staff 

to coordinate a meeting with the various groups to be housed in the Le Roy Park Community 

Center. Over the past several days, he had very productive discussions with Michael Jimenez, 

SER- Jobs for Progress/Community Center for Arts and Technology, and with Michael Boyer, 

Chief Executive Officer, BGCCC and Roberto Rodriguez regarding services to be provided at 

the newly renovated Le Roy Community Center.  As we know that facility is nearing 

completion.  On November 15th, the City interviewed Recreation Services Manager applicants 

and when this person is on board with the City, we will be able to begin some serious 

discussions of how to proceed in managing the facility, services to be offered at this location, 

etc., all benefiting our residents. 

 

He shared a note received from SER, Community Center for Arts and Technology, with the 

Club representatives this past Monday.   He mentioned to Mr. Jiminez that he would be 

meeting with the Club and this information would be useful to share with the Club and with 

City representatives.     

 

At the November 12, 2021 meeting, it was recommended by the Club representatives that 

they meet with Michael Jimenez/SER to discuss options and resources the two organizations 

https://3cenergy.org/electrify-your-ride-program/


could be able to provide at the center.    Mr. Boyer will connect with Mr. Jiminez to set up a 

meeting to move this positive collaboration forward.   

 

He also copied the City Administrator and Council member Lilliana Cardenas as we now 

believe that the time is upon us all to move any leases, MOU’s, service discussions, etc., 

forward. 

 

Future discussions between with these organizations will be needed to discuss the Le Roy 

park's opening and services that could be offered at this location. This collaboration between 

the two organizations as well with the City, is long overdue.   A meeting will be scheduled 

soon.  

 

7. Mask Restrictions for City Facility Rentals 

Amelia Villegas stated that beginning with the City auditorium rental on Friday, 11/20, we will 

be adhering to indoor mask restrictions.  Attendees may remove masks when eating/drinking 

but otherwise, masks should be worn indoors.  In review of SBCo Public Health information, 

I’ve not found anything in terms of distancing, limited capacity, etc.  Amelia spoke with the 

City of Santa Maria Parks & Recreation Department regarding renting their city facilities.  They 

also have not seen anything other than requiring masks.  As Gabriel Velasco, Santa Maria’s 

Supervisor of Parks & Recreation, said, “We’re following the restaurant requirements for our 

rentals.”  

 

SLO County restricts full capacity of halls, etc. to 50% but SB County doesn’t.  Unless the 

County’s Public Health Office issues anything other than the current indoor ask mandate, 

there are no other Covid restrictions for our rentals  

 

8. Planning Software Update 

The Planning Director, City Administrator and Public Works Director attended a Zoom 

meeting to review the community development planning software from Tyler. The cost of this 

program is a bit less than Dudes Solutions. Staff is excited because this software integrates 

and with the overall Tyler Software System.  The contract Planning Director is currently doing 

some reference checking on California cities who use this software.  BACKGROUND: Late last 

year, the City entered a contract with Tyler technologies to provide software for accounting 

services.  Apparently, there was also an additional module that covered code compliance, 

building, and business license issuance.  The Planning Director was looking at the time to 

utilize a state grant (REAP) to find planning software.  After staff reviewed of the Tyler building 

software, we thought it could be modified to assist Planning.  Then we learned that they had 

a more robust planning module available.  Staff asked our contact with the firm, Kip, if he 

could provide us with the names of any agencies in CA that use the same software.  He gave 

the Planning Director several agencies who use the robust system 

 

The main purpose in considering planning software is to be able to track our discretionary 

and ministerial permits through the planning process and be able to store the documents and 

plans that are part of each.  Also, staff is interested to know how other agencies managed to 

upload all the data when you first started using the system.   

 



9. November 15th – U.S. President Joe Biden Signs infrastructure Funding Bill 

On November 15th U.S. President Joe Biden signed the $1.2 trillion bipartisan infrastructure 

bill (Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA)) at a ceremony on Monday, one week after 

the House of Representatives passed the Senate version of the legislation. We are encouraged 

and excited about the reauthorization of surface transportation programs that will provide 

about $550 billion of new funding for roads, bridges, water systems, broadband, passenger 

rail, transit, and other infrastructure. Thank you to the support of the SBCAG Board of 

Directors who lobbied for approval of the legislation in coordination with other local/regional 

government stakeholders. We are ready to take advantage of opportunities presented by IIJA 

for high priority projects in our region and expect to learn more of its full impact in coming 

days and weeks.   

 

10. City Hall Auditorium Update 

The city of Guadalupe is going to spend some American Rescue Funds to renovate the City 

Auditorium and stage. As you know, an ad hoc committee has been formed to include the 

following: 

1. Gilbert Robles, City Council member 

2. Emily Dreiling, Recreation and Parks Commission 

3. Shannon Sweeney, Public Works Director  

The Ad Hoc Committee met alongside the City Administrator to discuss some of the following 

areas to be assessed: 

• Electrical 

• Painting 

• Floor renovations; redo the flooring on stage 

• Repair of any wall surface glitches before painting 

• Retouching archway 

• Consider improving look of front area where the pads are located 

• Improve lighting/there are lights on the front of the stage facing presenters 

• Would be nice to see some type of window dressing/curtains. 

• Acoustics? 

• Look at a sound system? 

• Look at best way hide tables and chairs. 

• Paint wall surrounding the arch. 

• Stage curtains would be nice, but this should be a fund raiser by the community. 

The above are simply discussion points. 



The City Administrator reached out to Chachi Ramirez who works in the performing arts 

industry and he is excited to hear about this project. He would love to be an asset however 

possible and will meet with the Ad Hoc Committee to evaluate the auditorium space and seek 

his recommendation.  

Meetings are ongoing.  

END OF REPORT 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Item No. 10 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of November 23, 2021 

_______________________________ 
Prepared by:  
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Broadband Strategic Plan 

RECOMMENDATION: 

A. Receive a presentation from Marjie Kirn, Executive Director from the Santa Barbara County
Association of Governments on a regional broadband strategic plan for Santa Barbara County.

B. Approve and authorize the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of Understanding with Santa
Barbara County Association of Governments (SBCAG), County of Santa Barbara, and the cities of
Santa Barbara, Santa Maria, Lompoc, Goleta, Carpinteria, Guadalupe, Solvang, and Buellton to
prepare a regional broadband strategic plan and financially contribute $5,422.63 toward this
effort from a portion of the City’s American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds.

BACKGROUND:  

Broadband and the lack of quality internet access has been a discussion point for many years.  During 
the COVID-19 pandemic, this became an urgent issue as more residents relied on their internet service 
to continue to work, go to school and/or shop. The COVID-19 pandemic has made the digital divide in 
unserved and underserved communities, including communities of color, rural communities, and senior 
residents, more apparent as work, commerce, health, and other economic services have moved online. 
Residents in unserved and underserved communities are struggling to participate in the digital landscape 
as broadband services are unavailable to them due to lack of affordability or infrastructure. As such, 
there is a need to expedite broadband infrastructure deployment and provide connectivity at an 
affordable rate to unserved and underserved communities. Providing better access to broadband 
contributes to creating more sustainable communities with lasting economic, education, and health 
benefits along with reducing greenhouse gas emissions that contribute to climate change. 

In July, SBCAG formed a broadband ad-hoc committee, comprised of the following members: Joan 
Hartmann (County Supervisor, Third District); Bob Nelson (County Supervisor, Fourth District); Jenelle 
Osborne (Mayor, City of Lompoc); Alice Patino (Mayor, City of Santa Maria); and Paula Perotte (Mayor, 
City of Goleta).  The ad-hoc committee formed the basis for SBCAG Board of Director’s support and 
encouragement to formalize a collaborative, regional approach to developing a broadband strategic plan 
between SBCAG, the County of Santa Barbara and the eight incorporated cities in the region.   



Page 2 of 3 

DISCUSSION:  

On October 21, 2021 the SBCAG Board of Directors directed their Executive Director, Marjie Kirn, to 
coordinate with the eight cities in the county to request participation in a regional broadband strategic 
planning process and seek financial contribution to that effort. The County of Santa Barbara committed 
$200,000 of America Rescue Plan Act funding at their October 19 Board of Supervisors meeting. The 
SBCAG Board of Directors proposed dividing the remaining cost among the eight cities based on the 2021 
Department of Finance (DOF) Population Estimate to the cities’ population of 307,821 (see Table 1 of 
proposed jurisdiction contributions based on population). 

The City of Guadalupe is being requested to support the regional broadband strategic plan with a 
financial contribution of $5,422.63 from its ARPA funds in partnership with SBCAG, the County of Santa 
Barbara and participating incorporated cities in the region. The total estimated cost for this effort is 
$400,000, which includes $300,000 of direct costs with the Broadband Consortium Pacific Coast to 
develop the strategic plan. The strategic plan is anticipated to be completed in six to nine months and is 
estimated to begin early 2022.   

Table 1: Proposed Jurisdiction Broadband Strategic Plan Financial Contribution 

Jurisdiction 

2021 DOF 
Population 

Estimate % Contribution  
Buellton 5,435 1.77% $3,531.27 
Carpinteria 13,196 4.29% $8,573.81 
Goleta 32,339 10.51% $21,011.56 
Guadalupe 8,346 2.71% $5,422.63 
Lompoc 42,493 13.80% $27,608.90 
Santa Barbara 93,055 30.23% $60,460.46 
Santa Maria 107,445 34.91% $69,810.05 
Solvang 5,512 1.79% $3,581.30 
County n/a n/a $200,000.00 

Total 307,821 $400,000.00 

SBCAG Board of Directors in coordination with the County of Santa Barbara, Broadband Consortium 
Pacific Coast, and the Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians have been working to help prepare Santa 
Barbara County for potential funding opportunities. Over the past couple of months, potential funding 
opportunities have been announced from both the federal and state governments to provide better 
access to those who depend on broadband services.  With available funding forthcoming, SBCAG would 
like to ensure that our region is prepared at a regional level to secure and implement funding to 
stakeholders in an effective and efficient manner. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No impact to the City’s general fund. Funds will come out of the City’s ARPA fund in the amount of 
$5,422.63. Uses of these funds for Broadband meets the Treasury Departments criteria. 



Page 3 of 3 

 ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Broadband Strategic Plan Memorandum of Understanding
2. Draft Broadband Consortium Pacific Coast Scope of Work
3. Broadband Strategic Plan PowerPoint



  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN THE: 

 SANTA BARBARA COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS, COUNTY OF SANTA 
BARBARA, AND THE CITIES OF BUELLTON, CARPINTERIA, GOLETA, GUADALUPE, 

LOMPOC, SANTA BARBARA, SANTA MARIA AND SOLVANG 
 for  

PREPARING A REGIONAL BROADBAND STRATEGIC PLAN FOR THE SANTA BARBARA 
COUNTY REGION  

THIS Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is hereby entered into by and between the Santa 
Barbara County Association of Governments referred to herein as “SBCAG”, and the County of 
Santa Barbara as well as Cities of Buellton, Carpinteria, Goleta, Guadalupe, Lompoc, Santa 
Barbara, Santa Maria, and Solvang individually referred to herein as “AGENCY”, or, collectively 
as the “AGENCIES.”  

R E C I T A L S: 

WHEREAS, the AGENCIES form a Joint Powers Authority as SBCAG, which serves as the 
Metropolitan Planning Organization for the region; 

WHEREAS, the AGENCIES agree to work together on the development of the Regional 
Broadband Strategic Plan;   

WHEREAS, the AGENCIES agree to financially participate to cover the expenses of the Regional 
Broadband Strategic Planning effort;  

WHEREAS, SBCAG shall be the administrative entity for the Regional Broadband Strategic 
Planning effort during the term of this MOU; 

WHEREAS, SBCAG, as the administrative agency, will work with the Broadband Consortium of 
the Pacific Coast (BCPC) to assist the region with the development of the Regional Broadband 
Strategic Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the AGENCIES agree to the following: 

1. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES. Under this MOU, SBCAG and the AGENCIES agree to
work together to:

A. Cooperate in developing a Regional Broadband Strategic Plan, including but not
limited to, identifying improvement needs, funding options and strategies, economic
impacts, and benefits.

B. Designate a technical contact person(s) to assist in planning for Broadband
infrastructure and support the invoicing process;

C. Actively participate in the planning process by attending meetings and providing
comments and input where appropriate;

D. Pay the invoice for the Broadband Strategic Plan.

E. The name for the working body under this mutual understanding will be known as
the “BROADBAND ALLIANCE OF SANTA BARBARA COUNTY (ALLIANCE).”

F. SBCAG to serve as the administrative agent and secretary for the ALLIANCE.

ATTACHMENT 1



BROADBAND  
MOU for the term of January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022 
Page 2 of 9 

2. ADMINISTRATIVE ENTITY. SBCAG shall serve as the administrative entity of the ALLIANCE
, SBCAG shall:

A. Upon approval by the SBCAG Board, enter into an agreement with BCPC, in compliance
with SBCAG’s purchasing policy to develop a Broadband Strategic Plan for the Santa
Barbara County region and to provide oversight of the agreement with BCPC;

B. Act as the fiscal agent, and serve as the custodian of the financial contributions by the
AGENCIES and deposit contributions in a separate fund.

C. Pay all invoices from the BCPC from the separate fund consisting of the single payments
made by the AGENCIES.

D. Liaison with the AGENCIES governing bodies on topics and issues related to the
Broadband Strategic Plan.

E. Conduct meetings with the AGENCIES’ designee to solicit input and formulate
Broadband Strategic Plan recommendations for the SBCAG Board.

F. Provide opportunities to solicit stakeholder and public input in the development of the
Boradband Strategic Plan;

G. Conduct consultation and coordination with the Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians
Tribal Government.

H. In coordination with the BCPC, participate in federal and statewide meetings, and
consortiums to inform the Broadband Strategic Plan development, engage in broader
broadband discussions, and advocate for Santa Barbara County needs and priorities.

I. Submit required reporting for America Recovery Protection Act funding;

J. Conduct required audits.

3. TERM & TERMINATION. This MOU is effective as of January 1, 2022 and shall expire on
December 31, 2022, unless the AGENCIES agree otherwise. Any AGENCY may terminate
its participation from this MOU upon 30-days written notification to the other AGENCIES.

4. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES.

A. Each AGENCY shall pay the following contribution based on a population formula:

Jurisdiction 

2021 DOF 
Population 

Estimate % Contribution 

Buellton 5,435 1.77% $3,531.27 

Carpinteria 13,196 4.29% $8,573.81 

Goleta 32,339 10.51% $21,011.56 

Guadalupe 8,346 2.71% $5,422.63 



BROADBAND  
MOU for the term of January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022 
Page 3 of 9 

Lompoc 42,493 13.80% $27,608.90 

Santa Barbara 93,055 30.23% $60,460.46 

Santa Maria 107,445 34.91% $69,810.05 

Solvang 5,512 1.79% $3,581.30 

County n/a n/a $200,000.00 

Total 307,821 $400,000.00 

B. Contributions shall be used for purposes of the to develop a Regional Broadband
Strategic Plan for the Santa Barbara region.

C. Financial contributions are payable by February 1, 2021.

5. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION. In lieu of and notwithstanding the pro rata risk allocation
which might otherwise be imposed between the AGENCIES pursuant to California
Government Code Section 895.6, the AGENCIES agree that all losses or liabilities
incurred by a Party shall not be shared pro rata but instead all AGENCIES agree that
pursuant to California Government Code Section 895.4, each of the AGENCIES
hereto shall fully indemnify and hold each of the other AGENCIES, their officers, board
members, employees and agents, harmless from any claim, expense or cost, damage
or liability imposed for injury (as defined by California Government Code Section
810.8) occurring by reason of the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of
the indemnifying Party, its officers, board members, employees or agents, under or in
connection with or arising out of any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to such
Party under this MOU. No AGENCY, nor any officer, board member, employee or
agent thereof shall be responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of
the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of other AGENCIES hereto, their
officers, board members, employees or agents, under or in connection with or arising
out of any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to such other AGENCIES under
this MOU..

6. GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS.

A. Entire MOU and Amendment. In conjunction with the matters considered herein, this
MOU contains the entire understanding and agreement of the AGENCIES and there have
been no promises, representations, agreements, warranties or undertakings by any of the
AGENCIES, either oral or written, of any character or nature hereafter binding except as
set forth herein. This MOU may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in
writing, executed by the AGENCIES to this MOU and by no other means. Each AGENCY
waives its future right to claim, contest or assert that this MOU was modified, canceled,
superseded, or changed by any oral agreements, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.

B. Nondiscrimination. Each AGENCY shall comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
amended, and shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in
the performance of this MOU.

C. Non-assignment. AGENCIES shall not assign, transfer or subcontract this MOU or any of
its rights or obligations without the prior written consent of each AGENCY and any attempt



BROADBAND  
MOU for the term of January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022 
Page 4 of 9 

to so assign, transfer, or subcontract without such consent shall be void and without legal 
effect. 

D. Headings. The headings of the several sections shall be solely for convenience of
reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof.

E. Severability. If any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any reason be
held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such provision or provisions
shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions hereof, and such invalidity,
illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this MOU shall
be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained
herein.

F. Compliance with Law. Each AGENCY shall, at its sole cost and expense, comply with all
State and federal ordinances and statutes, including regulations now in force or which may
hereafter be in force with regard to this MOU. The judgment of any court of competent
jurisdiction, or the admission of any AGENCY in any action or proceeding against an
AGENCY, whether any other AGENCY is a party thereto or not, that an AGENCY has
violated any such ordinance statute, or regulation, shall be conclusive of that fact.

G. Jurisdiction & Venue. This MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.
Any litigation regarding this MOU or its contents shall be filed in the County of Santa
Barbara, if in State court, or in the federal district court nearest to San Luis Obispo County,
if in federal court.

H. Authority.  All signatories and AGENCIES to this MOU warrant and represent that they
have the power and authority to enter into this MOU in the names, titles and capacities
herein stated and on behalf of any entities, persons, or firms represented or purported to
be represented by such entity(ies), person(s), or firm(s) and that all formal requirements
necessary or required by any State and/or federal law in order to enter into this MOU have
been fully complied with.

I. Execution of Counterparts.  This MOU may be executed in any number of counterparts
and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all
such counterparts, or as many of them as the AGENCIES shall preserve undestroyed, shall
together constitute one and the same instrument.

J. Survival. All provisions of this MOU which by their nature are intended to survive the
termination or expiration of this MOU shall survive such termination or expiration.

K. No Separate Legal Entity. AGENCIES agree ALLIANCE is a multi-jurisdictional
recommending agency that is not a separate legal entity and does not have powers of a
decision making body. The ALLIANCE cannot enter contracts, employ staff, apply for
grants or other funding, incur debts, sue or be sued.

L. Conflict of Interest. Each AGENCY covenants that it presently has no employment or
interest and shall not acquire any employment or interest, direct or indirect, including any
interest in any business, property, or source of income, which would conflict in any manner
or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this MOU.
CONTRACTOR further covenants that in the performance of this MOU, no person having
any such interest shall be employed by any AGENCY. Each AGENCY must promptly
disclose to SBCAG, in writing, any potential conflict of interest. SBCAG shall then



BROADBAND  
MOU for the term of January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022 
Page 5 of 9 

promptly notify the County of Santa Barbara. The County of Santa Barbara retains the 
right to waive a conflict of interest disclosed by and AGENCY if the County of Santa Barbara 
determines it to be immaterial, and such waiver is only effective if provided by the County 
of Santa Barbara to the AGENCY in writing. 

M. Mandatory Disclosure. Each AGENCY must disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to
SBCAG all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations
potentially affecting the award. SBCAG shall promptly report any such violations to the
County of Santa Barbara. Each AGENCY is required to report certain civil, criminal, or
administrative proceedings to the System for Award Management (SAM) located at
www.sam.gov. Failure to make required disclosures can result in any of the remedies
described in 2 CFR §200.338 Remedies for noncompliance, including suspension or
debarment. (See also 2 CFR part 180 and 31 U.S.C. 3321.)

N. Uniform Guidance. Each AGENCY shall comply with the requirements of Title 2, Code

of Federal Regulations, Part 200, which are hereby incorporated by reference in this
award.

O. Federal Funding. Table 1: Federal Award Information. The following Federal Award
Information is provided in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.332.

Table 1: Federal Award Identification 

1 Subrecipient Name 

2 
Subrecipient Unique Entity Number (DUNS; UEI 
Number) 

3 Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 

4 Federal Award Date 

5 
Subaward Period of Performance & Budget 
Period- Start Date 

6 
Subaward Period of Performance & Budget 
Period- End Date 

7 
Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this 
Action by Pass Through to Subrecipient 

8 

Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to 
Subrecipient by Pass Through Including Current 
Financial Obligation 

9 
Total Amount of Federal Award Committed to 
the Subrecipient by the Pass Through Entity 

10 Federal Award Project Description 

11 Federal Awarding Agency 

12 Pass Through Entity 

13 
Contact Information for Awarding Official of 
Pass Through Entity 

14 CFDA Number 

15 CFDA Name 

16 Is Award for Research and Development? 

17 Indirect Cost Rate for Award 

http://www.sam.gov/


BROADBAND  
MOU for the term of January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022 
Page 6 of 9 

18 Requirements Imposed by Pass Through Entity 

19 
Additional requirements- Financial and 
Performance Reports 

20 Access to Subrecipient Records 

21 Closeout Terms and Conditions 

(Signatures on following pages.) 



BROADBAND  
MOU for the term of January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022 
Page 7 of 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the AGENCIES hereto have executed this MOU with the 
BROADBAND ALLIANCE. 

Santa Barbara County Association of Governments 

_________________________________ 
Holly Sierra, Chair 
Date: ____________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 
SBCAG Counsel 

_________________________________ 
Date: ____________________________ 

County of Santa Barbara 

_________________________________ 
Bob Nelson, Chair 
Date: ____________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 
County of Santa Barbara Counsel 

_________________________________ 
Date: ____________________________ 

City of Buellton 

________________________________ 

Date: __________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 
City of Buellton Counsel 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

City of Carpinteria 



BROADBAND  
MOU for the term of January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022 
Page 8 of 9 

________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

City of Goleta 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

City of Guadalupe 

__________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

City of Lompoc 

__________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 



BROADBAND  
MOU for the term of January 1, 2022 to December 30, 2022 
Page 9 of 9 

Approved as to Legal Form 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

City of Santa Barbara  

__________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

City of Santa Maria 

__________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

City of Solvang 

__________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 

Approved as to Legal Form 

_________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________ 



1 

Santa Barbara County | Broadband Strategy  

Objective 
The Broadband Consortium of the Pacific Coast (BCPC) will coordinate with REACH 
and the Northern Santa Barbara County EconAlliance, local jurisdictions, and other 
key stakeholders and bring together higher education institutions and telecom 
providers to develop a long-term strategic plan for broadband deployment 
throughout Santa Barbara County and then the tri-county region. The Consortium 
will work as the project manager to ensure that the development of the strategic 
plan will achieve the following:  

• A plan for the design of broadband infrastructure that results in regional
middle mile networks to interconnect our local cities, increase capacity,
increase disaster preparedness, and encourage industry competition

• Utilize collaborative strategies to ensure digital inclusion and aligns with
Broadband for All California Initiative

• Ensure a Smart City vision for the future which requires technological
innovation.

Problem 
As a region, our communities lack reliable connectivity to the internet to work and 
learn efficiently and effectively.  While some areas of Santa Barbara County are well 
connected, including government and higher education, our businesses and our 
families have been affected by a lack of capacity, connection, at an affordable cost.  
We need to work to ensure final mile connectivity for our communities, including 
our schools, healthcare providers and our families.  

Lack of broadband infrastructure makes it difficult for the Central Coast to compete 
for and attract companies.  While expansion may take place over time, the region 
has historically not kept pace with evolving technology or service infrastructure.  

ATTACHMENT 2



2 

Outcome 
A comprehensive Santa Barbara Strategic Plan to be used as a guiding document 
and planning tool that will lead to increased fiber capacity throughout the county 
and connection to neighboring counties. Jurisdictions within the County can use the 
strategy to apply for infrastructure funding at the State and Federal levels.  
Significant funding is anticipated from both the state and federal levels of 
government and a plan will be required to apply for funding.  This strategy will 
provide the region with a “shovel ready” approach that aligns areas of needs, with 
both public and private interests to create a regional response that will maximize 
the collaborative potential of the stakeholders involved. 

Throughout the process, the Consortium will work to ensure that there is ownership 
of the shared strategies by Santa Barbara County partners and stakeholders. The 
outcome will result in the building of infrastructure to create accessibility and the 
development of future of Smart Cities.  

Short term tactics 
• REACH assisted GoBiz with deployment of broadband survey to all

municipalities and key private sector leadership and education – COMPLETED
and waiting for results

• Convene stakeholders to create an awareness of the imperative to establish
broadband as the 4th utility and deliver Internet 4 all.  This requires the
development of municipal stakeholder strategies integrated at the regional
level.

• Assess existing levels of service throughout the region and identify areas of
greatest need.

• Create an asset inventory of existing broadband assets and right of ways.
Specifically, establish a GIS platform that can serve as a unique regional
collaborative information sharing tool helpful to the development of initiatives
based on gaps identified, areas requiring service, existing assets, and
resources available.

• Convene a regional stakeholder group to inform review and advise existing
initiatives and recommend initiatives to close the gaps – specifically in
consideration of current initiatives and anticipated funding.

• Identify and support jurisdictions to get projects to shovel ready status
• Partner with local and state leadership to secure funding and investment

Ongoing tactics 
• Work with task force and stakeholders that will result in a middle-mile

regional network that interconnects municipalities and establishes
communications resiliency and redundancy while providing access and
capacity for the last mile private sector providers.



3 

• Advocate and work towards the establishment of community networks to
connect the anchor institutions to all municipalities.

• Develop collaborative partnerships for digital inclusion to close the digital
divide.

• Work with grant writers to assist in securing funding and investment as
needed for deployment of initiatives identified in the strategic plan

• Work with regional partners on governance strategy

Initial Investment Requirements  
75% Public Sector; 25% Private Sector 
≈ $300,000  

Grant funding from the following would offset need for long-term public-sector 
investment and increase ROI for the public partners: 

• RCRC
• RDOF
• CASF

• USDA
• ARPA
• NTIA

Other jurisdictions will be approached for funding support based on any broadband 
planning work completed.   

Strategic Partners & Roles 

All the partners are important to the development and deployment of a strategic plan. 
These key stakeholders help scope and shape the strategy and can sign on as 
applicants for grants or other funding opportunities. 

The Broadband Consortium of the Pacific Coast (BCPC) has as its primary 
purpose the expansion and improvement of broadband deployment, access, and 
adoption through the development of collaborative, stakeholder-driven regional 
strategies throughout the central coastal region of California 

Public Sector Jurisdictions are essential to the planning and deployment of 
broadband and specifically for adopting policies that support broadband installation, 
example would be a ‘dig once’ policy in coordination with all the jurisdictions.  Policy 
check list attached.  

Governor’s Office of Business and Economic Development (GoBiz) has been 
tasked to regularly convene private-sector companies to understand and predict 
current and future demand for broadband.  This important role is to help ensure 
that the proper allocation of resources and manage policies and programs that 
support broadband goals and initiatives that will support economic development 
and community wellbeing.  



4 

Anchor institutions are large organizations that tend to have access to build or 
connect reliably to broadband.  Examples of these institutions are universities, 
medical centers, government entities and school districts. anchor institutions can be 
considered as part of the ‘middle mile’ and host jumping off points to serve the 
surrounding community.  The role of the anchor institutions in the Central Coast 
region would play a critical role in broadband deployment in the Central Coast 
region.  Representatives from institutions would need to participate in a regional 
stakeholder group.  

Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians in Northern Santa Barbara County 
plays a very important role in broadband deployment in the region.  Their ability to 
assist in the connection of infrastructure between Northern Santa Barbara County 
and Southern San Luis Obispo County opens opportunity for the surrounding 
jurisdictions.  

Other partners, including Economic Development organizations and local experts 
have a significant role in broadband deployment. More specifically, they tend to 
understand the needs of the business community and hold the ear of the private 
sector.  The private sector can voice need and demand in real time with real 
problems is well as real strategies and solutions.  

Scope and Project Deliverables 

The consortium proposes that the scope of the project include the following: 

1. Broadband Analysis
a. Collateralize already developed studies with the help of partners and

consultant to determine preferred scenarios, update data, create an
educational packet of information of where we are and how to reach
and align with the California for All Broadband Action Plan

b. Aggregate SB County assets and include anchor institutions, municipal,
state, federal right of ways, and all other applicable assets to be
determined as a beneficial resource for broadband deployment.

c. Identify gaps in local governmental policies -ordinances, general plans
etc and recommend adoptable policies to support the streamlining,
expediting and accelerating the deployment of broadband
infrastructure.

d. Identify and tier top priorities for deployment within the county that
will result in increased speeds and equitable access while keeping in
mind future technology considerations until fiber can be installed in the
ground for redundancy and resiliency.



4 

e. Identify and aggregate potential State/Federal funding for deployment
investment for use by a public entity and same for private organization
or business.

f. Address if and how the potential for a public/private partnership would
benefit the County and the region.

2. Community Outreach
a. Host public forums that include businesses, education, the general

public to assess digital equity.
b. Public outreach that includes the above and jurisdictions for speed test

data
3. ISP Outreach

a. Work with ISP’s to identify successes and hardships in deployment
including permitting and process hindrances; help identify and create
documentation of benefit for retaining their services in the County

b. Work to create the benefit for expanding ISP services to expand the
middle mile for existing providers to leverage for business growth and
opportunity for others ISP’s to invest in the County and the Region

4. Future Planning
a. Consideration for the future

i. Cost estimate to deliver connectivity under the following
scenarios

1. Municipal networks
2. Public/Private Partnership Model
3. Connecting to underserved Residents

5. Economic Impacts
a. The BCPC will work to collate the economic analysis of the direct and

indirect employment creation through existing economic development
models to quantify potential economic impacts of broadband
deployment. The job analysis should also address job-quality metrics,
such as prevailing wages and other relevant labor standards.

b. This portion of the work product would be completed under a tri-
county proposal and may come back to the board for consideration.

6. Deliverables
a. A Santa Barbara County Broadband Strategy in DRAFT for review and

comment.
b. A FINAL Broadband Strategy to be utilized by the County and

participating jurisdictions in hard copy and digital files
c. Presentation will be developed and delivered with relevant materials

for the Board of Supervisors and any participating jurisdictions.



A Broadband Strategy
for the 

County of Santa Barbara

PROJECT COLLABORATORS

PROJEC T LEAD

ATTACHMENT 3



Agenda

Presentation Agenda

1. About the Broadband Consortium of the Pacific Coast

2. Broadband Status in the Tri-County Region

3. Broadband Strategic Planning Process

4. Catalyst Project Case Study

5. Wrap Up

6. Q&A

Santa Barbara Board of Supervisors

September 21, 2021



ABOUT BCPC
WHO WE ARE



What is the Broadband  
Consortium of the Pacific Coast?

• CPUC funded 16 statewide consortium to 
increase access to underserved and low-income 
communities

•The BCPC is the collaboration of Ventura, Santa 
Barbara, and San Luis Obispo in partnership with 
the Economic Development Collaborative (EDC), 
EconAlliance & REACH

•Assist government to streamline broadband 
infrastructure opportunities 

•Stakeholders include the Cities, County, 
Education, and the Private Sector

•http://pcbroadband.org

http://pcbroadband.org/


Invite civic leaders to embrace the 
need; team up with community 
and external entities to develop a 
unique, local broadband strategy

Include trusted agents and bridge 
builders working with neighborhood, 
infrastructure, and literacy partners to 
engage and enable communities

Integrate municipal middle mile 
investment to lower barriers to 
entry, foster industry competition, 
and drive affordable services

Convening Last Mile Collaborative Outcomes

Tri-County Planning Model
Literacy Skills

Future State

Current State 

GIS



State of Tri-County 
Broadband



Broadband is High Speed Internet



Current State: Santa Barbara County Broadband
John Wilczak was getting wireless high-speed Internet 
via (company’s) cell towers at his home in Santa Ynez, 
Calif., a town of about 4,400 near Santa Barbara. Cable 
and phone companies sell high speed Internet downtown, 
but they hadn’t built along his street. Mr. Wilczak’s
(company) service worked like a cellphone plan. Once 
when friends brought their children for a week-long visit, 
the children blew past his 50-gigabyte monthly cap and he 
was hit with a more than $900 bill.  Mr. Wilczak recently 
moved to a new house and dropped (company) in favor of a 
local wireless Internet company without data caps. He said 
at least half of the 40 people who considered buying his old 
house weren’t interested in part because it lacked reliable 
Internet

How Fast Internet Affects Home Prices - WSJCalifornia Broadband Infrastructure 
Report Card, Tellus Ventures, 2020

https://www.wsj.com/articles/how-fast-internet-affects-home-pricesfast-internet-access-can-boost-a-homes-value-1435694077


COVID: Catalyst for Digital Inclusion 

Source: https://broadbandusa.ntia.doc.gov/resources/data-and-mapping

Indicators of Broadband Need



Broadband Strategic 
Planning Process
FOR SANTA BARBARA COUNTY



Process & 
Deliverable

Purpose
• Ability to streamline 

grants and other funding
• Establish policy 

alignment among 
jurisdictions

• Increase accuracy of 
asset identification

• Education for 
communities

Regional Context
• Economies of scale
• Telecom support
• Approach with future focus 

for designing for cross 
jurisdictional boundaries

• Efficiency in approach for 
Digital Inclusion and Smart 
City planning

Stakeholders
• Anchor institutions
• Industry experts
• Telecom
• Jurisdiction 

representatives

Timeline & Cost
• 2-3 months project planning
• 4-6 months data collection
• 6-9 months plan drafted for 

review and final approval
• Final plan for FY 2022/2023 

adoption
• $400,000



Current Funding Opportunities
• American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
• California Advanced Services Fund (CASF)
• Connect America Fund (CAF)
• Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES) 
• Economic Development administration (EDA)
• Emergency Broadband Benefit (EBB)
• Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC)
• Rural Digital Opportunity Fund (RDOF)
• National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA)
• United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)



Catalyst Project Case 
Study & Next Steps for 
SB County



North County & Chumash Broadband

Local Strategy 
& Feasibility

• Local Needs
• Regional Opportunities
• Tribal Assets

• 2.5 GHZ Spectrum

Construction, Deployment & AdoptionConcept DevelopmentInitial Planning 

Complete

Awarded

Submitted

Submitted

North County 
Fiber Ring



Leveraging Collaborative Resources
Local Investment

County $200K Cities $70K Private $30K

Grant Funding

IEED (Chumash) $50K CASF (Chumash) $90K EDA (Chumash) $445K

NTIA (Chumash) $6M CASF (Cuyama) $12.5M

Broadband Strategy $300K North County Initiatives Awarded/Proposed ~$19M 



What’s Next for SB County
•BCPC – Leads strategic planning efforts with high intensity stakeholder engagement of partners and 
stakeholders to achieve the following:
• Initiate and guide governance discussion
• Ensure community resiliency & social equity
• Provide municipalities with direction and means to acquire funding

•SB County – Provide leadership and direction for the County and support the middle mile network work 
efforts

•Jurisdictions – In partnership with BCPC, assist with planning for receiving resources and deployment for last 
mile networks

•Anchor institutions – Key stakeholders engage to support the work and to connect as the nodes of the 
community network:
• Emergency services, public safety & fair grounds (OES partners)
• Education – K-12, College, Universities
• Libraries, hospitals & NGO’s

THIS STRATEGY PROVIDES DIRECTION AND MEANS TO ACQUIRE FUNDING TO ACHIEVE BROADBAND FOR ALL



Wrap Up  



Summary
The Strategy’s Desired Outcomes…

• An equitable, integrated response to a broad cross-section of community needs
• An approach for connected deployment that focuses on digital inclusion & mechanisms for digital 

literacy while aligning and leveraging resources
• Lowered barriers to entry, fostering industry competition and affordability 
• Redundancy during service failures / Critical connections to anchor institutions for emergency response
• A foundation for Distance Learning, Telemedicine, Social Services, Education, Public Safety, & 

Infrastructure Management
• Alignment with the efforts north and south (Tri-County)

Why the Consortium?
• Convening and collaboration is already occurring - simply a continuum of the last 6 years of effort
• Outcomes are stakeholder agreements rather than consultant recommendations
• Consortium awareness of both opportunities and existing activities can better guarantee leveraging 



Q&A



Page 1 of 4 

Agenda Item No. 11 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of November 23, 2021 

  
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Bill Scott, Contract City Planner Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider a Design Review Permit (2021-049-DR) for the Crandall 12th 
Street Apartments, a two-building 6-unit apartment complex on a 0.34-acre property 
in the R-3 (High Density residential) zoning district. The property is located on the 
northerly corner of Twelfth Street and Olivera Street, APN 115-033-002. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The applicant, Mr. Paul Knutson, applicant/designer on behalf of Mr. Trevor Crandall, property 
owner/developer, is requesting City Council approval of a Design Review permit to allow construction of 
a six-unit apartment complex on the northerly corner of Twelfth Street and Olivera Street. The Municipal 
Code requires City Council approval of a major Design Review (DR) permit for apartment projects having 
more than three apartment units. A Categorical Exemption was prepared for the project in accordance 
with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

1) Receive a presentation from staff;
2) Conduct a public hearing, including a) an opportunity for the applicant to present the proposed

project, and b) receive any comments from the public; and
3) Adopt Resolution No. 2021-88 approving the major Design Review Permit 2021-049-DR, for the

Crandall 12th Street apartment project.

BACKGROUND: 

Project Site and Vicinity 
The 0.34-acre property is currently vacant and fenced. The property was recently occupied by a church. 
A demolition permit was approved by the City in 2020 to allow removal of the building and clearing of 
the site. To the south, east and west are long-established original City neighborhoods. The neighborhood 
is zoned for R-3 (High Density) residential use and is made up of a mixture of single-family and multiple-
family dwellings. Downtown Guadalupe is four blocks southwesterly. The Guadalupe city limits extends 
along the northwesterly side of the property. 

Bill Scott 



Page 2 of 4 
 

The neighboring property on the west is occupied by a small six-building cluster housing development 
constructed roughly around the 1940’ s. A similar vacant lot zoned for R-3 use is across Olivera Street to 
the east. Because the area is already developed with similar uses, the site has most municipal services 
and facilities in place, and future residents would have easy access to downtown, the proposed project 
is consistent with the City’s general plan.  The segment of Olivera Street, north of Twelfth Street, is 
unimproved and terminates at the City Limits on the north. A Vicinity Map is provided as Attachment 2. 
  
Project Description 
 
The six apartment units are contained in two, 2-story apartment buildings. The Site Plan places the 
apartment buildings near the Twelfth/Olivera Streets intersection on the south end of the property and 
the parking behind the apartments on the north side. The two apartment buildings are identical in 
design. The Site Plan identifies them as Building “A” and “Building “B.” (Attachment 3 - Plan set).  
 
Building “A” contains Units 1-3 and Building “B” contains Units 4-6. The six apartments have two-levels, 
and all the floor plans are the same. Each apartment is 900 square feet in size. The first floor contains a 
living room, kitchen, a dining room and ½ bathroom. The second floor has two bedrooms and a full bath. 
A private yard is accessed from the dining area on the west side of the buildings. No space for laundry 
hookups is provided (Attachment 3 - Floor Plan). 
 
As noted, the developer proposes a 13-space parking lot on the north side of the apartment buildings 
with the driveway extending from Olivera Street on the east. A six-foot high masonry wall will be 
constructed along the northerly and westerly property lines. The west half of the segment of Olivera 
Street will be paved as a part of the project. Landscape coverage and the provision of open space is 
discussed below in the Discussion section.  
 
Building Exteriors 
The apartment buildings are simple in design. The designer calls the buildings a “Contemporary” 
architectural type. The buildings are generally rectangular, and the center unit is off-set slightly to better 
break-up the building’s length. A variety of decorative elements, including railings, a window cover 
element, and decorative ceramic tiles have been added to embellish the buildings. The roofs are a 
variation of a hip roof with gable end elements. The front entries are covered by a 2-foot-wide roof (the 
Zoning Ordinance currently limits covered porch projections to two feet). 
 
The exterior materials are substantial and include a stucco finish exterior, stone veneer at the base, and 
concrete tile roofs. The exteriors are a light crème color with darker earth tones for the trim (Attachment 
3 - Elevation Plan).  
 
DISCUSSION 
The primary issues associated with the project are: 1) ensuring a project design that is supportive of the 
immediate neighborhood; 2) compliance with applicable City codes and development standards; and 3) 
providing a high degree of livability for the future residents. 
 
Compatibility with the Neighborhood 



Page 3 of 4 
 

To best relate to the neighborhood the two apartment buildings are placed as close to the Twelfth and 
Olivera Street intersection as allowed by setbacks of the R-3 zone. The parking area and trash enclosure 
is on the opposite end, behind the apartments on the north side of the property. Instead of turning its 
back to the public streets, the project orients Building “A” with its front entries facing the street. 
Sidewalks extend from the sidewalks on Olivera Street to the apartment unit entries.  
 
The building orientation appropriately puts the Building “A” private yards in the site interior and puts 
the most highly articulated sides of the buildings facing Twelfth and Olivera Streets (Site Plan -
Attachment 3). As discussed above, the building designs are simple but appropriate. At under 25 feet 
the buildings are substantially under that the 35-foot maximum height allowed by the R-3 zoning district. 
The buildings, site plan and landscape plan should provide a satisfactory appearance at this corner 
location in Original City portion of Guadalupe. 
 
No traffic issues are associated with the six-unit complex. The project provides future residents with 
walkable opportunities to the goods, services, transportation, and entertainment available in the City’s 
Downtown. Traffic in this segment of Olivera Street is currently limited to the several pickup trucks that 
make deliveries to the neighboring property in the County on the north.  
 
MUNICIPAL CODE CONFORMANCE 
 
Landscape Coverage 
For decorative landscaped areas, the Municipal Code specifies not less than 10% of a parcel shall be 
covered with dense landscaping. The Plan Set indicates the project is providing 6,333 square-feet (42.2%) 
of landscape coverage. As proposed, the landscape coverage meets or exceeds the Municipal Code 
minimum standard for decorative landscape coverage.  
 
The setback areas along Twelfth Street and Olivera Street would be substantially landscaped; and include 
a good variety of trees, shrubs, and ground cover (Attachment 3). The Landscape Plan includes a total of 
13 ornamental trees planted throughout the project, and particularly along the Twelfth Street and 
Olivera Street frontages.  
 
Usable Open Space: 
For apartments having a ground floor in the R-3 zone, the Municipal Code specifies a minimum 100 
square feet of fenced private ground-level open space. The ordinance specifies that private yards should 
typically be rectangular in shape and have a minimum width of no less than eight feet.  
 
The project is providing fenced private yards for each unit. Depending on the unit, the private yards vary 
from eight-feet by fifteen-feet (120-square-feet) to twelve-feet by fifteen feet (180-square-feet) in size. 
The private yards meet the Municipal Code minimum. Additionally, a 625-square-foot common outdoor 
seating and picnic area is provided on the north side of Building “B” (Attachment 3). 
  
Parking 
The Zoning Ordinance specifies two parking spaces are required for each apartment unit; one of which 
shall be covered. The project is proposing twelve City standard size parking spaces, six of which will be 
covered by carports. Therefore, the project meets the Municipal Code parking standard.  



Page 4 of 4 

All of the other applicable Zoning Code standards; including but not limited to: building setbacks, density, 
and site  access and circulation have been met by the project.   

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
As noted, the segment of Olivera Street north of Twelfth Street is unimproved. The project will make 
paving improvements on Olivera Street. The improvements would include new half-street paving; and 
new curbs, gutter and sidewalk improvements along the Olivera Street frontage. Curb, gutter and 
sidewalk improvements would also be made along the Twelfth Street frontage. The project will also be 
responsible for replacing an existing segment of 6-inch sewer with a new 8-inch sewer line. The sewer 
upgrades will extend from the west side of the property to Olivera Street; and from Twelfth Street to 
Eleventh Street.    

CEQA Review 
The project is exempt from further environmental review. The apartment project is on a small infill 
property less than five acres in size. The site is surrounded on three sides by urban development within 
the existing City Limits. Municipal services and facilities are generally in place, and the 0.38-acres is found 
to have no value for protected wildlife. Therefore, the project has been found to be exempt from CEQA 
based on the Class 32 (Small Infill Projects) Categorical Exemption (Cal. Code Regs. Tit. 14, Sec. 15332). 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Staff published the required Public Hearing Notice in a newspaper of general circulation on Friday, 
November 12, 2021.  Copies of the Public Hearing Notice were also mailed to property owners and 
occupants within a 300-foot radius of the subject property. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Fiscal impacts are anticipated to be negligible. As noted, the 6-unit apartment complex is a small project 
on an infill property in an established neighborhood where City infrastructure is already established, and 
municipal services are already provided. The project developer will install all utilities and improvements 
needed to serve the project.  

Conclusion: 
As discussed above, the Crandall 12th Street apartment project meets the applicable Municipal Code 
standards. The project is anticipated to be a good fit for the corner location. Furthermore, the Crandall 
12th Street apartments should provide a quality living environment for its residents in a walkable 
distance to the goods, services, entertainment and transportations facilities available in the City’s 
Downtown. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-88, including CEQA Exemption (Exhibit 1), Approval Findings (Exhibit 2) and
Conditions of Approval (Exhibit 3)

2. Aerial Vicinity Map
3. Project Plans



Page 1 of 23 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-88 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING 
A DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT FOR THE CRANDALL TWELFTH STREET APARTMENTS, 2021-049-DR, 
TO PERMIT A 6 UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX ON A 0.34-ACRE PROPERTY AT THE NORTHERLY 

CORNER OF TWELFTH STREET AND OLIVERA STREET (APN 115 -033 - 002) 

WHEREAS, Mr. Trevor Crandall (the “Developer”) has applied to the City of Guadalupe for a 
design review permit to allow the Crandall 12th Street Apartments, a six-unit apartment complex 
on a 0.34-acre property in the R-3 zoning district; and 

WHEREAS, the development site is in a part of the Original City of Guadalupe, and within a 
walkable distance to the City’s Downtown; and   

WHEREAS, in consideration of the neighborhood and this corner location, the project design 
places the living areas near the Twelfth and Olivera Street intersection with the parking and 
service facilities at the rear of the property and substantial landscape and tree plantings are be 
provided along the public street frontages; and  

WHEREAS, Consistent with General Plan policy, the Developer shall be responsible to make the 
public roadway improvements and infrastructure upgrades needed to serve the project; and    

WHEREAS, the project will support General Plan objectives to provide new housing on an infill 
site where municipal services and facilities are in place; and where residents have easy walkable 
access to goods and services; and transportation facilities in Downtown Guadalupe.  

WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly-noticed public hearing on November 23, 2021, at which 
all interested persons were given the opportunity to be heard, and notice of said hearing was 
published in the Santa Maria Times at least 10 days prior to the public hearing. Said public hearing 
notice was also mailed to all residents and property owners within 300 feet of said property; and 

WHEREAS, after taking public testimony and hearing evidence from City staff, the City Council 
finds, pursuant to the findings attached to this resolution as Exhibit 2 and subject to the project’s 
Conditions of Approval attached to this resolution as Exhibit 3, that the approval of the Major 
Design Review Permit, is consistent with the City’s General Plan and applicable Articles of the 
City’s Municipal Code; and   

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the entire administrative record, including application 
materials, staff report, the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) determination, and oral 
and written testimony from interested persons; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that after completely reviewing this project, it can be seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on 

ATTACHMENT 1



Page 2 of 23 

the environment, and therefore the activity is not subject to CEQA per CEQA Guidelines Section 
15332, Exhibit 1; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that approval of the Design Review Permit is consistent with the 
City’s General Plan and the provisions of Title 18 (Zoning Code) of the Guadalupe Municipal Code; 
and  

WHEREAS,  the City Council has the ability to make the findings required to approve the 
project, including findings pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Guadalupe does hereby 
find and determine as follows: 

Section 1. The Findings set forth in Exhibit 2 to this Resolution are true and correct 
regarding the Design Review Permit, which are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2. After reviewing this project completely, it can be seen with certainty that 
there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant 
effect on the environment, and therefore the activity is not subject to 
further CEQA review per CEQA Guidelines Section 15332. 

Section 3. The Design Review Permit is approved, subject to the Conditions of 
Approval set forth in Exhibit 3 of this Resolution. 

Section 4. The City Council Secretary shall certify as to the adoption of this 
Resolution. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 23rd day of November 2021 by 
the following vote:  

MOTON: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-88 has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by 
the City Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held November 23, 2021, and that same 
was approved and adopted.   



Page 3 of 23 

ATTEST: 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  Ariston Julian, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ 
Philip F. Sinco, City Attorney 

Exhibits: 
Exhibit 1 - CEQA Categorical Exemption 
Exhibit 2 - Findings 
Exhibit 3 - Conditions of Approval 



Page 4 of 23 

Notice of Exemption Exhibit 1 

To:  County Clerk  From: City of Guadalupe 
County of Santa Barbara 819 Obispo Street 
123 E. Anapamu Street  Guadalupe, CA  93434 
Santa Barbara, CA  93101 

Project Title: Crandall 12th Street Apartments 

Project Applicant: Trevor Crandall. 

Project Location-Specific:   North side of the intersection of 12th Sreet and Olivera St. (4573 12th Street)  

Project Location-City: City of Guadalupe                     Project Location-County: Santa Barbara County 

Description of Nature, Purpose, and Beneficiaries of Project: 

The project is a Design Review (DR) permit, in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 18.73, to allow 
development of a six-unit apartment complex and associated parking and landscaping on a 0.34-acre 
property in the R-3 (High Density Residential) zoning district at the above-referenced location. The project 
is anticipated to benefit the project developer through a potential financial return. The project would support 
the City’s General Plan objectives to increase the housing supply for the community;  and the project would 
benefit its future residents by providing a quality living environment in close proximity to transit and to 
services in Downtown Guadalupe. 

Name of Public Agency Approving Project: Guadalupe City Council 

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Paul Knutson, applicant/designer, in behalf of 
Treavor Crandall, property owner/developer.  

Exempt Status: (check one)

__ Ministerial (Sec. 15268); 
__ Declared Emergency (Sec. 15269(a)); 
__ Emergency Project (Sec. 15269(b)(c)); 
XX Categorical Exemption. Section 15332 
__ General Exemption (Section 15061(b)(3)) 



Page 5 of 23 

Reasons why project is exempt: 
The project consists of a six-unit apartment complex on a 0.34-acre site in the R-3 Zoning District in the 
City of Guadalupe.  

The project is exempt in accordance with CEQA Class 15332 because: 

a) The project is consistent with the High Density Residential (20 DU/AC) General Plan land use
designation and corresponding R-3 High Density Residential zoning on the property.

b) The proposed development will occur on an infill site, less than five-acres in size (0.34-acre); and
the property is wholly within the Guadalupe City limits.

c) The project site surrounded on three sides by similar urban uses in the City. Residential
neighborhoods consisting of single-family and multi-family residences in the R-3 zone surround the
property to the to the south, east, and west.

d) The property has been cleared and graded through approval of a City demolition permit. There are
no trees or vegetation present; and the property has no value as habitat for rare or endangered
species.

e) Approval of the six-unit apartment project would not result in significant effects related to traffic,
noise, air quality, or water quality; and the infill site is adequately served by all required utilities and
municipal services. The project includes design measures that are sustainable and encourage
pedestrian activity and usage of other alternative transportation modes

Based on the above, it can be seen with certainty that the proposed project could not have a significant 
effect on the environment. 

Contact Person: Bill Scott (Area Code) Phone Number/Ext:  (805) 478-4778 

Signature:    _______  Title: Contract City Planner 

Date received for filing at County Clerk’s Office: ________________ 

(Form prepared March 2018) 



Page 6 of 23 

EXHIBIT 2, FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL 

DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT 
CRANDALL 12TH STREET APARTMENTS 

2021-049-DR 

1.0 CEQA Findings 

1.1 CONSIDERATION OF THE CEQA EXEMPTION AND FULL DISCLOSURE 

The City Council has considered the Class 32 Categorical Exemption together with the comments 
received and considered during the public review process for the project. The Class 32 Exemption 
has been completed in compliance with CEQA and is adequate for this proposal. 

1.2  FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT EFFECT 

Based on the whole record, it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, and therefore the activity 
is not subject to CEQA.   

1.3 LOCATION OF DOCUMENTS 

The documents and other materials which constitute the record of proceedings upon which this 
decision is based are in the custody of the City of Guadalupe, 918 Obispo Street, Guadalupe, CA 
93434. 

2.0 Administrative Findings 

2.1 DESIGN REVIEW FINDINGS 

Pursuant to City of Guadalupe Municipal Code, Section 18.73.100, a Design Review Permit shall 
be approved only if all the following findings can be made: 

A. The buildings, structures, and landscaping are appropriate and of good design in relation
to other buildings, structures, and landscaping on-site or in the immediate vicinity of the
project.

The project has been designed with full consideration for both the quality of livability for
its future residents and its compatibility with the neighborhood in which the project is
located. The project meets or exceeds Municipal Code landscape and open space
standards. The immediate area is an established part of the City typified by single-family
homes and small multi-family developments. The project has placed buildings at the front
setback near the Twelfth Street and Oliveira Street intersection, with parking areas



Page 7 of 23 

placed, away from the neighborhood, at the rear of the property. Apartment Building 1 is 
oriented with front entries to face Olivera Street; and additional architectural 
embellishments provided to the south building elevations facing Twelfth Street. The front 
and side-yard setbacks facing the public streets are substantially landscaped and include 
a good variety of trees, shrubs, and ground cover.  

B. That the development will be compatible with the neighborhood, and its size, bulk and
scale will be appropriate to the site and the neighborhood.

Consistent with the buildings in the immediate area, the two-story apartment buildings
have a maximum height of 24-feet 8-inches; and the building exteriors include substantial
materials and earth-tone colors that are compatible with the immediate neighborhood.

C. There is harmony of material, color, and composition of all sides of a structure or buildings
as well as consistency and unity of composition and treatment of exterior elevation.

The apartment buildings are of simple design. However, the exterior design includes a
harmonious combination of materials that include with concrete tile roofing and stone
veneer at the base and a variety of compatible decorative exterior features. The exterior
building materials and colors are harmonious and are consistently applied on all sides of
the buildings.

D. Any mechanical or electrical equipment is well integrated into the total design concept
and screened from public view to the maximum extent practicable.

Any mechanical and/or electrical equipment will be designed and located to minimize
visibility and will be screened from public view as applicable.

E. All visible on-site utility services are appropriate in size and location.

All utility services are appropriate in their use, size and placement on the project site.

F. The grading will be appropriate to the site.

The grading plan is appropriate for the site; and includes appropriately landscaped
stormwater treatment facilities to serve the functional needs of the project while
enhancing site appearance. The grading plan has been endorsed by the City Engineer for
its functionality, and by the Planning Department for its finished usage and final
appearance.



Page 8 of 23 

G. Adequate landscaping is provided in proportion to the project and the site with due regard
to the preservation of existing trees, and existing native vegetation, and adequate
provision will be made for the long-term maintenance of such landscaping.

Dense landscaping is provided throughout the project site, including but not limited to a
substantial landscape planting in the front and side-yard setback areas facing the public
streets, and around the parking areas. A total of 13 trees will be installed around the
north, east and south site perimeters. The project has been conditioned to require
permanent maintenance of the landscaped areas in accordance with Municipal Code
18.64.120.

H. The development will not adversely affect significant public scenic views.

There are on significant viewsheds in the project vicinity. The landscape and tree planting
plan as well as associated public improvements are anticipated to improve the overall
appearance of the project site and its immediate vicinity.

I. All exterior site, structure and building lighting is well-designed and appropriate in size
and location.

All exterior lighting fixtures shall be located, directed, and shielded to minimize potential
light and glare impacts on neighboring properties.

J. The proposed development is consistent with any additional design standards as expressly
adopted by the City Council.

No additional design standards were required by the City Council. However, the project
was designed in full consideration of the applicable historic and neighborhood
preservation goals and objectives of the City’s General Plan.

K. The project architecture will respect the privacy of neighbors and is considerate of solar
access.

The project is completely considerate of solar access and the site design and building
placement will ensure no impact will result to the privacy of neighboring properties in the
project area.

L. The project will provide for adequate street design and sufficient parking for residents and
guests in a safe and aesthetically pleasing way.

A total of thirteen parking spaces are provided which exceeds the 12-parking space
requirement. The parking spaces are designed to City standards and as noted, the site
design places buildings close to the Twelfth Street and Olivera Street and the parking
areas and trash service facilities at the rear of the property.



Page 9 of 23 

M. The proposed development as shown on the project plans is in conformance with all
applicable policies of the General Plan and the requirements of this title.

The project meets or exceeds the applicable standards established by the City of
Guadalupe Municipal Code. The project supports General Plan urban design objectives;
and housing goals to provide a quality living environment for future residents.



Page 10 of 23 

EXHIBIT 3 

Crandall six-unit apartment complex 
2021-049-DR 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. Project Description: Subject to the conditions set forth below, this permit authorizes
the improvements and uses requested by Application No. 2021-049-DR, shown in the
project plans on file with the City of Guadalupe.  The project consists of the
construction and occupancy of a six-unit apartment complex on a 0.34-acre property;
with a total of twelve City standard sized parking spaces; six of the parking spaces are
covered by carports; and associated landscaping and private open space as shown on
the approved plan set.

Any deviations from the project description in the staff report, exhibits or conditions
must be reviewed and approved by the City of Guadalupe for conformity with this
approval. The project shall be constructed as shown on the approved plan set
(Attachment 3), dated March 22, 2021. Deviations may require amendments to the
permit, including additional CEQA review.  Deviations without the above-described
approval will constitute a violation of the permit approval.

2. The Applicant agrees, as a condition of approval of this resolution to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless, at Applicant’s expense, City and agents, officers, and
employees from and against any claim, action or proceeding to attack, review, set
aside, void, or annul the approval of this permit or to determine the reasonableness,
legality or validity of any condition attached hereto. City shall promptly notify the
Applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, to which City receives notice, and
City will cooperate fully with Applicant in the defense thereof. Applicant shall
reimburse the City for any court costs and attorney’s fees that the City may be
required to pay as a result of any such claim, action or proceeding, but such
participation shall not relieve Applicant of the obligation of this condition. Applicant’s
acceptance of this permit approval or commencement of construction or operations
under the approval shall be deemed to be acceptance of all conditions of approval.

3. If any condition imposing a fee, exaction, or dedication is challenged by the project
sponsors in an action filed in a court of law or threaten to be filed therein which action
is brought within the time period provided for by law, this this approval shall be
suspended pending dismissal of such action, the expiration of the limitation period
applicable to such action, or final action. If any condition is invalidated by a court of
law, the entire project shall be reviewed by the City and substitute conditions may be
imposed.



Page 11 of 23 

4. In accordance with Section 18.73.120 of the City Municipal Code, this Design Review
approval shall expire two (2) years from the date of approval, unless a building permit
for the proposed improvements has been obtained prior to expatriation. Up to two
one-year time extensions may be granted for good cause. An extension must be filed
with the City prior to the permit expiration date.

CITY ENGINEER CONDITIONS 

5. All engineering submittals prepared by the applicant’s engineer shall be signed and
sealed by a California licensed civil engineer.

6. All new and existing electrical, telephone, and communication utility distribution
service wires onsite and in adjacent easements shall be placed underground.

7. Provide a trash enclosure and dumpster located on the west end of the asphalt drive.
Follow City of Santa Barbara trash enclosure guidelines (available upon request).

8. All water meters shall be placed in the parkway, adjacent to the curb.  Landscape area
greater than 5,000 square feet requires a separate, appropriately-sized irrigation
meter.

9. For service lines already connected to the utility system, water and wastewater
connection fees shall be based solely on an increase in water meter size and shall be
calculated and collected prior to installation of the larger meter.  For new water
meters (except for ADUs) full connection fees shall apply, per the 2020-2021 master
fee schedule. The owner shall pay for meter and all connection fees prior to issuance
of the Building Permit.

10. Park development and public facilities fees shall be paid per the master fee schedule.

11. The developer shall obtain an encroachment permit from the Building/Planning
Department prior to any work in public streets, right-of-way, or easements.

12. All sewer lines on-site shall be privately owned and maintained.  Drawings shall label
all privately owned lines as such.  Private sewer lines shall tie into the public sewer
main using a wye connection.  Sewer laterals shall not be connected to the public
sewer main at a manhole.

13. All the following conditions shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer
prior to issuance of certificate of occupancy for the project, unless otherwise stated
herein or as agreed by the City Engineer.

14. The applicant shall provide an engineer’s estimate for all work included on the public
improvement plans, and enter into an agreement with the City, subject to the City's



Page 12 of 23 

approval. If approved by the City, bonds or other forms of securities shall be submitted 
as a guarantee for the construction of infrastructure improvements before the 
approval of building permits. 

15. Public infrastructure improvements shall be designed and constructed per the City of
Santa Maria standards (adopted by the City of Guadalupe), and the City of Guadalupe
standard drawings when available.  The decision of the City Engineer shall be final
regarding the specific standards that shall apply.

16. The applicant shall submit drainage calculations or an updated drainage report with
the public improvement plans.

17. Submit an Erosion and Drainage Control Plan to the City Engineer for review and
approval prior to construction.  The plan shall reflect “Best Management Practices” as
proposed in the California Regional Water Quality Control Board Erosion and
Sediment Control Field Manual and shall include both temporary measures (to be
used during construction, and until permanent measures are completed/established)
and permanent measures.  Erosion control measures shall be in place and approved
by the City before the start of construction. The plan shall include both source control
and perimeter containment measures.  All Drainage and Erosion Control Measures
shall be designed and sized by a qualified professional.

18. All stormdrain infrastructure located on-site and required by the Post-Construction
Requirements (PCRs) adopted by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board
for the Central Coast Region shall be privately owned and maintained.

19. Install Storm Drain Markers on all drainage inlets prior to issuance of the first
occupancy clearance.

20. Install Bioretention Signage on all bioretention areas prior to issuance of the first
occupancy clearance.

21. Submit grading and drainage plans, including a geotechnical report providing
technical specifications for grading of the site and prepared by a Geotechnical
Engineer, to the City and Santa Barbara County Flood Control District for plan checking
and comment. Before building permits are issued, address all comments to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

22. Upon approval of the improvement plans, the applicant shall provide a scanned .pdf
of the signed plans and three sets of prints of the signed improvement plans for
inspection purposes.

23. Before final inspections and acceptance of the public improvements, the applicant
shall provide to the City Engineer record as-built drawings, signed by the engineer of



Page 13 of 23 

record in the following method: one set of scanned pdfs, one set of reproducible 
mylars, and an electronic AutoCAD drawing file.  

24. The project shall comply with all Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4)
requirements.  Low impact development, best management practices and similar
regulations and guidelines shall be met.  The design shall be in compliance with the
Santa Barbara County Post Construction Requirements, Stormwater Technical Guide,
and all future updates.

25. The developer shall submit a drainage study prepared by a registered civil engineer
addressing pre and post-development storm water run-off.  Post-development storm
water management shall be addressed and shall be consistent with the State and
County requirements.

26. Prior to final occupancy, an “Owner’s Agreement to Construct and Maintain Private
Drainage Improvements for Water Quality” on all private lots where LID measures are
required must be approved, signed by the owner and City, and recorded.  A template
is available from the City Engineer.

27. Prior to final occupancy and if required, a “Storm Water Control Measures
Certification of Approval” must be signed and stamped by a California Registered
Engineer, Architect, Geologist and/or Landscape Architect and submitted to the City
Engineer.  A template is available from the City Engineer.

28. Prior to construction, the developer shall provide a copy of a preliminary Title Report,
no more than 6 months old to the City Engineer.

29. The entire site shall be permanently maintained free of accumulated dirt and litter
and in an otherwise neat and attractive manner and adhere to the requirements of
the City of Guadalupe Municipal Code.  Any graffiti on the property shall be promptly
painted out.  All landscaping areas in the property shall be permanently maintained
with healthy, growing plant material, free from weeds.  Dead or dying plant material
shall be replaced within one month of plant deterioration.  Failure to comply with this
condition is a public nuisance and is subject to the adopted citation ordinance of the
City of Guadalupe.

30. The developer shall repair any cracked or broken curb, gutter, and sidewalk within the
project frontage along 12th and Olivera Streets. Public Works staff will determine the
extent of the sidewalk and curb and gutter repair in the field prior to
construction.  Driveways shall be flush with adjacent sidewalk.

31. The developer shall upgrade the public sewer main on 12th Street from a new manhole 
in 12th Street aligned with west edge of property to Olivera Street and on Olivera
Street from 12th Street to 11th Street to meet minimum sewer size requirement of 8-



Page 14 of 23 

inch for multifamily developments in accordance with Santa Maria standard 
specifications.  All plans must be signed by the City Engineer prior to commencement 
of construction activities. 

32. Half-street paving improvements shall be completed on the section of Olivera north
of Twelfth Street.

PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 

33. Commencement of work. The applicant shall notify City Planning Department and City
Building Department staff of the start date for construction at least five (5) working
days in advance of the start of work. This notification shall also include an estimated
construction schedule and a truck haul route for demolished and recycled materials.
The applicant shall also notify City staff of the completion of construction and
demolition work no more than one working day upon completion.

34. Recycling. Excess construction materials and demolition materials shall be recycled to
the extent feasible and proof of recycling in the form or receipt from the recycling
facility noting recycled materials and amounts shall be provided to City staff.

35. Fees. Prior to Zoning Clearance, the applicant shall pay all applicable permit
processing fees in full, including but not limited to building permit fees.

36. Zoning Clearance. No Building Permit shall be issued until a Zoning Clearance has first
been issued by the City.

37. Agreement to Comply. Approval of this Design Review is not valid until the property
owner or authorized agent signs and returns the Agreement to Comply form, agreeing
to the terms and Conditions of Approval. The signed form must be submitted to
Planning Department prior to issuance of a Zoning Clearance.

38. Compliance with Conditions. The applicant shall comply at all times with these
conditions. If complaint are filed with the City, staff will review the complaints and
determine if a meeting with the applicant and complainants can resolve the issue(s).
If no resolution is reached, a hearing will be scheduled before the City Council for staff
to present a recommendation to resolve the issue(s) The applicant shall be
responsible for the fees to cover staff time.

39. Construction Hours. The Owner/Applicant, including all contractors and
subcontractors shall limit construction activity, including equipment maintenance and
site preparation, to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through
Friday.  No-noise generating construction shall occur on weekends or state holidays.
Non-noise generating interior construction activities such as plumbing, electrical,
drywall and painting (which does not include the use of compressors, tile saws, or



Page 15 of 23 

other noise- generating equipment) are not subject to these restrictions. The 
applicant is advised that building inspector and planning staff will spot check and 
responds to complaints. 

40. Landscaping. Landscape Plan. Prior to issuance of Zoning Clearance, the applicant shall
submit a Final landscape Plan for review and approval by the Planning Director. Prior
to the first occupancy clearance, the project shall have all landscaping planted.
Landscaping shall be installed and maintained per the City-approved landscape and
irrigation plan and maintained for the life of the project. The type, size, density and
configuration of new plants shall be selected to maximize successful establishment
and growth to achieve this landscaping objective within a reasonable period of time
after installation. Final landscape and irrigation plans shall be submitted by the
Applicant to the City for review and approval prior to issuance of Zoning Clearance.
All landscaping and irrigation shall be completed and installed prior to the first
Occupancy Clearance of that particular phase of development. Plant locations may be
adjusted in the field (as directed by Planning staff) to achieve landscaping objectives.
The applicant shall contact City Planning staff at least 48 hours prior to request for
occupancy clearance to verify that landscaping and irrigation has been installed
according to the approved plans, Failure to comply with the requirements could
jeopardize issuance of the occupancy clearance.

41. Additional Permits Required. The use and/or construction of any structures or
improvements authorized by this approval shall not commence until all necessary
planning and building permits are obtained. Before any Permit will be issued by the
Building Department, the Owner/Applicant must obtain written clearance from all
determents having conditions. Such clearance shall indicate that the Owner/Applicant 
must obtain written clearance from all departments having conditions. Such clearance
shall indicate that the Owner/Applicant has satisfied all pre-construction conditions.

42. Design Review Expiration. The Owner/Applicant shall obtain the required Zoning
Clearance within 24 months following the effective date of this Design Review Permit.
If the required Zoning Clearance is not issued within 24 months following the effective
date of this Deign Review Permit, or within such extended period of time as may be
authorized in compliance with Section 18.73.120.B of the Guadalupe Municipal Code,
and an application for an extension has not been submitted to the Planning
Department, then the Design Review permit shall be considered void and of no further
effect.

43. Design Review-Void. This Design Review Permit shall become void and be
automatically revoked if the development and/or authorized use allowed by this time
Design Review Permit is discontinued for a period of more than 12 months, or within
such extended period as may be authorized in compliance with Section 18.73.120.B
of the Guadalupe Municipal Code. Any use authorized by this Design Review Permit
shall immediately cease upon expiration or revocation of this Design Review Permit.



 
 

Page 16 of 23 
 

Any Zoning Clearance approved or issued pursuant to this Design Review Permit shall 
expire upon expiration or revocation of the Design Review Permit. Design Review 
Permit renewals must be applied for prior to expiration of the Design Review Permit. 

 
44. Plans Requirements. The Owner/Applicant shall ensure all applicable final conditions 

of approval are printed in their entirety on applicable pages of grading/construction 
or building plans submitted to the Building Department. 

 
45. Contractor and Subcontractor notification. The Owner/Applicant shall ensure that 

potential contractors are aware of City conditions and requirements. 
Owner/Applicant shall notify all contractors and subcontractors in writing of the site 
rules, restrictions, and Conditions of Approval and submit a copy of the notice to 
Planning Staff. 

 
46. Time Extensions-All Projects. The Owner/Applicant may request a time extension 

prior to the expiration of the permit or entitlement for development. The review 
authority with jurisdiction over the project may, upon good cause shown, grant a time 
extension in compliance with City rules and regulations, which include reflecting 
changed circumstances and ensuring compliance with CEQA. If the Owner/Applicant 
requests a time extension for this permit, the permit may be revised to include 
updated language to standard conditions and/or mitigation measures and additional 
conditions and/or mitigation measures which reflect changed circumstances or 
additional identified project impacts. 

 
47. All newly planted landscaping shall be maintained for the life of the project. 
 
48. In the unexpected event archeological or paleontological resources are unearthed 

during project construction, all earth disturbing work within the project area of 
potential effect (APE) must be temporarily suspended until an archaeologist has 
evaluated the nature and significance of the find. After the find has been 
appropriately mitigated, work in the area may resume. A Native American 
representative should monitor any archaeological field work associated with Native 
American materials. 

 
49. The project is required to comply with standard lighting requirements per the 

Guadalupe Municipal Code, which requires that light and glare be minimized on any 
adjacent properties. Exterior lighting shall be shown on all Building plans prior to 
approval of the Zoning Clearance and Building Permit.  

 
50. Carports. A minimum of six (6) covered parking spaces are required. Detailed plans for 

carports shall be approved by the Zoning Administrator or a designee, prior to 
approval of a Zoning Clearance for Building Permit. 

 
51. Lot Combining. A lot combining may be required prior to issuance of a building permit. 



Page 17 of 23 

52. Stormwater. The project is Tier 2 project as identified in the Project Clean water
Technical Guide, established as the guiding document for stormwater discharges in
Santa Barbara County. The project shall establish and implement a Stormwater
Control Plan, in accordance with the protocol established by the Project Clean water
Technical Guide.

a) Prior to occupancy the Stormwater Control Plan shall be approved by the City;
and the measures identified shall be fully constructed to the satisfaction of the
City.

b) All stormwater control measures, and associated landscaping shall be
maintained by the property owner(s) and their successors for the life of the
project.

53. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay all fees due to the
Planning Department and those applicable fees to Building at the time of permit
issuance.

54. Site Maintenance General: The property and all of the facilities, including but not
limited to buildings; parking areas; carport structures and trash enclosures and their
immediate areas shall be maintained in an orderly manner and free of accumulations
of dirt, litter to the satisfaction of the City; and as further specified by Municipal Code
Chapter 18.050.070.

55. Landscape Maintenance: Landscape materials shall be planted as shown on the
approved Landscape Plan, identified as Exhibit _ attached hereto and incorporated
herein. Trees and larger shrub plantings shall be selected to be generally symmetrical
and installed in healthy condition. Any damaged or otherwise unhealthy plant
material shall be immediately removed and replaced.

To minimize the potential for bent or leaning, or miss-sharpen trees, tree plantings
shall be firmly staked until determined to be established as vertical and upright, and
not susceptible to wind damage or leaning.

The Property Owner(s) and their successors shall be responsible for the long-term
maintenance of the landscaped areas. All required landscaping shall be maintained in
good condition. Such maintenance shall include, where appropriate, pruning, moving,
weeding, cleaning, fertilizing, and watering. Whenever necessary, plant materials
shall be replaced, and any structural materials included in the basic landscaping design 
shall be repaired or replaced. (Municipal Code Section 18.64.120.)

All shrubs and plants shall be of a minimum size of one gallon, or equivalent, at the
time of installation, and all trees shall be of a minimum size of fifteen (15) gallons, or
equivalent, at the time of installation.



Page 18 of 23 

56. Fence and Wall Maintenance: Fences and walls shall be maintained in an upright
vertical and unbroken condition and in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter
12.52.125. Any graffiti shall be removed within 48-hours.

BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

57. Accessibility. Clearly identify on the plans that the R-2 Occupancy
Buildings are required to comply with C.B.C., Chapter 11A Accessibility
Requirements. The ground floor of the multi-story units shall be fully accessible.
[C.B.C., §1102A.1]

58. Permits. A building permit application, plans and specifications demonstrating
compliance with current California Building, Fire, Plumbing, Mechanical, Electrical,
Green Building and Energy Standard Code requirements is to be submitted and
permits obtained prior to construction.

59. Grading. Sheet C3.0; Correct Note #16 to reflect the City of Guadalupe, not Santa
Maria. 

60. Design Professional Required. Plans for the project shall be prepared signed and
sealed by a California registered design professional, i.e. architect or engineer.

61. Soils Report Required. A soils (Geotechnical) report will be required for the project
and must be submitted at the time of building permit application. [C.B.C., §1803]

62. Undergrounding Required. All electrical, telephone and communication utility
distribution and service wires shall be placed underground.

63. Water Meters. Utility or customer submetering of the domestic water supply is
required for each unit in multiunit (2 or more) residential structures.

64. Area and Height. Justification for the proposed allowable area and height for the
buildings in this project shall be shown on the cover sheet of plans. [C.B.C. Table
506.2]. Show compliance with R-2 occupancy using total square footage of residential
occupancies. [5,930 sf proposed < 7,000 sf allowed]

65. Truss Calculations. The City of Guadalupe requires truss calculations and their design
to be submitted at the time of building permit application. C.B.C. §107.3.4.1

66. Alarm Systems. Fire alarm systems, smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms shall
be provided in Group R-2 occupancies, as applicable. C.B.C., §420.5



Page 19 of 23 

67. Fire Sprinklers. New Group R occupancies are required to be protected by an
automatic sprinkler system in accordance with C.B.C. Section 903.2.8. Fire sprinkler
systems require separate review, approval and permit and are not within the scope
of the building permit application for the structures.

68. Fire Barriers. Fire barriers separating dwelling units and other occupancies shall be
constructed in accordance with C.B.C., Section 707 and horizontal assemblies
separating dwelling units and other occupancies shall be constructed in accordance
with C.B.C., Section 711. In addition to the fire resistive construction, walls and
floor/ceiling assemblies separating dwelling units shall be designed to provide a sound
transmission class rating in compliance with C.B.C., Section 1207.

69. Clothes Washers. Clothes washers shall be provided in accordance with C.P.C., Table
422.1 as follows; Laundry tray or 1 automatic clothes washer connection per unit or 1
laundry tray or 1 automatic clothes washer connection for each 12 units.

70. Photovoltaics. The project shall incorporate solar photovoltaic system(s). Show the PV
array locations on the elevation plans as applicable. [C.En.C. §110.10(a)2]

71. Waste Management. After the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall
submit a waste management plan to the Building Division. The plan shall include the
estimated composition and quantities of waste to be generated and how the project
developer intends to recycle at least 65 percent of the total job site construction and
demolition waste measured by weight or volume. Proof of compliance shall be
provided to the Chief Building Official prior to the issuance of a final inspection. During
demolition and construction, the project developer shall mark all trash disposal bins
“trash materials only” and all recycling bins “recycling materials only.”

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

72. Fire Hydrant. Sheet C2.0; Identify existing or proposed Fire Hydrants and show
compliance with the Amended City of Guadalupe Municipal Fire Code §15.08.030,
Appendix C Table C102.1; Number and Distribution of Fire Hydrants.

73. Site Plan. Sheet C2.0; Correct Fire Department Requirements Note #2. There is no
Appendix III-D in the 2019 C.F.C.,

74. Emergency Contact Information. An "Emergency Contact Information" form shall be
provided to the Guadalupe Fire Department (GFD) prior to the issuance of Building
Permits.

75. Address Numbers. The proposed location and design of address numbers shall be
shown on plans.  New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers,



Page 20 of 23 

building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly 
legible and clearly visible from the centerline of the street or road fronting the 
property. These numbers shall contrast with their background. Address numbers shall 
be Arabic numerals or alphabet letters. Numbers shall be a minimum of 4 inches in 
height with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7mm) for residential occupancies 
and 6 inches (152 mm) high with a minimum stroke of 0.75 inch (19 mm) for 
commercial and industrial occupancies. Numbers and/or letters of larger size may be 
required based on the size and design of the building or groups of buildings. Where 
access is by means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed from the public 
way, a monument pole or sign or means shall be used to identify the structure. 
Address identification shall be maintained.    

76. Access. Fire Department Access requirements shall comply with the Fire Code of the
City of Guadalupe Chapter 8, Title 15 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code (GMC), 2019
California Fire Code (C.F.C.), Section 503 and C.F.C. Appendix D. All weather surface
access roads shall be installed and approved by the Fire Department prior to the
issuance of a building permit or start of construction unless otherwise approved by
the Fire Code Official.

77. Access Roads. An approved Guadalupe Fire Department (GFD) access road shall
extend to within 150 feet of all portions of the exterior walls of the first story of the
building, as measured by an approved route around the exterior of the building.

a. All weather surface access roads shall be installed and approved by the GFD prior
to vertical combustible construction.

78. Temporary Access Roads. Plans for temporary access roads shall be reviewed,
inspected and approved by the GFD prior to construction, in accordance with C.F.C.
Section 501. Temporary access roads shall be constructed with compacted base, curbs
and gutters prior to vertical combustible construction. Access roads shall be
maintained clear and unobstructed for the duration of the construction project.

79. Temporary Fire Access Road Signage. Temporary access signage shall be placed at
each entrance to the project (when necessary) to delineate construction and fire
access.  These signs shall be installed prior to combustible construction.

80. Fire Lane Sign Requirements. No Parking/Fire Lane signs must follow these
guidelines: 

a. The CVC Code 22500.1 (CVC 22500.1) must be imprinted on the  bottom of the
sign.

b. All lettering shall be red on white reflective background no smaller than 2 inches
in height.



 
 

Page 21 of 23 
 

 
c. The sign shall be no smaller than 12 inches wide by 18 inches high.  

 
d. The sign shall be securely mounted facing the direction of travel and clearly visible 

to oncoming traffic entering the designated area. Signs shall be of durable 
material.  

 
e. Signs shall be installed at all driveway entrances and at intervals of not less than 

100 feet along all designated fire lanes.  
  

81. Fire Lane Curb Painting Requirements. Where a curb exists adjacent to a fire lane, the 
top and face of the curb shall be painted with red traffic paint. Where the curb is 
discontinued, a red stripe and stencil as described below shall be painted to define 
the fire lane. Red curbs, red stripes and white stencils must be maintained in good 
condition and follow these guidelines:  
a. The face of the curb shall be stenciled with the words: NO PARKING FIRE LANE in 

white block letters a minimum 4 inches in height.  
 

b. The stencil must be painted on the FACE of the curb. Exception: Under 
circumstances where the curb height is less than 4 inches, the stencil may appear 
on the top of the curb. 

  
c. The stencil must appear every 50 feet or less, depending on the configuration of 

the fire lane. (Where a small island cannot contain both phrases, FIRE LANE must 
appear the NO PARKING may be omitted).  

 
d. Where no curb exists adjacent to the fire lane, the edge of the fire lane shall be 

marked with an 8-inch-wide red stripe. In addition, a diagonal 8-inch-wide red 
stripe may be required between the edges of the fire lane, with the diagonal stripe 
connecting the stripes or curbs at the edges of the fire lane. Spacing of the 
diagonal stripe is every 50 feet.  

 
e. The stripe shall be stenciled with the words NO PARKING FIRE LANE in white block 

letters, minimum 4 inches in height.  
 

f. The stencil must appear every 50 feet or less, depending on the configuration of 
the fire lane. If the fire lane is less than 50 feet the stencil must appear at the 
beginning and end of the fire lane.  

  
82. Water Supply for Fire Protection. An approved water supply for fire protection shall 

be installed and made fully operational prior to the delivery of combustible materials 
to a job site. The Fire Code Official shall inspect and approve the water system prior 
to the delivery of combustible materials at the job site.  

  



 
 

Page 22 of 23 
 

83. Portable Fire Extinguishers. Structures under construction, alteration or demolition 
shall be provided with not less than one approved portable fire extinguisher in 
accordance with C.F.C., Section 906 and sized for not less than ordinary hazard as 
follows: 

  
a. At each stairway on all floor levels where combustible materials have 

accumulated.  
 

b. In every storage and construction shed.  
 

c. Throughout the building under construction in sufficient quantity so travel 
distance does not exceed 75 feet (23 m).  
 

d. The minimum rating for fire extinguishers shall be 2A10BC.  
 

e. Additional portable fire extinguishers shall be provided where special hazards 
exist including, but not limited to, the storage and use of flammable and 
combustible liquids.  

  
84. Fire Flow. Fire flow shall comply with C.F.C., Appendix B. The minimum fire flow for 

this R-2 project shall be 500 gallons per minute for a 1/2 hour (based on Type V 
Construction with fire sprinklers).    

  
85. Fire Sprinkler Systems. Automatic Fire Sprinklers are required for the proposed R-2 

occupancy and as otherwise required by the C.F.C.. Deferred submittal of fire 
sprinkler plans and calculations is permitted. The plans and calculations shall be 
signed and sealed on every sheet by a registered Fire Protection Engineer or Fire 
Protection Contractor.  

  
86. Fire Department Connection (FDC). FDCs shall be located on the front access side of 

buildings, fully visible and recognizable from the street or nearest point of fire 
department vehicle access or as otherwise approved by the Fire Chief or his/her 
designee. The FDC shall:    

 
a. Face the public street or fire lane fronting the protected building and be installed 

so the center line of the connection is a minimum of 36 inches above finished 
grade.  

 
b. Within 40 feet of an approved roadway or driveway and arranged so that hose 

lines can be readily attached to the inlets without interference. 
  

c. Within 50 feet of an approved fire hydrant. 
  

d. Be equipped with Knox Brand locking caps.   



Page 23 of 23 

e. All Fire Department Connections, fire sprinkler risers, standpipes connections, and
fire pump connections shall be provided with a sign identifying its location in
accordance with standards established by the Fire Code Official. Where the FDC
does not serve the entire building, a sign shall be provided indicating the portion
of the building served.

f. A 5-foot (1.5 m) clear space shall be maintained in front of the FDC when placed
directly in front of a parking area or road. Where the clearance required intrudes
into the road or parking area the Fire Lane Curb Painting Requirements in C.F.C.,
Appendix Section D103.6.4 must be applied.

87. Fire Alarm System. A fire alarm system shall be installed in accordance with the C.F.C.
and N.F.P.A. 72 standards. All alarm systems shall have an alarm permit issued by the
Guadalupe Police Department.  Permit shall be obtained prior to final occupancy
approval. The fire alarm system shall be certificated by Underwriters Laboratories or
an equivalent nationally recognized organization.

a. Deferred submittal of fire alarm plans is permitted. The plans shall be signed and
sealed, on every sheet, by a registered Fire Protection Engineer or Fire Protection
Contractor licensed in California.

b. A Fire alarm system, at a minimum incorporating tamper switches on control
valves and a Central Station service for the water flow alarm shall be installed for
fire sprinkler systems.

88. Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Detectors/Alarms. Smoke and Carbon Monoxide
Detectors/Alarms shall be installed in accordance with the C.F.C., C.B.C., and N.F.P.A.
72.

89. Inspections/Approvals. The Fire Department shall inspect/approve the following:

a. Fire access road(s): prior to vertical combustible construction.
b. Fire hydrants: prior to vertical combustible construction.
c. Water mains: prior to vertical combustible construction.
d. Underground fire sprinkler piping: prior to concealment.
e. Overhead fire sprinkler piping: prior to installation.
f. Fire Alarm system acceptance test: prior to occupancy clearance.
g. Fire Department Key Box; mounted in proper location w/key(s) inside: prior to

occupancy clearance.
h. The Fire Department shall be given 48 hours minimum notice for all inspections

via the inspection request line 805-356-3905.
i. All permits shall be issued prior to start of any work.

End of Conditions 



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3













r 

' 

,, 47'- I 011 ,,, 
I<- 2

'
-9

" 
9'-G" 

3
'
-9

" T
3'-7" 

1@

9'-7" 0 2'-8"

1 

21- I  011 ,IL -- - - - -9'-711 - -- - - -7' -3'-7" --,[;

� 

UJ 

IT] 
ti 
lf") 
9u 

@

BEDROOM I 
2, B, I 
51_011 

BEDROOM I 

� 

IT] 
ti 

IT] u 
ti 
lf") 
9u 

@

BEDROOM I 
2, B, I 

8'-0" 

1'
[fl 

® ---i
"'

' 

it 
,, 1�-�L__ � 

ll- --<II � 
�-10 L__c:::=--==---_J' 

r; I 

::=:::;:::IC lffli

;:::::;::::;:::

ii
::::;::::;-;:::, ,--" t::;::::==::::j 

I r._ 

··� © . ® \=:-:==:=-�� � 

.I " 

C\l f,.... <D -

z 
\lJ 
z 

::J 

t10 l��fTJl=li [
� -lf,--,:A¥ ['- , -� -' t
� 

T I 

1 
I l l I I ' 

o�

_,, 

I ? I -r.tl--Jtfl cC rrtA';11" _', A• 'C)"' 
. 41 -y f--< 

� 
-, 

po 

_)/ 

bJJ

HALL 
2, B, I 

�
O' 

z 
\lJ 
z 

_j 

z 
\lJ 
z 

::J 

j 

���<DI 
v

14---0-if,1f1l-L' 
!-

1-,
].¼ 

1�1-Zlj'c(i) 

i' 

"' 

l' 

l!) 

1.}- 3'-1 O" _J, 

HALL 
2, B, I 

81-011

Lb ( '2',II 161/ 

�'Jl[l i 
[Q 

.1.----.,,1.

� 1t::'''� 
I I ti 

_, 

' ' ' 

9 
r-�IITJ BEDROOM 2 

2, B, I 
8'-0" 

V II ti 1
lf") 11 ° 2BED

2���M 2 LJ\u � � 

� 
IT] d @ 

(
LJ BALCONY I 

®\ 
'J 

BEDROOM 2 
2, B, I 

8'-0" 

@

®

®

t= 
4

,
G

, __J__1 5
,:�LCONY A 

_ __ _ _ _  J-_ _  -_-_-=-=-=�
'---

-I G'-2" 
4 -G :""""i5Y:•-�G'�' �⇒=�""J 5'-10" _ __J, 

I 5'- I 0" _ __ _ _ __j 

SCALE: 1 / 4" = 1 ' 

f 
., ,a, f 2 -8" 

-,I' --

5'-9"

t
G'-G" t 3'-9" 

1
3'-7" 

1• 
G'-G" - -,I'-- 5'-9" ------Jf-- - 5'-1 I "  ----l'-- - G'-G" -�,I'- 3'-7"-----, 

r 11"@ "m 
<D 

' @
l 

'lillJ=r=r:o 
le 
-v

@

<D_, 

----f 
"' 

' 

it 

----t"'
J ' 

' H :,,4._1 ? :i
i 
1i'r'T'PIJ7 
� 
ID _1__....

L 
'l 

© 2 

" 0 
- "' 0 <:::i

@l

l�- �

,I 

0 <D 

':: � 
I 
1
=

7 

' 

UJ 

' 

0-
f.,_ 

J ' ' 

0 

LIVING ROOM

2, B, I 
8'-0" 

�3 £ 

LIVING ROOM

2, B, I 
51_011 

!..Bl r:bu 

-- --

-,-

0 
(cwmE 

-�i-Q'7 0 
-,--<>--,, � 

m"'�J/ 
Bi ... 0111 S I ,-Qi 
,,,, o I v 

II 
[CJ--' 

�;\ 

LIVING ROOM

2, B, I 
8'-0" 

@

"-'tz:O.i, 

� -,:.' �' ''. -� \ -

I 

LL"-1 �� 

1 S 8 I ''- '" r ��!���,-�������������:!���� S 7 1 1 I O [:] K>-+<>-+-->+-<>-+--0-+-<>+--0-+-<>-+-<H--O-+-o-+--O-+<>-lj c:J 

y ','\' • I F ·-

·3□ 
0 

�IQ

Q amnmmgm�ma
□

" ©
DlT\IITI r 1 

�
o O O ttttt,:O'll]j�:tlttltttJjj:titl:t±Jlo J 

11 , , 1 1 r r 1 1 , , 0 f � K>-+<>-+-<:>-+-<>-+-<>-+-<>-+-<>-+-<>-+-<H-<>-++-+-<>-+<>-+-< i 1, 
0 

J 

®
'--- - - --l- - - DJ 

®� I 18 �r I f 
- - - -- - --+- - -- -- - - -- - +- - - - -

[]]
® 

- - __j 

� 31- I  011 ---�- - - - -12' - - - - -�If-- - - - - ) 2'-211 - -- - --+-- 4' --+-- 3'-1011 -,/�- - - - - 12' - - - - --f

E-- - - - - - - J 51-J011 - - - - - - -�]<-- - - - - - -- ! G'-2" _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  _,,_ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ l 5'-JO" - - - - - - --,r 

1st FLOOR PLAN 
SCALE: 1 / 4" = 1 ' 

T 

DOOR SCHEDULE 

NUMBER! MATERIAL TYPE I FIN THICKNESS GLASS

G) I WOOD 

® I WOOD

@ I WOOD 

© I METAL

SOLID I PAINT
CORE 

HOLLOW I PAINT
CORE 
HOLLOW I PAINT
CORE 
SOLID I PAINT
CORE 

WINDOW SCHEDULE 

TYPE MAT"L

@ VINYL 

® VINYL 

© VINYL 

® VINYL 

® VINYL 

® VINYL 

GLASS
DUAL GLAZED 
SLIDER (XO) 

DUAL GLAZED 
SLIDING DOOR 

FIXED 

DUAL GLAZED 
DBL HUNG 
DUAL GLAZED 
FIXED 
DUAL GLAZED 
SLIDER (XO) 

SIZES

G'-0" X 3'-G" 

G'-0" X G'-8" 

G1-011 X 31-611

2'-011 X 31-611

I '-G11 X I 1-G11

I 1-011 X 3'-311

I �II 4 

I .11,4 

Ii" 

I �II 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

REMARKS

TEMPERED GLASS 

BAY WINDOW 

OBSCURE 

ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE 

FLOOR/ BASE WALLS/ WAINSCOT 
VINYL FLOOR 

w/ 4" WOOD BASE 
1/2" GREEN GYP.BO. 

A I WI ORANGE PEEL TEXTURE, I I
EGG SHELL PAINT 

2 
CARPET 

w/ 4" WOOD BASE 

3 
CONCRETE 

w/ 4" WOOD BASE 

B 

C 

1/2" GYP.BD. 
WI ORANGE PEEL TEXTURE, 

EGG SHELL PAINT 

5/8" GYP.BO. 
WI ORANGE PEEL TEXTURE, 

EGG SHELL PAINT 

ROOM FINISH LEGEND 

�ROOM MATERIAL CODES, 
I 5t No. FLOOR/BASE 
2nd No. WALLS/WAINSCOT 
3rd No. CEILING 

CEILING HEIGHT 

LIGHTING REQUIRED 
FOR EACH UNIT (LIVING ROOM): 

NATURAL LIGHTING REQUIRED = .08 x 192 SF= 15.3 SF 

NATURAL LIGHTING PROVIDED - 17.5 SF 

WALL LEGEND 

_, . > = NEW 2x4 WALL

2 

3 

CEILING 
5/8" TYPE 'X' GYP. BD. 

WI ORANGE PEEL TEXTURE, 
EGG SHELL PAINT 

MINIMUM SOLAR PANEL AREA 
RfQUIRED SOLAR= 15% OF ROOF AREA 

ROOF AREA = I ,440 x 2 = 2,880 SQ FT 

2,880 SQ FT x 0. I 5 = 432 SQ Ff

USE 500 SQ FT OF PANELS LOCATED ON THE CARPORT 

C7 ■ 

SIZE

3'-0" X b1-811 

21-811 X b'-811

2'-G" X G'-8" 

3'-0" X G1-81
1 

SHEET

Al .0 

Al .0 

Al .0 

Al .0 

Al .0 

Al .0 

REMARKS

G PANEL w/ WOOD TRIM 

G PANEL w/ WOOD TRIM 

G PANEL w/ WOOD TRIM 

FLAT w/ VENTS 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

BUILDING AREA, 

UNIT I -
FIRST FLOOR 
SECOND FLOOR 
TOTAL 

UNIT 2 -
FIRST FLOOR 
SECOND FLOOR 
TOTAL 

UNIT 3 -
FIRST FLOOR 
SECOND FLOOR 
TOTAL 

= 478 SQ FT 
= 509 SQ FT 
= '387 SQ FT 

= 480 SQ FT 
=5l2 5Q FT 
= 992 SQ FT 

= 478 SQ FT 
= 509 50 FT 
= 987 50 FT 

BUILDING TOTAL = 2,9GG SQ FT 

PROJECT TOTAL = 2,9GG x 2 = 5,932 

DJ 
IT] 

NOTES, 

CALLOUT NOTES 

EDGE OF FLOOR ABOVE 

SHELF AT G'-0" A.F.F. WITH I 1/2"0 HANGING POLE AT 5-G" A.F.F. 
WITH STEEL SHELF BRACKETS AT 32"o.c. 

I .  THE ENCLOSED ACCESSIBLE SPACE UNDER THE STAIRS (FODER 
ROOM) SHALL HAVE WALLS, UNDER-STAIR SURFACE AND ANY

50FFIT5 PROTECTED ON THE ENCLOSED SIDE WITH%" TYPE X 
GYPSUM BOARD. 

2. EGRESS DOORS SHALL BE OPENABLE FROM INSIDE THE
DWELLING WITHOUT THE USE OF A KEY OR SPECIAL KNOWLEDGE OR
EFFORT.

3. SHOWERS AND WALLS ABOVE BATHTUBS WITH SHOWER HEADS
SHALL BE FINISHED WITH A NON-ABSORBENT SURFACE TO A HEIGHT
NOT LESS THAN G' ABOVE THE FLOOR.

4. THE GREATEST TREAD DEPTH OR RISER HEIGHT WITHIN A FLIGHT
OF STAIRS SHALL NOT EXCEED THE SMALLEST BY MORE THAN i".

5. PENETRATIONS IN WALLS BETWEEN UNITS SHALL COMPLY WITH
DETAILS 41 AND 51 ON SHHET A7.0.

G. HAND ACTIVATED DOOR LATCHING, LOCKING, AND OPENING
HARDWARE SHALL BE CENTERED BETWEEN 30 INCHES AND 44
INCHES ABOVE THE FLOOR. LATCING AND LOCKING DOORS THAT
ARE HAND ACTIVATED AND ON AN ACCESSIBLE ROUTE SHALL BE
OPERABLE WITH A SINGLE EFFORT BY LEVER TYPE HARDWARE, PANIC 
BARS, PUSH-PULL ACTIVATING BARS OR OTHER HARDWARE
DESIGNED TO PROVIDE PASSAGE WITHOUT REQUIRING THE ABILITY
TO GRASP THE OPENING HARDWARE.

7. THE BOTTOM I O" OF ALL DOORS SHALL HAVE A SMOOTH,
UNINTERUPTED SURFACE TO ALLOW DOOR TO BE OPENED BY A
WHEELCHAIR FOOTREST WITHOUT CREATING A TRAP OR HAZARDOUS
CONDITION. WHERE NARROW FRAMED DOORS ARE USED, A IO"
HIGH SMOOTH PANEL SHALL BE INSTALLED ON THE PUSH SIDE OF
THE DOOR WHICH WILL ALLOW THE DOOR TO BE OPENED BY A
WHEELCHAIR FOOTREST WITHOUT CREATING A TRAP OR HAZARDOUS
CONDITION.

8. THE MAXIMUM EFFORT TO OPERATE DOORS SHALL NOT EXCEED
8.5 POUNDS FOR EXTERIOR DOORS AND 5 POUNDS FOR INTERIOR
DOORS.

9. ALL FLOOR SURFACES SALL BE STABLE, FIRM, AND SLIP
RESISTANT. CARPET OR CARPET TILE SHALL HAVE A LEVEL LOOP,
LEVEL CUT PILE, OR LEVEL CUT UN-CUT PILE TEXTURE. THE MAXIMUM
PILE HEIGHT SHALL BE,\". EXPOSED EDGES OF CARPET SHALL BE 
FASTENED TO FLOOR SURFACES AND HAVE TRIM ALONG THE ENTIRE 
LENGTHOF EXPOSED EDGE. 

I 0. PENETRATIONS OF FIRE-RESISTIVE WALLS, FLOOR -CEILINGS AND 
ROOF-CEILINGS SHALL BE PROTECTED A5 REQUIRED IN IBC SECTION 

714. 

I I .  THE BUILDER 15 TO PROVIDE AN OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
MANUAL (CONTAINING INFORMATION FOR MAINTAINING APPLIANCES, 
ETC.) FOR THE OWNER AT THE TIME OF FINAL INSPECTION. 

I 2. DURING CONSTRUCTION, ENDS OF DUCT OPENINGS ARE TO BE 
SEALED, AND MECHANICAL EQUIPEMNT 15 TO BE COVERED. 

13. VOC'5 MUST COMPLY WITH THE LIMITATIONS LISTED IN SECTION 

4.504.3 AND TABLES 4.504.1, 4.504.2, 4.504.3, AND 4.504.5
FOR, ADHESIVES, PAINTS AND COATINGS, CARPET AND
COMPOSITION WOOD PRODUCTS.

14. PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION THE LICENSED ENGINEER IN 

RESPONSIBLE CHARGE OF THE OVERALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL
PROVIDE TO THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL WRITTEN 

VERIFICATION THAT ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS FROM THE GREEN 

BUILDING STANDARDS CODE HAVE BEEN IMPLEMENTED AS PART OF
THE CONSTRUCTION.

L� � 
I - �

<(
� (..) �<( ...Q'. 
w 

I
w
Q'.
a.

- r-- E0:: c(, 8<( N �CJ) L 
<( iti'-� f- a E z "' I!! <( ':":' 0.. 
rn_ :::! �W LL Cl! 
w 1§) 
f- r-- C 

- ... g::, ... -en 'I" " 
6N� ~ N Cl! 
� 0) C.<( - ..- "' _,J;;;: al <i: 
ll'.'. ':":" ::?! 
Ww • �z W 

wO CD I 
:l: a_
�a�

Cl z 

Cl Ill
z� 
-:::,z 

Ill 

�L,; a. -
,;! 

Cl ,i! 
!za: C 
Ill 
Ill -'
!�
Cl :Iz 1-
111 U :I 

a: 

The design herein is the property 
of ACS Premier, Inc. The information 
herein shall not be copied, 
duplicated, reproduced, or otherwise 
made available without the express 
written consent of ACS Premier, Inc. 
State and Federal copyright laws 
governing professional design work 
apply to information herein. 

+o 

Project: 

6 - UNIT APARTMENT 
COMPLEX 

4573 12th STREET 
GUADALUPE CA 93434 

Client: 

457312th STREET APARTMENTS LLC 
POBOX2398 
NIPOMO CA 93444 
(805) 896-1547 TREVOR CRANDALL

Sheet Name: 

FLOOR PLAN 

Revisions: 

& 
& 
� 

Job # & File Location: 

20038.00 /dwg/anah;tecturol 

Date: 

MARCH 22, 2021 

Sheet: 

A1. 0 





�
��

71

::� =�,ct\frf��-- ,2 
_--<14mf8BtrE,-=ef���� r "'.,.. n � n � n FLcJl����-- 14

T Ill' I] 'fl\'' r, '1 nnnnnnun n o..--r-il1�□ n�nnnn-"~,n,.�,,.,--1F,r,-'7n �i-,-r ,.......,--,-7, r· -----,-11'.:ti::�� .Y-1�'H N , J M '' • , ' , ' '' '' � , • � M ':}{}�):�������.._� ·' '' '' "ij__Ei ·' M '' M M � M '' M rJ ����,,l',4-H-,_-,_-,_,--c_,-:n '-'H-lk1-W-I~ci:::ck¼<�--w-
f -w-cim/:tf.�1-W--l,J-J~�cC\-l:l--H"dldh'-k-�H-j WJ��" 5--D-D-5--w-

l _,�d���£��������� := ----- __________ H.-.t:/e _ ______ ·--------- �-�--- ·--·-·-·------------· - ------ --- ·-----------�·�-------------. ·- ·--�Y���1d�---· -----

["I 
□ □ 

□ 

' ��-�,.J- i',=,ti_,.\-h ., »=>. ' 

¼ 

�ii 

[][] 

i�_EII [] []-II� �I[][] 

EAST ELEVATION 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1' 

q ':I I ·::J 

!] rn 
□ -�--'' '
' 

□ \{!]' 
-, 5 

;..,,,. � ' .. ��--f-J_, ,�--h,-. 

[][] 

- o

[] [] E11 11 [] [] Ii= 

�· 

¼ 
4 

□ 
□ □-

□ 

i' 

1: 

'' '' _,--,_' � '
1

-l-----�· ..

[][] 

[][]

o 

;� 

;� [][] �@ - aE�LEi:

-c.,,�
8
--�-� �riLW-!

a wr1�uri��if-lB�c1Uri(Q'J

8
f'Pi-

_c514 H n H H H H H n n n H n H n H H rl Ho Hon o H-f-f~;::;.-_ 12 
�����R RR�R� �������R���R���J4

���r:Q=l,�fCFQ=J�;J:•� n = n n n n "" Q--Q-kl "" r n '}P-H -P -H -������ [j_,�J�J�U�-����:;�::ci-tf)�® �,.,,=-n=n,.,==n=,,•�~==7=1'1=- ,=,,"'brbf•r,n--,ld���rtflfl_B�.�7� 1'1� 

������rtt:l-· :t-rA�AR�8-��.c14'f�?��-,--_----c.-_ .i-Hw--1� li:b-,:.1 -tJ:L--u�1--[1 -r_j::l:j::J'J-Ltl'J::l'J--l1-l'. 'V,-J--/J-L1-L1J'J:'e ;::,,.vH.-J-l:J--C,-D -D -IJ-r1�,,l'J_,�'.J-fl----r£:1-,'.J-l:J.,'.J-El -lJDD-Dl--��----fcl:.J:/',,HJt.:i..r~'l-l1-T-U-lf,J-r,J):j:L1-1J:l'J::l'J'f.J:�} 

l 

□ 
□ -□

□ 

-·

1,: 

J 

\ � . 
' □ ' 

'�--'' 

[:ii . ·1ii . 11
:J 

-•-' 4 -

J 

'====iii I 

WEST ELEVATION 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1' 

,:c_ _ _  . ·-·•·-�.: ". -,.,,, ' 

--

HI :! 

[
_c_

_:J J 

"•" -,- --- ·
1

-
. j·.' 

!·, 

I 
.! 
-1

rn 

' 
'- □

� .. \rn 
7 -

¼fr 
', ..... -_,,;,_ _ __ _ -,

,1 
:1 

[ill 
h' 

111 b-t--n1 1
I _,_ 

□
□ 

□

"'-- - - r ---------<- - ------ -·----·--1_'{I] 1.il Ill II: 
-□ ,,._, 

=·• 

JI � 

10 

RIDGE .oh 
------=EL=22'-8" Cf' 

PLATE .,t,
--------ccEL= 17'-0" <f

6 

12 

6 

FINISH FLOO
R+ EL=9'-0" 

FINISH FLOO
R+ EL=0'-011 

RIDGE 
� EL=22'-8" 

PLATE 
� EL= 17'-0" 

FINISH FLOO
R+ EL=9'-0" 

FINISH FLOO
R+ EL=0'-0" 

Callout Notes 

[j] CONCRETE TILE ROOF OVER 15 POUND FELT, OVER SOLID SHEATHING

[I] 2xl3 HEM FIR FASCIA BOARD (SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7705 WHEAT PENNY)

[I] 7113" STUCCO FINISH OVER 2 LAYERS 15 LB. FELT. (LA HABRA - 413 MEADOWBROOK)

[I] EXTERIOR DECORATIVE LIGHT

[1j SHAPED FOAM DECORATIVE WRAP (LA HABRA 4 75 VIEJO)

[I] PROVIDE WEEP SCREED PER I I/Al 0.0

[TI STONE VENEER w/ CAP STONE

[I] FLUSH ACCENT TILES (EARTHTONES CONTRASTING COLORS)

[TI ENTRY DOOR (SHERVvlN WILLIAMS SW7GOO BOLERO)

[!ill WOOD CORBEL (SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 7705 WHEAT PENNY)

[ill POWDER COATED DECORATIVE TRELLIS (BLACK)

lg] FALSE BALCONY - POWDER COATED (BLACK)

[j] SLIDING DOOR 

[j] DECORATIVE CONCRETE COLUMN 

1. 

2, 

3, 

4, 

5, 

6, 

7, 

Elevation Notes 

STUCCO SHALL BE APPLIED 1'111H lHREE-COAT APPLICATION 
PER CBC 
PROVIDE WEEP SCREED AT BASE OF STUCCO. A MINIMUM OF 
.019 INCHES (26 GA) CORROSION RESISTANT WEEP SCREED 
1'111H A MIN. OF VERTICAL ATTACHMENT FLANGE OF 3.lf SHALL 
BE PROVIDED AT lHE FOUNDATION PLA lE LINE ON ALL 
EXlERIOR STUD WALLS. lHE SCREED SHALL BE PLACED A 
MIN. OF 4" ABOVE lHE EARlH OR 2" ABOVE PAVED AREAS AND 
SHALL BE OF A TYPE lHAT 1'11LL ALLOW TRAPPED WA lER TO 
DRAIN TO lHE EXlERIOR OF lHE BUILDING. lHE WEAlHER 
RESISTIVE BARRIER SHALL LAP lHE ATTACHMENT FLANGE AND 
lHE EXlERIOR LAlH SHALL COVER AND lERMINAlE ON lHE 
ATTACHMENT FLANGE OF lHE SCREED. PER CBC 
2 LAYERS OF GRADE 'D" PAPER SHALL BE APPLIED UNDER 
PORTLAND CEMENT PLASlER COVERING WHEN APPLIED OVER 
WOOD SHEAlHING PER CBC 
ROOF VALLEY FLASHING SHALL BE PROVIDED OF NOT LESS 
lHAN 28 GALV. SHEET CORROSION -RESISTANT METAL AND 
SHALL EXlEND AT LEAST 8" FROM lHE CENlER LINE EACH 
WAY. SECTIONS OF FLASHING SHALL EXlEND AT LEAST 8" 
FROM lHE CENlERLINE EACH WAY. SECTIONS OF FLASHING 
SHALL HAVE AN END LAP OF NOT LESS lHAN 4", 
ALlERNATIVELY, lHE VALLEY SHALL CONSIST OF WOVEN 
ASPHALT SHINGLES APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE 1'111H lHE 
MANUFACTURES PRINlED INSTRUCTIONS. 
A TllC INSULATION SHALL BE CONFINED SO AS NOT TO BLOCK 
EAVE OR CORNICE (ONE INCH MIN. CLEARANCE REQUIRED) 
A TllC VENTS ARE TO BE PROlEClED BY ¼" CORROSION 
RESllENT METAL MESH. 
REFER TO 1'11NDOW AND DOOR SCHEDULE SHEET A1.0. 

[□ 
z :g- � 

Cl 

1,:1 � c3co z<( o -II:'. - :::: E ►O'. ' 
Ill<(N8 '-'>W ::;;Sj ,_; za:<( ,;;-_g/ i:::,f-oE zlll� Zcc!!! c, 

,L �':"":"'a. ..ifl>W -::;!i'.! 11.;; 
WLL�, • ►II:'. LU ""' 

l,:l .1 t:r::5 zc�=i ..... 0 -a. en ..,. "5 II: 
� l C Ill 

OC\I� 111..I a::�� z�
ii� i� 
[l'. -::;; Ill ULLJLi.i • 

::::, �z LU 

II: LU O I-CD I Ill 
'l: a_ 
0 � 
0 � 

The design herein is the property 
of ACS Premier, Inc. The information 
herein shall not be copied, 
duplicated, reproduced, or otherwise 
made available without the express 
written consent of ACS Premier, Inc. 
State and Federal cop)'"ight laws 
governing professional design work 
apply to Information herein. 

Project 

�� 

� ��...,. 
.., !,&..; 

'• 20, 

6 - UNIT APARTMENT 

COMPLEX 

4573 12th STREET 
GUADALUPE CA 93434

Client:

4573 12th STREET APARTMENTS LLC
PO BOX2398 
NIPOMO CA 93444 
(805) 896-1547 TREVOR CRANDALL

Sheet Name: 

ELEVATIONS 

Revisions: 

& 
& 
& 

Job # &: File Location:

20038.00 /dwg/architectural

Date:

MARCH 22, 2021 

Sheet: 

A3. 0 



...
 

---=------

-
-

-

H
+1

Htt"
"i1

_

-
-

□
 

■
□

□
 

□
 

■
□

□
 

□
 

■
□

□
 

■
 

■
 

■
 

■
 

□
 

■
□

□
 

-
-

---=------
-

-

'
 

I 
�

-
-

,1
 
i i

 
'--

-
---..
 i , . •• , . •• , . •• LIi

 
LIi

 
-

-
,

1 
••

' 

'--
-

...
 ---..
, 

-
-

----==
 

C,
 

■
■

 " C,
 

■
 

■
 

■
 

□
 

■
□

"
 

E
 

■
 

■
 

□



Page 1 of 5 

Agenda Item No. 12 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of November 23, 2021 

  
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Bill Scott, Contract City Planner Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider a Design Review Permit (DR-2021-078-DR), for the Edwards 
Olivera Apartments; a 5-unit multi-family development on a 7,500 square-foot 
property in the R-3 (High Density) residential zoning district. The project site is located 
on the southeast side of Olivera Street, 150 feet south of Twelfth Street, APN 115-036-
012. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Mr. Chris Tarcon, applicant/designer MW Architects, on behalf of Mr. and Mrs. Todd and Keri Edwards, 
project developers, is requesting City Council approval of a Design Review (DR) Permit to allow 
construction of a five-unit multifamily development on a vacant 7,500 square-foot lot. The development 
consists of four apartments and one accessory dwelling unit (ADU). The property is on easterly side of 
Olivera Street, 150 feet south of Twelfth Street. Municipal Code Chapter 18.73 requires City Council 
approval of a major Design Review permit for multi-family projects having more than three dwelling 
units. A Categorical Exemption was prepared for the project in accordance with California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

1) Receive a presentation from staff;
2) Conduct a public hearing, including: a) an opportunity for the applicant to present the proposed

project, and b) receive any comments from the public; and
3) Adopt Resolution No. 2021-89 approving the Design Review Permit 2021-078-DR, for the

Edwards Olivera Street 5-unit multi-family complex.

BACKGROUND: 

Site and Surroundings: 
As noted, the project site is a vacant 7,500 square-foot lot on the easterly side of Olivera Street 150 feet 
south of Twelfth Street. The property is in the original portion of the City on the northeast side of 
Downtown Guadalupe (Attachment 2 – Vicinity Map). The 50-feet-wide by 150-foot deep lot is slightly 
narrower than the 60-foot minimum lot width currently specified for new lots by Section 18.52.010 of 
the Municipal Code. According to County records the lot was established in 1875 as a part of the Map of 

Bill Scott 



Page 2 of 5 
 

the Town of Guadalupe. Therefore the lot does not need to be 60 feet wide in order for the project to 
move forward.  Over the years, many of the lots in the area have been combined to accommodate larger 
developments.  
 
The neighborhood is typified by a mixture of single-family homes and multiple-family dwellings. On the 
north side of the development site is a similar small apartment complex, constructed around the 1960’s. 
A single-family house, built around the 1930s, is on the south side of the development site. The home is 
currently used for a multiple-tenant use. The proposed project would be consistent with the General 
Plan by providing new housing on an underutilized infill property in walkable proximity to the City’s 
Downtown Business District. 
 
Project Description 
As noted above, this Design Review Permit proposes five multi-family attached dwelling units. The 
specific unit mix includes four apartments and an ADU. The five living units are contained in two, 2-story 
buildings, as follows:  
 
Building 1 is at the front of the property and contains two apartment units identified in the plans as Unit 
1 and Unit 2. The Building 1 apartments are single-level and are on top of ground-level carport parking. 
Both units are 635 square feet in size and the floor plans are identical. Each apartment has three 
bedrooms, a living area and kitchen; one full bathroom and a small laundry space is provided.  As 
required by the R-3 zone Building 1 is set back 20-feet from the front property line at Olivera Street. 
 
To the rear of the property, Building 2 contains two 2-level apartments, identified as Units 2 and 3; and 
a 400 square-foot space is identified for the ADU. Apartment Unit 3 is 795 square feet in size. The ground 
floor of Unit 3 contains an office/bedroom and a ¾ bathroom. On the second floor are two bedrooms, a 
living/dining room, kitchen, ½ bathroom; and a laundry space is provided. Unit 4 is 765 square feet in 
size. It contains an office/bedroom and ½ bathroom on the first floor. On the second floor are two 
bedrooms, a living/dining room, kitchen, a full bathroom, and a space for a laundry. 
 
As noted, a 400 square-foot ground-floor space is reserved for a future ADU. As provided by state law 
ADUs are processed ministerially. Therefore, the floor plan details for the ADU will defined during the 
Zoning Clearance review stage. However, the general parameters for the ADU have been evaluated and 
the ADU will meet both City and state standards for an attached ADU in association with a multi-family 
development.  
 
A 20-foot-wide driveway provides access to the eight covered parking spaces. Due to space limitations, 
no trash enclosure is being proposed. Each apartment is provided a roll-out trash container near the 
unit. The City Engineer has endorsed this approach to the development’s refuse servicing.  
 
The plans indicate a new six-foot slump stone wall will be constructed along the southerly property line. 
For driveway vision clearance, the wall will be tapered to three feet at the front setback. A six-foot fence 
will be constructed along the easterly property line; and a new five-foot wood fence will be installed 
along the northerly property line. Additionally, a low-three-foot decorative fence will frame the front 
yard.  
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
The primary issues associated with the project are: 1) conformance to all applicable City and state codes 
and development standards; 2) compatibly the surrounding land uses; and 3) providing a quality living 
environment for future residents.  
 
Exterior Building Design: 
The project designer calls the building architecture a “local traditional style.” As shown on the plans, the 
building exteriors have smooth trowel plaster veneer painted a beige color and gable roofs covered with 
charcoal gray composite shingles. The balconies and decks are wood with metal stairways and railings. 
Trim and railing colors are sage green. The window trim is white (Attachment 3 -Elevation Plan).  
 
Windows are generously provided on all sides of the buildings. The number of windows add to the 
building’s appearance and is anticipated to provide for meaningful amounts of natural light and fresh air 
as desired by the occupants. 
 
The window placement also recognizes the need to protect privacy for residents in the project as well as 
for occupants of the neighboring the properties. The Elevation Plan depicts the tallest building is 24 feet, 
8-1/2-inches at the peak of the roof which is below the 35-foot maximum height allowed by the 
Municipal Code for buildings in the R-3 zone. The building design makes efficient use of the 50-foot-wide 
lot and the apartment project is anticipated to provide a positive interface with the neighboring 
properties. 
 
Landscape/Open Space 
The Municipal Code specifies not less than 10% of a parcel shall be covered with dense landscaping. The 
project is providing 1800 square-feet (12%) landscape coverage.  
 
The landscape plan includes eight large and small trees, a variety of shrubs, and ground cover in the front 
and side-yards. Detailed landscape and irrigation plans will be provided for approval prior to issuance of 
a Zoning Clearance for a Building Permit. Based on the above, the project meets the minimum Municipal 
Code standard for landscape coverage. 
 
Usable Open Space:  
For multi-family developments in the R-3 zone, Municipal Code Section 18.52.100 requires a minimum 
of 100 square feet of private open space for units having a ground floor. For upper floor apartments with 
no ground floor, Section 18.52.110 specifies a minimum of 50 square feet of above-ground private open 
space.  
 
Each of the two Building 1 apartments is provided with a 5-foot by ten-foot balcony. The 50-square-foot 
balcony meets the Municipal Code minimum standard for above-ground private open space.  
 
For Building 2, a 120-square foot (10-foot by 12-foot) fenced private yard is provided for both Units 3 
and Unit 4. As specified by both Municipal Code and state Housing and Community Development 
standards, the ADU is provided a 15-foot by 15-foot (225-square-foot) private yard. The three Building 2 



Page 4 of 5 
 

private yards are located at the rear of the building on the east (Attachment 3). The project meets the 
minimum standards for the provision of usable private open space.  
 
Trash Service 

Given the narrow dimensions of the lot, the applicant is proposing not to install a trash enclosure. 
Instead, the residents would be provided with roll-out trash containers. The containers are proposed to 
be stored in various designated locations near each unit.  In this case, the City Engineer has concurred 
with this manner of refuse servicing. As is standard, the project is conditioned to require the property 
owner(s) to have ultimate responsibility to ensure long-term maintenance and the orderly function and 
appearance of the property. 
 
Parking 

The Zoning Ordinance specifies two parking spaces for each apartment unit; one of which should be 
covered. The project is proposing a total of eight parking spaces, all of which are covered. The nine-foot, 
6-inch by 19-foot carport spaces, are accessed from a 20-foot driveway and the carports are provided a 
25-foot backout space. No off-street parking is provided for the ADU. Typically, one parking space would 
be required. The applicant has cited Government Code section 65852.2(d)(1) which exempts ADUs from 
parking requirements if it is demonstrated a public transit stop is within a one-half mile walking distance. 
Zoning Code Section 18.53.050(G)(5)(a) is also aligned with this state parking exemption.  

In this case, the project is within a walkable three blocks to the goods and services and transportation 
facilities in the City’s Downtown. Furthermore, a nearby bus station shown on the project’s vicinity map 
labeled DP1. Based on the above, the project meets the established City and state parking requirements. 
Yet, it should be noted that occupants and their guests will very likely need on-street parking.  
 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
 
The project will make any needed repairs to curb, gutter and sidewalks along the project frontage. 
Furthermore, the City Engineer has conditioned the project to upgrade the existing sewer line from a 6-
inch line to an 8-inch line. The upgrade would be required to the sewer line extending between Eleventh 
Street and Twelfth Street. The sewer improvement requirement overlaps the requirement for the 
pending Design Review Permit for the Crandall 12th Street apartment project (2021-049-DR). The City 
Engineer has indicated whichever project proceeds first would be required to make the sewer upgrades. 
Or the developers have the option to work together to share the costs of the sewer upgrades.  
  
CEQA Review 

The project is exempt from further environmental review. The apartment project is on a small infill 
property less than five acres in size. The site is surrounded by urban development within the existing 
City Limits. Municipal services and facilities are in place; and the 0.17-acres is found to have no value for 
protected wildlife. Therefore, the project has been found to be exempt from CEQA based on the Class 
32 (Small Infill Projects) Categorical Exemption (CEQA Guidelines Sec. 15332). 

 

 

 



Page 5 of 5 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Staff published the required Public Hearing Notice in the Santa Maria Times on Friday, November 12, 
2021. Copies of the Public Hearing Notice were also mailed to property owners and occupants within a 
300-foot radius of the subject property. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Fiscal impacts are anticipated to be negligible. As noted, the project is an infill project located in an 
established neighborhood where City infrastructure and services are already provided. The project 
developer will install and upgrade required utilities necessary to serve the project.   
 
CONCLUSION: 

As discussed above, the Edwards five-unit multi-family project meets the established Municipal Code 
standards. The site plan and building design establish a good fit for this narrow property. The multi-
family development is compatible with surroundings and is anticipated to provide a quality living 
environment in a short walkable distance to the goods, services, entertainment opportunities and 
transportation facilities available in the City’s Downtown.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-89, including CEQA Notice of Exemption (Exhibit 1), Approval Findings 
(Exhibit 2), and Conditions of Approval (Exhibit 3). 

2. Aerial Vicinity Map 
3. Project Plans 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 22 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-89 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING 
A DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT, 2021-078-DR, FOR THE EDWARDS OLIVERA APARTMENTS, A 5-
UNIT APARTMENT COMPLEX ON A 0.17-ACRE PROPERTY AT THE SOUTHEASTERLY SIDE OF 

OLIVERA STREET, 150 FEET SOUTH OF TWELFTH STREET   
(APN 115 -036 - 012) 

WHEREAS, Mr. Chris Tarcon (“Designer/Applicant”), representing Todd and Kari Edwards 
(“Property Owners/Developers”), has submitted an application to the City of Guadalupe for a 
major design review permit (2021-078-DR); and 

WHEREAS, said Design Review Permit would allow the Edwards Olivera Apartments, a five-unit 
multi-family development consisting of four apartment units and one attached accessory 
dwelling unit (ADU) on a 7,500 square-foot property in the R-3 (High Density Residential) zoning 
district; and   

WHEREAS, the 50-foot wide by 150-foot deep lot was legally established as part of the Original 
City partition, entitled Map of the Town of Guadalupe, dated 1875; therefore a project can 
proceed on the lot even though it is narrower than the 60-foot minimum width currently 
specified by the Municipal Code for new subdivisions in the R-3 zone; and  

WHEREAS, the Project meets the lot density and lot coverage standards as specified by Chapter 
18.32.020 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance for multi-family development and by Government Code 
Section 65852.2 (a)(1)(C) for establishing an ADU in association with a multi-family development; 
and  

WHEREAS, a total of eight (8) covered parking spaces are provided for the four apartment units 
which meets the minimum two parking space per unit parking standard established by Chapter 
18.60 of the Zoning Ordinance for apartment projects; and 

WHEREAS, no onsite parking is provided for the ADU. The applicant has cited Government Code 
Section 65852.2(d)(1) which provides an exemption from the parking requirement for an ADU 
within ½ mile of public transit; and  

WHEREAS, the project site is within ½ mile of a public transit stop and within ½ mile from the 
Downcore Core where a variety of transportation facilities as well as a variety of goods and 
services are available in a walkable distance from the project; and  

WHEREAS, given the narrow dimensions of the property, the City Engineer has concluded the 
property is too narrow to allow for trash-truck servicing; and the City Engineer has authorized 
the use of standard roll-out trash containers provided for each dwelling unit; and  

ATTACHMENT 1



Page 2 of 22 

WHEREAS, the Project would support the City’s General Plan by providing new housing on an 
underutilized infill property in walkable proximity to the City’s Downtown Business District; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly-noticed public hearing on November 23, 2021 at which all 
interested persons were given the opportunity to be heard, and notice of said hearing was 
published in the Santa Maria Times at least 10 days prior to the public hearing. Said public hearing 
notice was also mailed to all residents and property owners within 300 feet of said property; and 

WHEREAS, after taking public testimony and hearing evidence from City staff, the City Council 
finds, pursuant to the findings attached to this resolution as Exhibit 2 and subject to the project’s 
Conditions of Approval attached to this resolution as Exhibit 3, that the approval of the major 
design review permit, is consistent with the City’s General Plan and applicable sections of the 
City’s Municipal Code; and   

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the entire administrative record, including application 
materials, staff report, the California Environmental Quality Act determination, and oral and 
written testimony from interested persons; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that after completely reviewing this project, it can be seen with 
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on 
the environment, and therefore the activity is not subject to CEQA per CEQA Guidelines Section 
15332, Exhibit 1; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that approval of the Design Review Permit is consistent with the 
City’s General Plan, the provisions of Title 18 (Zoning Code) of the Guadalupe Municipal Code; 
and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has the ability to make the findings required to approve the project, 
including findings pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Guadalupe does hereby 
find and determine as follows: 

Section 1. The Findings set forth in Exhibit 2 to this Resolution are true and correct 
regarding the Design Review Permit, which are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2. After reviewing this project completely, it can be seen with certainty that 
there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant 
effect on the environment, and therefore the activity is not subject to 
further CEQA review per CEQA Guidelines Section 15332. 

Section 3. The Design Review Permit is approved, subject to the Conditions of 
Approval set forth in Exhibit 3 of this Resolution. 



Page 3 of 22 

Section 4. The City Council Secretary shall certify as to the adoption of this 
Resolution. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting on the 23rd day of November 2021 by 
the following vote:  

MOTON: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN: 

I, Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk of the City of Guadalupe DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 
Resolution, being Resolution No. 2021-89 has been duly signed by the Mayor and attested by 
the City Clerk, all at a regular meeting of the City Council, held November 23, 2021, and that same 
was approved and adopted.   

ATTEST: 

______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk  Ariston Julian, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Philip F. Sinco, City Attorney 

Exhibits: 
Exhibit 1 - CEQA Categorical Exemption 
Exhibit 2 - Findings 
Exhibit 3 - Conditions of Approval 



Page 4 of 22 

Notice of Exemption Exhibit 1 

To:  County Clerk  From: City of Guadalupe 
County of Santa Barbara 819 Obispo Street 
123 E. Anapamu Street  Guadalupe, CA  93434 
Santa Barbara, CA  93101 

Project Title: Edwards Olivera Apartments 

Project Applicant: Todd and Kari Edwards. 

Project Location-Specific:  Southeast side of Olivera Street 150-feet south of 12th Street (115-036-012) 

Project Location-City: City of Guadalupe          Project Location-County: Santa Barbara County 

Description of Nature, Purpose, and Beneficiaries of Project: 

The project is a Design Review (DR) permit, in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 18.73, to allow 
development of a five-unit multi-family development consisting of a four apartment units and one accessory 
dwelling unit (ADU) and associated parking and landscaping on a 0.17-acre property in the R-3 (High 
Density Residential) zoning district at the above-referenced location. The project is anticipated to benefit 
the project developers through a financial return on their investment. The project would  support the City’s 
General Plan objectives to increase the City’s housing supply; and the project is anticipated to benefit its 
future residents by providing a quality living  environment in close proximity to the goods, services, 
entertainment and transportation opportunities in the City’s Downtown Core. 

Name of Public Agency Approving Project: Guadalupe City Council 

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Chris Tarcon, Designer, MW Architects, on behalf of 
Todd and Kari Edwards property owners/developers.  

Exempt Status: (check one)

__ Ministerial (Sec. 15268); 
__ Declared Emergency (Sec. 15269(a)); 
__ Emergency Project (Sec. 15269(b)(c)); 
XX Categorical Exemption. Section 15332 
__ General Exemption (Section 15061(b)(3)) 

Reasons why project is exempt: 
The project consists of a five-unit apartment complex on a 0.17-acre site in the R-3 Zoning District in the 
City of Guadalupe.  

The project is exempt in accordance with CEQA Class 15332 because: 

a) The project is consistent with the High Density Residential (20 DU/AC) General Plan land use
designation and corresponding R-3 High Density Residential zoning on the property.

b) The proposed development will occur on an infill site no more than five-acres in size (0.17-acre);
and the property is wholly within the Guadalupe City limits.

c) The project site is surrounded by urban uses; and by similar multi-family residential uses in the R-
3 zone are to the north and west.

d) There are no trees or vegetation present; and the property has no value as habitat for rare or
endangered species.



Page 5 of 22 

e) Approval of the five-unit apartment project would not result in significant effects related to traffic,
noise, air quality, or water quality; and the infill site is adequately served by all required utilities
and public services. The project includes design measures that are sustainable and encourage
pedestrian activity and usage of other alternative transportation modes.

Based on the above, it can be seen with certainty that the proposed project could not have a significant 
effect on the environment. 

Contact Person: Bill Scott (Area Code) Phone Number/Ext:  (805) 478-4778 

Signature:    _______  Title: Contract City Planner 

Date received for filing at County Clerk’s Office: ________________ 

(Form prepared March 2018) 



Page 6 of 22 

EXHIBIT 2, FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL 

DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT 
EDWARDS OLIVERA STREET FIVE-UNIT APARTMENTS 

2021-078-DR 

1.0 CEQA Findings 

1.1 CONSIDERATION OF THE CEQA EXEMPTION AND FULL DISCLOSURE 

The City Council has considered the Class 32 Categorical Exemption together with the comments 
received and considered during the public review process for the project. The Class 32 Exemption 
has been completed in compliance with CEQA and is adequate for this proposal. 

1.2  FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT EFFECT 

Based on the whole record, it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, and therefore the activity 
is not subject to CEQA.   

1.3 LOCATION OF DOCUMENTS 

The documents and other materials which constitute the record of proceedings upon which this 
decision is based are in the custody of the City of Guadalupe, 918 Obispo Street, Guadalupe, CA 
93434. 

2.0 Administrative Findings 

2.1 DESIGN REVIEW FINDINGS 

Pursuant to City of Guadalupe Municipal Code, Section 18.73.100, a Design Review Permit shall 
be approved only if all the following findings can be made: 

A. The buildings, structures, and landscaping are appropriate and of good design in relation
to other buildings, structures, and landscaping on-site or in the immediate vicinity of the
project.

The project has been designed with full consideration for both the livability for future
residents and compatibility with the neighborhood in which the project is located. The
surrounding area is in an original portion of the City and is typified by a mixture of single-
family homes and multi-family developments. A similar small apartment complex is on
the north and single-family home converted to multi-family use is on the south. The
proposed site and building orientation, setbacks and landscaping meet the established
Municipal Code standards.



 
 

Page 7 of 22 
 

B. That the development will be compatible with the neighborhood, and its size, bulk and 
scale will be appropriate to the site and the neighborhood.   

 
Consistent with the buildings in the immediate area, the two-story apartment buildings 
have a maximum height of 24 feet, 8.5 inches and the building exteriors include materials 
and colors that are harmonious and fitting with the immediate neighborhood.  

 
C. There is harmony of material, color, and composition of all sides of a structure or buildings 

as well as consistency and unity of composition and treatment of exterior elevation.  
 

The apartment buildings are of simple but attractive design. The architecture is described 
as a “Local Traditional” style. the exterior design includes a harmonious combination 
plaster siding, pitched composition shingle roofs, wood decks with steel railings and 
stairways and vinyl window frames. Exterior colors include beige exteriors, with sage 
green trim and charcoal grey roofing. The building materials and colors relate 
harmoniously with one another. 
 

D. Any mechanical or electrical equipment is well integrated into the total design concept 
and screened from public view to the maximum extent practicable.  

 
Any mechanical and/or electrical equipment will be designed and located to minimize 
visibility and will be screened from public view as applicable. 
 

E.  All visible on-site utility services are appropriate in size and location.  
 

All utility services are appropriate in their size and placement on the project site.  
 

F. The grading will be appropriate to the site. 
 

The grading is appropriate for the site; and includes appropriately landscaped stormwater 
treatment facilities to serve the functional needs of the project while enhancing site 
appearance. The grading plan has been endorsed by the City Engineer for its functionality, 
and by the Planning Department for its finished usage and final appearance.  

 
G. Adequate landscaping is provided in proportion to the project and the site with due regard 

to the preservation of existing trees, and existing native vegetation, and adequate 
provision will be made for the long-term maintenance of such landscaping. 

 
 There are no existing trees on the project site. Appropriate landscaping is provided 

throughout the project site, including but not limited to a total of eight tree plantings; 
including two large trees in the front setback and six-smaller trees are distributed 
throughout the site. The project has been conditioned to require permanent maintenance 
of the landscaped areas in accordance with Municipal Code 18.64.120. 

 



 
 

Page 8 of 22 
 

H. The development will not adversely affect significant public scenic views. 
 
 The project would promote development an underutilized infill site in the inner portion 

of the City. There are no significant viewsheds in the project vicinity. The landscape and 
tree planting plan as well as associated public improvements are anticipated to improve 
the overall appearance of the project site and improve the current appearance of the 
vacant lot.  

 
I. All exterior site, structure and building lighting is well-designed and appropriate in size 

and location. 
 

All exterior lighting fixtures shall be located, directed, and shielded to minimize potential 
light and glare impacts on neighboring properties. 
 

J. The proposed development is consistent with any additional design standards as expressly 
adopted by the City Council. 

 
 No additional design standards were required by the City Council. However, the project 

was designed in full consideration of the applicable historic and neighborhood 
preservation goals and objectives of the City’s General Plan.  

 
K. The project architecture will respect the privacy of neighbors and is considerate of solar 

access. 
 
 The project is completely considerate of solar access and the site design and building 

placement will ensure no impact will result to the privacy of neighboring properties in the 
project area. 

 
L. The project will provide for adequate street design and sufficient parking for residents and 

guests in a safe and aesthetically pleasing way. 
 
 Eight covered parking spaces are provided. The parking is accessed through a 20-foot-

wide driveway. Each carport is provided a 25-foot back-out space. As noted, the project 
is found to meet applicable City and state regulations pertaining to parking.  

 
M. The proposed development as shown on the project plans is in conformance with all 

applicable policies of the General Plan and the requirements of this title. 
 

As noted, the project design is in full consideration of the urban design goals of the 
General Plan and the project meets the minimum standards established by the City of 
Guadalupe Municipal Code.  
 

 



Page 9 of 22 

EXHIBIT 3 

Edwards Olivera Street 5-Unit Apartment Complex 
2021-078-DR 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

1. Project Description: Subject to the conditions set forth below, this permit authorizes
the improvements and uses requested by Application No. 2021-078-DR, shown in the
project plans on file with the City of Guadalupe. The project consists of the
construction and occupancy of a five-unit multi-family development; consisting of
four apartment units and one accessory dwelling unit (ADU) on a 0.17-acre property;
with a total of eight (8) covered City standard sized parking spaces; decorative
landscaping and private open space are provided as shown on the approved plan set.

Any deviations from the project description in the staff report, exhibits or conditions
must be reviewed and approved by the City of Guadalupe for conformity with this
approval. The project shall be constructed as shown on the plan set entitled Olivera
Apartments and last revised July 23, 2021 (Attachment 2), Deviations may require
amendments to this permit, including additional CEQA review. Deviations without the
above-described approval will constitute a violation of the permit approval.

2. The Applicant agrees, as a condition of approval of this resolution to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless, at Applicant’s expense, City and agents, officers, and
employees from and against any claim, action or proceeding to attack, review, set
aside, void, or annul the approval of this permit or to determine the reasonableness,
legality or validity of any condition attached hereto. City shall promptly notify the
Applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, to which City receives notice, and
City will cooperate fully with Applicant in the defense thereof. Applicant shall
reimburse the City for any court costs and attorney’s fees that the City may be
required to pay as a result of any such claim, action or proceeding, but such
participation shall not relieve Applicant of the obligation of this condition. Applicant’s
acceptance of this permit approval or commencement of construction or operations
under the approval shall be deemed to be acceptance of all conditions of approval.

3. If any condition imposing a fee, exaction, or dedication is challenged by the project
sponsors in an action filed in a court of law or threaten to be filed therein which action
is brought within the time period provided for by law, this this approval shall be
suspended pending dismissal of such action, the expiration of the limitation period
applicable to such action, or final action. If any condition is invalidated by a court of
law, the entire project shall be reviewed by the City and substitute conditions may be
imposed.



 
 

Page 10 of 22 
 

 
4. In accordance with Section 18.73.120 of the City Municipal Code, this Design Review 

approval shall expire two (2) years from the date of approval, unless a building permit 
for the proposed improvements has been obtained prior to expatriation. Up to two 
one-year time extensions may be granted for good cause. An extension must be filed 
with the City prior to the permit expiration date.     

 
CITY ENGINEER CONDITIONS  

 
5. All engineering submittals prepared by the applicant’s engineer shall be signed and 

sealed by a California licensed civil engineer. 
 

6. All new and existing electrical, telephone, and communication utility distribution 
service wires onsite and in adjacent easements shall be placed underground. 

 
7. All water meters shall be placed in the parkway, adjacent to the curb.  Landscape area 

greater than 5,000 square feet requires a separate, appropriately sized irrigation 
meter. 

 
8. For service lines already connected to the utility system, water and wastewater 

connection fees shall be based solely on an increase in water meter size and shall be 
calculated and collected prior to installation of the larger meter.  For new water 
meters (except for ADUs) full connection fees shall apply, per the 2020-2021 master 
fee schedule. The owner shall pay for meter and all connection fees prior to issuance 
of the Building Permit. 
 

9. Park development and public facilities fees shall be paid per the master fee schedule. 
 
10. The developer shall obtain an encroachment permit from the Building/Planning 

Department prior to any work in public streets, right-of-way, or easements. 
 
11. All sewer lines on-site shall be privately owned and maintained.  Drawings shall label 

all privately owned lines as such.  Private sewer lines shall tie into the public sewer 
main using a wye connection.  Sewer laterals shall not be connected to the public 
sewer main with a manhole. 

 
12. All of the following conditions shall be completed to the satisfaction of the City 

Engineer prior to issuance of certificate of occupancy for the project, unless otherwise 
stated herein or as agreed by the City Engineer. 

 
13. The applicant shall provide an engineer’s estimate for all work included on the public 

improvement plans, and enter into an agreement with the City, subject to the City's 
approval. If approved by the City, bonds or other forms of securities shall be submitted 



Page 11 of 22 

as a guarantee for the construction of infrastructure improvements before the 
approval of building permits. 

14. Public infrastructure improvements shall be designed and constructed per the City of
Santa Maria standards (adopted by the City of Guadalupe), and the City of Guadalupe
standard drawings when available.  The decision of the City Engineer shall be final
regarding the specific standards that shall apply.

15. The applicant shall submit drainage calculations or an updated drainage report with
the public improvement plans.

16. Submit an Erosion and Drainage Control Plan to the City Engineer for review and
approval prior to construction.  The plan shall reflect “Best Management Practices” as
proposed in the California Regional Water Quality Control Board Erosion and
Sediment Control Field Manual and shall include both temporary measures (to be
used during construction, and until permanent measures are completed/established)
and permanent measures.  Erosion control measures shall be in place and approved
by the City before the start of construction. The plan shall include both source control
and perimeter containment measures.  All Drainage and Erosion Control Measures
shall be designed and sized by a qualified professional.

17. All storm drain infrastructure located on-site and required by the Post-Construction
Requirements (PCRs) adopted by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board
for the Central Coast Region shall be privately owned and maintained.

18. Install Storm Drain Markers on all drainage inlets prior to issuance of the first
occupancy clearance.

19. Install Bioretention Signage on all bioretention areas prior to issuance of the first
occupancy clearance.

20. Submit grading and drainage plans, including a geotechnical report providing
technical specifications for grading of the site and prepared by a Geotechnical
Engineer, to the City and Santa Barbara County Flood Control District for plan checking
and comment. Before building permits are issued, address all comments to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

21. Upon approval of the improvement plans, the applicant shall provide a scanned pdf
of the signed plans and three sets of prints of the signed improvement plans for
inspection purposes.

22. Before final inspections and acceptance of the public improvements, the applicant
shall provide to the City Engineer record as-built drawings, signed by the engineer of



Page 12 of 22 

record in the following method: one set of scanned pdfs, one set of reproducible 
mylars, and an electronic AutoCAD drawing file.  

23. The project shall comply with all Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4)
requirements.  Low impact development, best management practices and similar
regulations and guidelines shall be met.  The design shall follow the Santa Barbara
County Post Construction Requirements, Stormwater Technical Guide, and all future
updates.

24. The developer shall submit a drainage study prepared by a registered civil engineer
addressing pre and post-development storm water run-off.  Post-development storm
water management shall be addressed and shall be consistent with the State and
County requirements.

25. Prior to final occupancy, an “Owner’s Agreement to Construct and Maintain Private
Drainage Improvements for Water Quality” on all private lots where LID measures are
required must be approved, signed by the owner and City, and recorded.  A template
is available from the City Engineer.

26. Prior to final occupancy and if required, a “Storm Water Control Measures
Certification of Approval” must be signed and stamped by a California Registered
Engineer, Architect, Geologist and/or Landscape Architect and submitted to the City
Engineer.  A template is available from the City Engineer.

27. Prior to construction, the developer shall provide a copy of a preliminary Title Report,
no more than 6 months old to the City Engineer.

28. The entire site shall be permanently maintained free of accumulated dirt and litter
and in an otherwise neat and attractive manner and adhere to the requirements of
the City of Guadalupe Municipal Code.  Any graffiti on the property shall be promptly
painted out.  All landscaping areas in the property shall be permanently maintained
with healthy, growing plant material, free from weeds.  Dead or dying plant material
shall be replaced within one month of plant deterioration.  Failure to comply with this
condition is a public nuisance and is subject to the adopted citation ordinance of the
City of Guadalupe.

29. The developer shall upgrade the public sewer main on Olivera from north edge of
property to 11th Street to meet minimum sewer size requirement of 8-inch for
multifamily developments prior to certificate of occupancy.

30. The developer shall repair any cracked or broken curb, gutter, driveway, and sidewalk
within the project frontage along Olivera Street. Public Works staff will determine the
extent of the sidewalk and curb and gutter repair in the field prior to
construction.  Driveways shall be flush with adjacent sidewalk.



 
 

Page 13 of 22 
 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 
  

31. Commencement of work. The applicant shall notify City Planning Department and City 
Building Department staff of the start date for construction at least five (5) working 
days in advance of the start of work. This notification shall also include an estimated 
construction schedule and a truck haul route for demolished and recycled materials. 
The applicant shall also notify City staff of the completion of construction and 
demolition work no more than one working day upon completion. 
  

32. Recycling. Excess construction materials and demolition materials shall be recycled to 
the extent feasible and proof of recycling in the form or receipt from the recycling 
facility noting recycled materials and amounts shall be provided to City staff. 

 
33. Fees. Prior to Zoning Clearance, the applicant shall pay all applicable permit 

processing fees in full, including but not limited to building permit fees. 
 
34. Zoning Clearance. No Building Permit shall be issued until a Zoning Clearance has first 

been issued by the City. 
 
35. Agreement to Comply. Approval of this Design Review is not valid until the property 

owner or authorized agent signs and returns the Agreement to Comply form, agreeing 
to the terms and Conditions of Approval. The signed form must be submitted to 
Planning Department prior to issuance of a Zoning Clearance. 

 
36. Compliance with Conditions. The applicant shall comply at all times with these 

conditions. If complaint are filed with the City, staff will review the complaints and 
determine if a meeting with the applicant and complainants can resolve the issue(s). 
If no resolution is reached, a hearing will be scheduled before the City Council for staff 
to present a recommendation to resolve the issue(s) The applicant shall be 
responsible for the fees to cover staff time. 

 
37. Construction Hours. The Owner/Applicant, including all contractors and 

subcontractors shall limit construction activity, including equipment maintenance and 
site preparation, to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through 
Friday.  No-noise generating construction shall occur on weekends or state holidays. 
Non-noise generating interior construction activities such as plumbing, electrical, 
drywall and painting (which does not include the use of compressors, tile saws, or 
other noise- generating equipment) are not subject to these restrictions. The 
applicant is advised that building inspector and planning staff will spot check and 
responds to complaints. 

 
38. Landscaping. Landscape Plan. Prior to issuance of Zoning Clearance, the applicant shall 

submit a Final landscape Plan for review and approval by the Planning Director. Prior 
to the first occupancy clearance, the project shall have all landscaping planted. 



Page 14 of 22 

Landscaping shall be installed and maintained per the City-approved landscape and 
irrigation plan and maintained for the life of the project. The type, size, density, and 
configuration of new plants shall be selected to maximize successful establishment 
and growth to achieve this landscaping objective within a reasonable period of time 
after installation. Final landscape and irrigation plans shall be submitted by the 
Applicant to the City for review and approval prior to issuance of Zoning Clearance. 
All landscaping and irrigation shall be completed and installed prior to the first 
Occupancy Clearance of that phase of development. Plant locations may be adjusted 
in the field (as directed by Planning staff) to achieve landscaping objectives. The 
applicant shall contact City Planning staff at least 48 hours prior to request for 
occupancy clearance in order to verify that landscaping and irrigation has been 
installed according to the approved plans, Failure to comply with the requirements 
could jeopardize issuance of the occupancy clearance. 

39. Additional Permits Required. The use and/or construction of any structures or
improvements authorized by this approval shall not commence until all necessary
planning and building permits are obtained. Before any Permit will be issued by the
Building Department, the Owner/Applicant must obtain written clearance from all
determents having conditions. Such clearance shall indicate that the Owner/Applicant 
must obtain written clearance from all departments having conditions. Such clearance
shall indicate that the Owner/Applicant has satisfied all pre-construction conditions.

40. Design Review Expiration. The Owner/Applicant shall obtain the required Zoning
Clearance within 24 months following the effective date of this Design Review Permit.
If the required Zoning Clearance is not issued within 24 months following the effective
date of this Deign Review Permit, or within such extended period of time as may be
authorized in compliance with Section 18.73.120.B of the Guadalupe Municipal Code,
and an application for an extension has not been submitted to the Planning
Department, then the Design Review permit shall be considered void and of no further
effect.

41. Design Review-Void. This Design Review Permit shall become void and be
automatically revoked if the development and/or authorized use allowed by this time
Design Review Permit is discontinued for a period of more than 12 months, or within
such extended period as may be authorized in compliance with Section 18.73.120.B
of the Guadalupe Municipal Code. Any use authorized by this Design Review Permit
shall immediately cease upon expiration or revocation of this Design Review Permit.
Any Zoning Clearance approved or issued pursuant to this Design Review Permit shall
expire upon expiration or revocation of the Design Review Permit. Design Review
Permit renewals must be applied for prior to expiration of the Design Review Permit.

42. Plans Requirements. The Owner/Applicant shall ensure all applicable final conditions
of approval are printed in their entirety on applicable pages of grading/construction
or building plans submitted to the Building Department.



 
 

Page 15 of 22 
 

 
43. Contractor and Subcontractor notification. The Owner/Applicant shall ensure that 

potential contractors are aware of City conditions and requirements. 
Owner/Applicant shall notify all contractors and subcontractors in writing of the site 
rules, restrictions, and Conditions of Approval and submit a copy of the notice to 
Planning Staff. 

 
44. Time Extensions-All Projects. The Owner/Applicant may request a time extension 

prior to the expiration of the permit or entitlement for development. The review 
authority with jurisdiction over the project may, upon good cause shown, grant a time 
extension in compliance with City rules and regulations, which include reflecting 
changed circumstances and ensuring compliance with CEQA. If the Owner/Applicant 
requests a time extension for this permit, the permit may be revised to include 
updated language to standard conditions and/or mitigation measures and additional 
conditions and/or mitigation measures which reflect changed circumstances or 
additional identified project impacts. 

 
45. All newly planted landscaping shall be maintained for the life of the project. 
 
46. In the unexpected event archeological or paleontological resources are unearthed 

during project construction, all earth disturbing work within the project area of 
potential effect (APE) must be temporarily suspended until an archaeologist has 
evaluated the nature and significance of the find. After the find has been 
appropriately mitigated, work in the area may resume. A Native American 
representative should monitor any archaeological field work associated with Native 
American materials. 

 
47. The project is required to comply with standard lighting requirements per the 

Guadalupe Municipal Code, which requires that light and glare be minimized on any 
adjacent properties. Exterior lighting shall be shown on all Building plans prior to 
approval of the Zoning Clearance and Building Permit.  

 
48. Stormwater. The project is Tier 2 project as identified in the Project Clean water 

Technical Guide, established as the guiding document for stormwater discharges in 
Santa Barbara County. The project shall establish and implement a Stormwater 
Control Plan, in accordance with the protocol established by the Project Clean water 
Technical Guide.  

 
a) Prior to occupancy the Stormwater Control Plan shall be approved by the City; 

and the measures identified shall be fully constructed to the satisfaction of the 
City. 

 



 
 

Page 16 of 22 
 

b) All stormwater control measures, and associated landscaping shall be 
maintained by the property owner(s) and their successors for the life of the 
project.   

 
49. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay all fees due to the 

Planning Department and those applicable fees to Building at the time of permit 
issuance. 

 
50. Site Maintenance General: The property and all of the facilities, including but not 

limited to buildings; parking areas; carport structures and trash enclosures and their 
immediate areas shall be maintained in an orderly manner and free of accumulations 
of dirt, litter to the satisfaction of the City; and as further specified by Municipal Code 
Chapter 18.050.070.  
 

51. Landscape Maintenance: Landscape materials shall be planted as shown on the 
approved Landscape Plan, identified as Exhibit _ attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. Trees and larger shrub plantings shall be selected to be generally symmetrical 
and installed in healthy condition. Any damaged or otherwise unhealthy plant 
material shall be immediately removed and replaced.  

 
To minimize the potential for bent or leaning, or miss-sharpen trees, tree plantings 
shall be staked until determined to be established as vertical and _____. 
 
The Property Owners and their successors shall be responsible for the long-term 
maintenance of the landscaped areas. All required landscaping shall be maintained in 
good condition. Such maintenance shall include, where appropriate, pruning, moving, 
weeding, cleaning, fertilizing and watering. Whenever necessary, plant materials shall 
be replaced, and any structural materials included in the basic landscaping design shall 
be repaired or replaced. (Municipal Code Section 18.64.120.) 
 
All shrubs and plants shall be of a minimum size of one gallon, or equivalent, at the 
time of installation, and all trees shall be of a minimum size of 15 gallons, or 
equivalent, at the time of installation.  
 

52. Fence and Wall Maintenance: Fences and walls shall be maintained in an upright 
vertical and unbroken condition and in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 
12.52.125. Any graffiti shall be removed within 48-hours.  
 

53. Outdoor Lighting: All exterior lighting shall include full cut-off fixtures located to 
minimize the encroachment of excessive light and glare on neighboring properties. 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
 

54. Accessibility. Clearly identify on the plans that the Triplex R-2 Occupancy Building is 
required to comply with C.B.C., Chapter 11A Accessibility Requirements. The ground 



 
 

Page 17 of 22 
 

floor of the multi-story units and the ground floor of the single-story unit shall be fully 
accessible. The designation as a future ADU has no bearing on the fact this is a triplex. 
[C.B.C., §1102A.1] 
 

55. Permits. A building permit application, plans and specifications demonstrating 
compliance with current California Building, Fire, Plumbing, Mechanical, Electrical, 
Green Building and Energy Standard Code requirements is to be submitted and 
permits obtained prior to construction. 

 
56. Design Professional Required. Plans for the project shall be prepared signed and 

sealed by a California registered design professional, i.e. architect or engineer. 
 
57. Soils Report Required. A soils (Geotechnical) report will be required for the project 

and must be submitted at the time of building permit application. [C.B.C., §1803] 
 

58. Undergrounding Required. The overhead utility line shown on Sheet DP2 is not 
approved. All electrical, telephone and communication utility distribution and service 
wires shall be placed underground.  
 

59. Water Meters. Utility or customer submetering of the domestic water supply is 
required for each unit in multiunit (2 or more) residential structures.   
 

60. Area and Height. Justification for the proposed allowable area and height for the 
buildings in this project shall be shown on the cover sheet of plans. [C.B.C. Table 
506.2] The U Occupancy used for allowable area shown on Sheet DP3 is not approved. 
Show compliance with R-2 occupancy using total square footage of residential and 
vehicle occupancies. [5,453 sf proposed < 7,000 sf allowed]  
 

61. Truss Calculations. The City of Guadalupe requires truss calculations and their design 
to be submitted at the time of building permit application. C.B.C. §107.3.4.1 
 

62. Fire Sprinklers. New Group R occupancies are required to be protected by an 
automatic sprinkler system in accordance with C.B.C. Section 903.2.8. Fire sprinkler 
systems require separate review, approval and permit and are not within the scope 
of the building permit application for the structures. 
 

63. Alarm Systems. Fire alarm systems, smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms shall 
be provided in Group R-2 and R-3 occupancies, as applicable. C.B.C., §420.5   
 

64. Fire Barriers. Fire barriers separating dwelling units and other occupancies shall be 
constructed in accordance with C.B.C., Section 707 and horizontal assemblies 
separating dwelling units and other occupancies shall be constructed in accordance 
with C.B.C., Section 711. In addition to the fire resistive construction, walls and 



Page 18 of 22 

floor/ceiling assemblies separating dwelling units shall be designed to provide a sound 
transmission class rating in compliance with C.B.C., Section 1207. 

65. Clothes Washers. Clothes washers shall be provided in accordance with C.P.C., Table
422.1 as follows; Laundry tray or 1 automatic clothes washer connection per unit or 1
laundry tray or 1 automatic clothes washer connection for each 12 units.

66. Photovoltaics. The project shall incorporate solar photovoltaic system(s). Show the PV
array locations on the elevation plans as applicable. [C.En.C. §110.10(a)2]

67. Waste Management. After the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall
submit a waste management plan to the Building Division. The plan shall include the
estimated composition and quantities of waste to be generated and how the project
developer intends to recycle at least 65 percent of the total job site construction and
demolition waste measured by weight or volume. Proof of compliance shall be
provided to the Chief Building Official prior to the issuance of a final inspection. During
demolition and construction, the project developer shall mark all trash disposal bins
“trash materials only” and all recycling bins “recycling materials only.”

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONDITIONS 

68. Emergency Contact Information. An "Emergency Contact Information" form shall be
provided to the Guadalupe Fire Department (GFD) prior to the issuance of Building
Permits.

69. Address Numbers. The proposed location and design of address numbers shall be
shown on plans.  New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers,
building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly 
legible and clearly visible from the centerline of the street or road fronting the
property. These numbers shall contrast with their background. Address numbers shall
be Arabic numerals or alphabet letters. Numbers shall be a minimum of 4 inches in
height with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inch (12.7mm) for residential occupancies
and 6 inches (152 mm) high with a minimum stroke of 0.75 inch (19 mm) for
commercial and industrial occupancies. Numbers and/or letters of larger size may be
required based on the size and design of the building or groups of buildings. Where
access is by means of a private road and the building cannot be viewed from the public
way, a monument pole or sign or means shall be used to identify the structure.
Address identification shall be maintained.

70. Access. Fire Department Access requirements shall comply with the Fire Code of the
City of Guadalupe Chapter 8, Title 15 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code (GMC), 2019
California Fire Code (C.F.C.), Section 503 and C.F.C. Appendix D. All weather surface



Page 19 of 22 

access roads shall be installed and approved by the Fire Department prior to the 
issuance of a building permit or start of construction unless otherwise approved by 
the Fire Code Official. 

71. Access Roads. An approved Guadalupe Fire Department (GFD) access road shall
extend to within 150 feet of all portions of the exterior walls of the first story of the
building, as measured by an approved route around the exterior of the building.

a. All weather surface access roads shall be installed and approved by the GFD prior
to
vertical combustible construction.

72. Temporary Access Roads. Plans for temporary access roads shall be reviewed,
inspected and approved by the GFD prior to construction, in accordance with C.F.C.
Section 501. Temporary access roads shall be constructed with compacted base, curbs
and gutters prior to vertical combustible construction. Access roads shall be
maintained clear and unobstructed for the duration of the construction project.

73. Temporary Fire Access Road Signage. Temporary access signage shall be placed at
each entrance to the project (when necessary) to delineate construction and fire
access.  These signs shall be installed prior to combustible construction.

74. Fire Lane Sign Requirements. No Parking/Fire Lane signs must follow these guidelines:
a. The CVC Code 22500.1 (CVC 22500.1) must be imprinted on the bottom of the

sign.
b. All lettering shall be red on white reflective background no smaller than 2 inches

in height.
c. The sign shall be no smaller than 12 inches wide by 18 inches high.
d. The sign shall be securely mounted facing the direction of travel and clearly visible

to oncoming traffic entering the designated area. Signs shall be of durable
material.

e. Signs shall be installed at all driveway entrances and at intervals of not less than
100 feet along all designated fire lanes.

75. Fire Lane Curb Painting Requirements. Where a curb exists adjacent to a fire lane, the
top and face of the curb shall be painted with red traffic paint. Where the curb is
discontinued, a red stripe and stencil as described below shall be painted to define
the fire lane. Red curbs, red stripes and white stencils must be maintained in good
condition and follow these guidelines:

a. The face of the curb shall be stenciled with the words: NO PARKING FIRE LANE in
white block letters a minimum 4 inches in height.



Page 20 of 22 

b. The stencil must be painted on the FACE of the curb. Exception: Under
circumstances where the curb height is less than 4 inches, the stencil may appear
on the top of the curb.

c. The stencil must appear every 50 feet or less, depending on the configuration of
the fire lane. (Where a small island cannot contain both phrases, FIRE LANE must
appear the NO PARKING may be omitted).

d. Where no curb exists adjacent to the fire lane, the edge of the fire lane shall be
marked with an 8 inch wide red stripe. In addition, a diagonal 8 inch wide red stripe
may be required between the edges of the fire lane, with the diagonal stripe
connecting the stripes or curbs at the edges of the fire lane. Spacing of the
diagonal stripe is every 50 feet.

e. The stripe shall be stenciled with the words NO PARKING FIRE LANE in white block
letters, minimum 4 inches in height.

f. The stencil must appear every 50 feet or less, depending on the configuration of
the fire lane. If the fire lane is less than 50 feet the stencil must appear at the
beginning and end of the fire lane.

76. Water Supply for Fire Protection. An approved water supply for fire protection shall
be installed and made fully operational prior to the delivery of combustible materials
to a job site. The Fire Code Official shall inspect and approve the water system prior
to the delivery of combustible materials at the job site.

77. Portable Fire Extinguishers. Structures under construction, alteration or demolition
shall be provided with not less than one approved portable fire extinguisher in
accordance with C.F.C., Section 906 and sized for not less than ordinary hazard as
follows:
a. At each stairway on all floor levels where combustible materials have

accumulated.
b. In every storage and construction shed.
c. Throughout the building under construction in sufficient quantity so travel

distance does not exceed 75 feet (23 m).
d. The minimum rating for fire extinguishers shall be 2A10BC.
e. Additional portable fire extinguishers shall be provided where special hazards

exist including, but not limited to, the storage and use of flammable and
combustible liquids.

78. Fire Flow. Fire flow shall comply with C.F.C., Appendix B. The minimum fire flow for
this R-2/R-3/U project shall be 500 gallons per minute for a 1/2 hour (based on Type
V Construction with fire sprinklers).

79. Fire Sprinkler Systems. Automatic Fire Sprinklers are required for the proposed R-2/R-
3 occupancies and as otherwise required by the C.F.C.. Deferred submittal of fire
sprinkler plans and calculations is permitted. The plans and calculations shall be
signed and sealed on every sheet by a registered Fire Protection Engineer or Fire
Protection Contractor.



Page 21 of 22 

80. Fire Department Connection (FDC). FDCs shall be located on the front access side of
buildings, fully visible and recognizable from the street or nearest point of fire
department vehicle access or as otherwise approved by the Fire Chief or his/her
designee. The FDC shall:
a. Face the public street or fire lane fronting the protected building and be installed

so the center line of the connection is a minimum of 36 inches above finished
grade.

b. Within 40 feet of an approved roadway or driveway and arranged so that hose
lines can be readily attached to the inlets without interference.

c. Within 50 feet of an approved fire hydrant.
d, Be equipped with Knox Brand locking caps.
e. All Fire Department Connections, fire sprinkler risers, standpipes connections, and

fire pump connections shall be provided with a sign identifying its location in
accordance with standards established by the Fire Code Official. Where the FDC
does not serve the entire building, a sign shall be provided indicating the portion
of the building served.

f. A 5-foot (1.5 m) clear space shall be maintained in front of the FDC when placed
directly in front of a parking area or road. Where the clearance required intrudes
into the road or parking area the Fire Lane Curb Painting Requirements in C.F.C.,
Appendix Section D103.6.4 must be applied.

81. Fire Alarm System. A fire alarm system shall be installed in accordance with the C.F.C.
and N.F.P.A. 72 standards. All alarm systems shall have an alarm permit issued by the
Guadalupe Police Department.  Permit shall be obtained prior to final occupancy
approval. The fire alarm system shall be certificated by Underwriters Laboratories or
an equivalent nationally recognized organization.
a. Deferred submittal of fire alarm plans is permitted. The plans shall be signed and

sealed, on every sheet, by a registered Fire Protection Engineer or Fire Protection
Contractor licensed in California.

b. A Fire alarm system, at a minimum incorporating tamper switches on control
valves and a Central Station service for the water flow alarm shall be installed for
fire sprinkler systems.

82. Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Detectors/Alarms. Smoke and Carbon Monoxide
Detectors/Alarms shall be installed in accordance with the C.F.C., C.B.C., and N.F.P.A.
72.

83. Inspections/Approvals. The Fire Department shall inspect/approve the following:
a. Fire access road(s): prior to vertical combustible construction.
b. Fire hydrants: prior to vertical combustible construction.
c. Water mains: prior to vertical combustible construction.
d. Underground fire sprinkler piping: prior to concealment.
e. Overhead fire sprinkler piping: prior to installation.
f. Fire Alarm system acceptance test: prior to occupancy clearance.



Page 22 of 22 

g. Fire Department Key Box; mounted in proper location w/key(s) inside: prior to
occupancy clearance.

h. The Fire Department shall be given 48 hours minimum notice for all inspections
via the inspection request line 805-356-3905.

i. All permits shall be issued prior to start of any work.

End of Conditions 



ATTACHMENT 2



F:\MWA Work\PROJECTS\Olivera St Apartments (EDWARDS) - 21744\CAD-DP\DP.dwg
10/11/2021 1:33 PM

M I C H A E L C . P E A C H E Y

W A Y N E R . S T U A R T

C  .  J  .  H  O  R  S  T  M  A  N

3 3 0  S .  H A L C Y O N R O A D

ARROYO GRANDE,  CA 93420

(805) 544-4334 www.mwa.bz

J O B  N O .                           D A T E

PROJECT  DESCRIPTION

A NEW 5 UNIT DEVELOPMENT ON AN EXISTING VACANT PARCEL. 4 OF THE UNITS ARE

ALLOWED PER THE DENSITY STANDARDS AND AN ADDITIONAL ACCESSORY DWELLING

UNIT IS PROPOSED.  THE DEVELOPMENT WILL INCLUDE 2 BUILDINGS, A SHARED

DRIVEWAY, COVERED PARKING AREA, AND LANDSCAPING.

VICINITY  MAP

N

TRUE

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
G

U
A

D
A

L
U

P
E

,
 
C

A

A
P

N
:
 
1
1
5
-
0
3
6
-
0
1
2

A
 
N

E
W

 
M

U
L
T

I
 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

DP1 TITLE SHEET

DP2 SITE PLAN

DP3 FLOOR PLANS

DP4 FLOOR PLANS CONT.

DP5 ELEVATIONS

DP6 PERSPECITVES

L1 LANDSCAPE

TOTAL SHEETS: 7

DP1

OLIVERA APARTMENTS

OLIVERA STREET | GUADALUPE , CA   (APN: 115-036-012)

SITE

CODES IN EFFECT

ALL CODES REFERENCED SHALL BE CALIFORNIA EDITIONS. THE CODES

REFERENCED IN THESE PLANS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

a. 2019 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC)

b. 2019 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE (CMC)

c. 2019 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE (CPC)

d. 2019 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE (CFC)

e. 2019 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE (CEC)

f. 2019 CALIFORNIA GREEN CODE (CGC)

g. CALIFORNIA STATE ENERGY CONSERVATION STDS. (TITLE 24)

h. GUADALUPE MUNICIPAL CODE

SHEET INDEX

7/23/2121744

CITY OF GUADALUPE FIRE DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX 908

FIRE SAFETY DEPARTMENT

SANTA BARBARA, CA  93110

COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

GUADALUPE, CALIFORNIA 93434

811

GUADALUPE, CA  93434

AGENCIES

(805) 356-3903

GUADALUPE, CA. 93434

(805) 343-2112

POLICE DEPARTMENT

(805) 681-5102

300 N. SAN ANTONIO RD.

(805) 356-3905

918 OBISPO STREET

UNDERGROUND SERVICES

918 OBISPO STREET

PUBLIC WORKS

800-743-5000

201 W. Main Street

THE GAS COMPANY

800-427-2000

VERIZON

2120 S. Broadway

(805) 427-2000

309 W. Main Street

COM CAST

Santa Maria, CA 93454

Santa Maria, CA 93454

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC

San Luis Obispo, CA  93401

406 S. Higuera Street

Santa Maria, CA 93454

(805) 928-7433

CITY OF GUADALUPE BUILDING AND

CITY OF GUADALUPE

CITY OF GUADALUPE

GUADALUPE, CA. 93434

(805) 356-3889

918 OBISPO STREET

P.O. BOX 6016

TODD & KARI EDWARDS

SANTA MARIA, CA  93456

PROJECT CONTACTS

TEL: (805) 614-9909

MW ARCHITECTS

PROPERTY OWNER
ARCHITECT / APPLICANT:

ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420

REP: C.J. HORSTMAN

330 S HALCYON RD.

TEL: (805) 544-4334 x104

E: christopherh@mwa.bz

7

9

0

 

F

T

790 FT < 2,640 FT (0.5 MILES) = ADU PARKING EXEMPT

BUS STOP

ATTACHMENT 3



5
0

'

5
0

'

UNIT #3 YARD

20'-0" SETBACK

5
'
-
0
"
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

15'-0" SETBACK

2
5
'
-
0
"
 
B

A
C

K
U

P

8'-0"

UP

150.0'

150.0'

ADJACENT RESIDENCE

ADJACENT MULTI-FAMILY

(N) DRIVEWAY

2
0
'
-
0
"
 
D

R
I
V

E

UP

5
'
-
0

"
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

ADU YARD

15'x15'

UNIT #4 YARD

10'x12'

10'x12'

NEW BUILDING 1

GROUND FLOOR: CARPORT

SECOND FLOOR: 2 APARTMENTS

FFE: ~87.80'

NEW BUILDING 2

GROUND FLOOR: CARPORT + ADU

SECOND FLOOR: 2 APARTMENTS

FFE: ~88.05'

1 2 3 54 6 7 8

5
'
-
0

"
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 FOOTPRINT: ~1,243 SF FOOTPRINT: ~1,177 SF

TR TR 

TR 

TR 

TR 

PATIO

PATIO

ASPHALT

9'-6"

TYP.

1
9

'
-
0

"

T
Y

P
.

A

DMA

5
%

 
M

I
N

.

5
%

 
M

I
N

.

5
%

 
M

I
N

.

5% MIN.

5% MIN.

5% MIN.

113'-2" DEAD END DRIVEWAY (LESS THAN 150')

5
%

 
M

I
N

.

5
%

 
M

I
N

.

5
%

 
M

I
N

.

5% MIN.

5% MIN.

5% MIN.

R

3

5

0

'

-

0

"

R

3

5

0

'

-

0

"

F:\MWA Work\PROJECTS\Olivera St Apartments (EDWARDS) - 21744\CAD-DP\DP.dwg
10/11/2021 1:33 PM

M I C H A E L C . P E A C H E Y

W A Y N E R . S T U A R T

C  .  J  .  H  O  R  S  T  M  A  N

3 3 0 S .  H A L C Y O N R O A D

ARROYO GRANDE,  CA 93420

(805) 544-4334 www.mwa.bz

J O B  N O .                           D A T E

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
G

U
A

D
A

L
U

P
E

,
 
C

A

A
P

N
:
 
1
1
5
-
0
3
6
-
0
1
2

A
 
N

E
W

 
M

U
L
T

I
 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

DP2

7/23/2121744

STORMWATER ANALYISIS

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE VALUES

PRE PROJECT: IMPERVIOUS AREA= 0 SF

SITE AREA= 7,500 SF

POST PROJECT: IMPERVIOUS AREA = 5,700 SF

NET IMPERVIOUS= +5,700 SF

TIER 1 COMPLIANCE REQUIRED:

DRAIN DOWNSPOUTS TO LANDSCAPE AREAS

1. PARKING SPACES IN CARPORT (9.5' x 18' TYP)

2. EXISTING SLUMP STONE WALL ON ADJACENT PROPERTY TO REMAIN

3. NEW SLUMP STONE WALL TO MATCH EXISTING STYLE, STEP DOWN FROM REAR

PROPERTY LINE TOWARDS STREET TO MATCH EXISTING WALL ALONG NORTH

PROPERTY LINE. MAXIMUM WALL HEIGHT TO BE 6'-0". WALL TO DROP TO 3'-0" WHEN

WITHIN FRONT YARD SETBACK.

4. NEW 5' WOOD FENCE. MAXIMUM FENCE HEIGHT TO BE 6'-0". FENCE TO DROP TO 3'-0"

WHEN WITHIN FRONT YARD SETBACK

5. FENCE GATE

6. EXISTING DRIVEWAY CURB CUT TO BE REMOVED

7. NEW 20' DRIVEWAY PER CITY ENGINEERING STANDARDS

8. EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

9. NEW 36" DECORATIVE PERIMETER FENCE

10. BIOFILTRATION AND LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT TREATMENT SYSTEM, LANDSCAPED

DRAINAGE AREA SLOPED TOWARDS DMA 'A'.

11. MIN. 5% SLOPE AWAY FROM STRUCTURE, TOWARDS BIOFILTRATION SYSTEM.

12. DRAINAGE MANAGEMENT AREA. ~200 SF.

13. TRASH RECEPTACLE STORAGE AREA.

14. NEW UTILITY LINE TO BE UNDERGROUND

REFERENCE NOTES

SCHEMATIC SITE PLAN

1 2

3

3

NEIGHBORHOOD CONTEXT PLAN

ENLARGED SITE PLAN

T

R

U

E

N

O

R

T

H

REF.

0 4' 8' 16'

4

5 TYP

TYP

44

5

6

7

8

8

NEW LANDSCAPE: APPROX. 1,800 SF

NEW AC DRIVEWAY APPROX. 2,600 SF

NEW CONCRETE APPROX. 560 SF

NEW BLDG. FOOTPRINTS APPROX. 2,400 SF

OHE

GAS

W

S

X

UTILITIES, OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL LINE

UTILITIES, GAS LINE

UTILITIES, WATER LINE

UTILITIES, SEWER LINE

FENCE LINE

SITE  PLAN  LEGEND

WATER METER

GAS METER

ELECTRICAL METER

FIRE HYDRANT

SEE ENLARGED SITE PLAN

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

9

11

10

10

10

12

13

13

13

13

14

9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1011

AutoCAD SHX Text
87.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
FD1"IPNT

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
JP

AutoCAD SHX Text
O L I V E R A   S T R E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
12TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLIVERA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PACHECO ST



BED 2BED 1

OFFICE/

BED 3

DECK

REF

TV

LIVING/DIN

10'-2 1/2" x 8'-0 1/2"

10'-2 1/2" x 9'-9"

CLCL

8'-5" x 9'-9"

CL

KITCHEN

11'-1" x 13'-0 1/2"

W/D

MIRRORED PLAN

DECK

UNIT 2UNIT 1

10'-0" x 5'-0" 10'-0" x 5'-0"

1

DP5

5'-1"

2
'
-
8

"

CARPORT

1

DP5

61'-0"

2
2

'
-
0

"
2

'
-
0

"

9'-6"

TYP.

1
9

'
-
0

"

F:\MWA Work\PROJECTS\Olivera St Apartments (EDWARDS) - 21744\CAD-DP\DP.dwg
10/11/2021 1:33 PM

M I C H A E L C . P E A C H E Y

W A Y N E R . S T U A R T

C  .  J  .  H  O  R  S  T  M  A  N

3 3 0  S .  H A L C Y O N R O A D

ARROYO GRANDE,  CA 93420

(805) 544-4334 www.mwa.bz

J O B  N O .                           D A T E

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
G

U
A

D
A

L
U

P
E

,
 
C

A

A
P

N
:
 
1
1
5
-
0
3
6
-
0
1
2

A
 
N

E
W

 
M

U
L
T

I
 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

DP3

7/23/2121744

1. REFERENCE NOTE 1

2.

REFERENCE NOTES

SCHEMATIC FLOOR PLAN - BUILDING 1

LOWER FLOOR PLAN

UPPER FLOOR PLAN

T

R

U

E

N

O

R

T

H

REF.

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

0 2' 4' 8'



KITCHEN

BED 1

BED 2

BED 1

BATH

DN

UNIT 3 UNIT 4

U
N

I
T

 
4

REF

LIVING/DIN

L

L

BED 2

9'-7 1/2" x 10'-0"

9'-7 1/2" x 10'-0"

10'-6" x 10'-10"

10'-6" x 10'-1"

17'-4" x 15'-3"

BATH

DN

LIVING/DIN

11'-3 1/2" x 14'-8"

1

DP5

42'-6"

2
4

'
-
5

1 2

"

OFFICE/

BED 3

7'-0" x 13'-0"

UP

CARPORT

UNIT 3 UNIT 4

CLCL

CL

UP

OFFICE/

BED 3

7'-0" x 13'-0"

F
U

T
U

R
E

A
C

C
E

S
S

O
R

Y
 
D

W
E

L
L

I
N

G
 
U

N
I
T

~
4

0
0

 
S

F

BEDROOM

11'-6" x 10'-8"

LIVING

1

DP5

1
9

'
-
0

"

42'-6"

2
1

'
-
0

"

STORAGE

FUTURE ADU

F:\MWA Work\PROJECTS\Olivera St Apartments (EDWARDS) - 21744\CAD-DP\DP.dwg
10/11/2021 1:33 PM

M I C H A E L C . P E A C H E Y

W A Y N E R . S T U A R T

C  .  J  .  H  O  R  S  T  M  A  N

3 3 0  S .  H A L C Y O N R O A D

ARROYO GRANDE,  CA 93420

(805) 544-4334 www.mwa.bz

J O B  N O .                           D A T E

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
G

U
A

D
A

L
U

P
E

,
 
C

A

A
P

N
:
 
1
1
5
-
0
3
6
-
0
1
2

A
 
N

E
W

 
M

U
L
T

I
 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

DP4

7/23/2121744

SCHEMATIC FLOOR PLAN - BUILDING 2

UPPER FLOOR LOWER FLOOR

T

R

U

E

N

O

R

T

H

REF.

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

0 2' 4' 8'



8'-0"

TOPL

9'-0"

TOPL

24-8 1/2"

RIDGE

23'-3 1/2"

RIDGE

12

6

12

6

12

6

12

6

12

6

12

6

8'-0"

TOPL

9'-0"

TOPL

23'-3 1/2"

RIDGE

24-8 1/2"

RIDGE

8'-0"

TOPL

9'-0"

TOPL

24-8 1/2"

RIDGE

23'-8 1/2"

RIDGE

12

6

12

6

8'-0"

TOPL

9'-0"

TOPL

23'-3 1/2"

RIDGE

12

6

12

6

UNIT 1 UNIT 2

CARPORT

UNIT 3 UNIT 4

UNIT 4

UNIT 3CARPORT

8'-0"

TOPL

9'-0"

TOPL

23'-3 1/2"

RIDGE

24-8 1/2"

RIDGE

F:\MWA Work\PROJECTS\Olivera St Apartments (EDWARDS) - 21744\CAD-DP\DP.dwg
10/11/2021 1:33 PM

M I C H A E L C . P E A C H E Y

W A Y N E R . S T U A R T

C  .  J  .  H  O  R  S  T  M  A  N

3 3 0  S .  H A L C Y O N R O A D

ARROYO GRANDE,  CA 93420

(805) 544-4334 www.mwa.bz

J O B  N O .                           D A T E

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
G

U
A

D
A

L
U

P
E

,
 
C

A

A
P

N
:
 
1
1
5
-
0
3
6
-
0
1
2

A
 
N

E
W

 
M

U
L
T

I
 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

DP5

7/23/2121744

1. SMOOTH TROWEL PLASTER SIDING

2. COMPOSITE SHINGLE ROOF

3. 2X WOOD FASCIA BOARD

4. WOOD DECK FRAMING

5. SS CABLE RAIL

6. VINYL WINDOWS

7. PLASTER SCREED LINE

MATERIAL & COLOR DESIGNATIONS

SCHEMATIC ELEVATIONS & SECTIONS

MATERIAL  DESIGNATIONS

X

#
MATERIAL NUMBER

COLOR DESIGNATION

A. BEIGE- KM4787 "PLUME GRASS" OR SIMILAR

B. SAGE GREEN- KM4791 "DUCK WILLOW" OR SIMILAR

C. FACTORY FINISH WHITE

D. FACTORY FINISH CHARCOAL

COLOR DESIGNATIONS

SOUTH ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATIONEAST ELEVATION

A

1

B

3

D

2

C

6

B

4

B

4

A

1

-

7

-

5

BUILDING SECTION

0 4' 8' 16'

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

COLOR / MATERIAL EXAMPLES

D

2

B

3,4

A

1



F:\MWA Work\PROJECTS\Olivera St Apartments (EDWARDS) - 21744\CAD-DP\DP.dwg
10/11/2021 1:33 PM

M I C H A E L C . P E A C H E Y

W A Y N E R . S T U A R T

C  .  J  .  H  O  R  S  T  M  A  N

3 3 0  S .  H A L C Y O N R O A D

ARROYO GRANDE,  CA 93420

(805) 544-4334 www.mwa.bz

J O B  N O .                           D A T E

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
G

U
A

D
A

L
U

P
E

,
 
C

A

A
P

N
:
 
1
1
5
-
0
3
6
-
0
1
2

A
 
N

E
W

 
M

U
L
T

I
 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

DP6

7/23/2121744

SCHEMATIC PERSPECTIVES

VIEW FROM OLIVERA ST LOOKING NORTH VIEW LOOKING NORTH FROM NEIGHBORING PROPERTY

VIEW FROM OLIVERA STREET LOOKING SOUTH-EASTVIEW LOOKING WEST



113'-2" DEAD END DRIVEWAY (LESS THAN 150')

F:\MWA Work\PROJECTS\Olivera St Apartments (EDWARDS) - 21744\CAD-DP\DP.dwg
10/11/2021 1:33 PM

M I C H A E L C . P E A C H E Y

W A Y N E R . S T U A R T

C  .  J  .  H  O  R  S  T  M  A  N

3 3 0  S .  H A L C Y O N R O A D

ARROYO GRANDE,  CA 93420

(805) 544-4334 www.mwa.bz

J O B  N O .                     D A T E

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
A

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

O
L
I
V

E
R

A
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
G

U
A

D
A

L
U

P
E

,
 
C

A

A
P

N
:
 
1
1
5
-
0
3
6
-
0
1
2

A
 
N

E
W

 
M

U
L
T

I
 
F

A
M

I
L
Y

 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

L1

7/23/2121744

CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN

CONCEPTUAL WATER USAGE SUMMARY

PLANTING LEGEND

LARGE & MEDIUM SIZE TREES

SMALL TREES & SHRUBS

GRASSES & ACCENT SHRUBS

LANDSCAPE AREA/ MULCH

CONCEPTUAL PLANT LIST

 WOCULS RATING*

DECIDUOUS TREES

ALBIZIA JULIBRISSIN (SILK TREE) L

CHITALPA TASHKENTENSIS (CHITALPA) L

GEIJERA PARVIFOLIA (AUSTRIALIAN WILLOW) L

PISTACIA CHINENSIS (CHINESE PISTACHE) L

SMALL TREES & SHRUBS

AGAVE ATTENUATA (FOXTAIL AGAVE) L

ARBUTUS UNEDO 'COMPACTA (DWARF STRAWBERRY TREE) L

FREMONTODENDRON CALIFORNICA (FLANNELBUSH) VL

STRELITZIA REGINAE (BIRD OF PARADISE) L

ARCHTOSTAPHYLOS 'HOWARD MCMINN' VL

(HOWARD MCMINN MANZANITA)

CARISSA GRANDIFLORA 'BOXWOOD BEAUTY VL

'NATAL PLUM (THORNLESS)

GRASSES & ACCENT SHRUBS GROUND COVER

ARCHTOSTAPHYLOS 'CARMEL SUR (CARMEL SUR MANZANITA) VL

BACCHARIS PILULARIS 'TWIN PEAKS' (DWARF COYOTE BRUSH) VL

LONICERA JAPONICA 'HALLIANA' (HALL'S HONEYSUCKLE) L

ROSMARINUS OFFICINALIS (ROSEMARY) L

CALAMAGRASTUS 'KARL FOERSTER'

(FEATHER REED GRASS) L

CAREX TUMULICOLA (BERKELEY SEDGE) L

CHONDROPETALUM TECTORUM (SMALL CAPE RUSH) L

MULCH

MULCH ALL GROUND COVER AND PLANTER AREAS WITH 3" MINIMUM LAYER

DECORATIVE COBBLES, CRUSHED ROCK OR 'WALK-ON' BARK.

*WATER-USE EVALUATION OF PLANT MATERIALS WATER USE OF PROPOSED

PLANTS HAVE BEEN EVALUATED USING THE "WATER USE CLASSIFICATION OF

LANDSCAPE SPECIES" (WUCOLS IV,  UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA COOPERATIVE

EXTENSION.)

THE FOLLOWING PRICIPLES OF IRRIGATION DESIGN UTILIZED ON THIS PROJECT ARE DIRECTED

SPECIFICALLY AS CONSERVING WATER AND IMPROVING THE EFFIICIENCY OF THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM:

* ALL IRRIGATION SHALL BE DRIP OR DRIPLINE EMITTERS. NO OVERHEAD SPRAY HEADS WILL BE

USED.

* IRRIGATION HYDROZONES SHALL BE ADJUSTED ACCORDING TO WATER NEEDS AND WEATHER.

* UTILIZATION OF IRRIGATION SYSTEM MASTER VALVE.

* UTILIZATION OF IRRIGATION SYSTEM "SMART CONTROLLER" WITH WATER BUDGETING FEATURE.

* UTILIZATION OF IRRIGATION SYSTEM FLOW SENSOR.

* UTILIZATION OF RAIN SHUT-OFF DEVICE CONNECTED TO IRRIGATION CONTROLLER.

IRRIGATION DESIGN STANDARDS

(N) BUILDING 1

ASPHALT DRIVE

(N) BUILDING 2

T

R

U

E

N

O

R

T

H

REF.

0 4' 8' 16'

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

PARCEL SIZE: 15,000 SF

LANSCAPED AREA: 1,800 SF (12%)

LAWNS /

GROUND COVER: 744 SF (41%)

OTHER

LANDSCAPING: 1,056 (59%)

A. ALL TREES TO BE 5 GAL. AT TIME OF PLANTING.

LANDSCAPE CALCULATION / NOTES

TURFGROUND COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
O L I V E R A   S T R E E T


	CC Agenda 11 23 2021
	6B Warrants
	6C CC Minutes 11 02 2021 Special Meeting
	6D CC Minutes 11 09 2021
	6E October 2021 Financial Report
	Staff Report October 2021 Financial Report
	Agenda of November 23, 2021

	October 2021 Financial Report

	6F Cal Fire Urban and Community Forestry Grant
	Staff Report CalFire Grant 11-23-2021
	Agenda of November 23, 2021

	Resolution No. 2021-90 CalFire Grant 11-23-2021
	21-22 UCF

	6G 1a. Police Department Report October 2021
	6G 1b. Fire Monthly Report October 2021
	6G 1c. Code Compliance Report October 2021
	6G 2. October 2021 Treasurer's Report
	6G 3. HR Monthly Report October 2021
	HRMonthlyRptOct2021.pdf
	Human Resources
	918 Obispo Street

	HEALTH OFFICER ORDER NO. 2021-10.6 COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA FOR THE CONTROL OF COVID-19 FACE COVERINGS WITHIN SANTA BARBARA COUNTY
	Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.6 Supersedes and Replaces Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.5
	Effective Date: November 4, 2021, 5:00pm PT


	Workers Compensation Summary Report Org2 x3A 121519336 (002).pdf
	Summary


	9 City Projects Updates 11-23-2021
	10 Broadband Strategic Plan
	10 Broadband Strategic Plan
	Staff Report Broadband Strategic Plan 11-23-21
	Agenda of November 23, 2021

	Attachment B- BCPC Broadband Strategy Proposal
	All the partners are important to the development and deployment of a strategic plan.  These key stakeholders help scope and shape the strategy and can sign on as applicants for grants or other funding opportunities.
	The Broadband Consortium of the Pacific Coast (BCPC) has as its primary purpose the expansion and improvement of broadband deployment, access, and adoption through the development of collaborative, stakeholder-driven regional strategies throughout the...

	BCPC SBCAG Cities
	 A Broadband Strategy�              for the �County of Santa Barbara
	Agenda
	ABOUT BCPC
	What is the Broadband  Consortium of the Pacific Coast?
	Slide Number 5
	State of Tri-County Broadband
	Slide Number 7
	Current State: Santa Barbara County Broadband
	COVID: Catalyst for Digital Inclusion 
	Broadband Strategic Planning Process
	Process & Deliverable
	Current Funding Opportunities
	Catalyst Project Case Study & Next Steps for SB County
	North County & Chumash Broadband
	Leveraging Collaborative Resources
	What’s Next for SB County
	Wrap Up  
	Summary
	Q&A


	Broadband MOU v 3 WITH LEGAL CHANGES

	11 Crandall 12th Street Apartments -Design Review
	Staff Report Crandall 12th St. Apartments 11-23-2021 (1)
	Agenda of November 23, 2021

	Resolution No. 2021-88 Crandall 12th St. Apts Design Review 11-23-2021 w atty comments
	Attachment 2 Aerial Vicinity Map
	Attachment 3 Project Plans - Crandall 12th St. Apts Design Review
	Grading C2
	Grading C3
	Grading C4
	Landscape L1
	Landscape L2
	Landscape Colored L1
	Architectural A1
	Architectural A2
	Architectural A3
	COLORED ELEVATIONS


	12 Edwards Olivera Street Apartments - Design Review
	Staff Report Edwards Apartments - Olivera St. Design Review 11-23-2021 w atty comments
	Agenda of November 23, 2021

	Resolution No. 2021-89 Edwards Apartments - Olivera St. Design Review 11-23-2021 w atty comments
	Attachment 2 Aerial Vicinity Map Edwards Apartments
	Attachment 3 Edwards Olivera Plan Set
	Sheets and Views
	DP-DP1
	DP-DP2
	DP-DP3
	DP-DP4
	DP-DP5
	DP-DP6
	DP-L1






